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May 31, 2013

LDear Honorable Mayor, Members of City Commission, and Citizens of Kingsville: 

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the City of Kingsville, Texas ( City) for
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2012, is submitted herewith. As required by the
TEX. LOCAL GOVT CODE ANN. § 103. 001 et seq.. the report includes financial

statements which have been audited by an independent firm of certified public
accountants, John Womack & Co. PC. The financial statements are presented in

conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
GAAP) and are audited in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards by a

firm of licensed certified public accountants. 

This report consists of management' s representations concerning the finances of the City. 
Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and
reliability of all the information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis

for making these representations, management of the City has established a

comprehensive internal control framework that is designed both to protect the City' s
assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information for the
presentation of the City' s financial statements in conformity with GAAP. Because the

cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the City' s comprehensive
framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable, rather than
absolute, assurance that the financial statements will be free from material misstatement. 
As management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial
report is complete and reliable in all material respects. 

The goal of the independent audit, conducted by John Womack & Co. PC was to provide

reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the City of Kingsville for fiscal year
ended September 30, 2012, are free of material misstatement. The independent audit

involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. The independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a
reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified opinion that the City of Kingsville' s
financial statements for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2012, are fairly presented in
conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor' s report is presented as the first
component of the financial section of this report. 

GAAP require that management provide a narrative introduction. overview, and analysis
to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management' s Discussion and
Analysis ( MD& A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD& A and
should be read in conjunction with it. The City of Kingsville' s MD&A can be found
immediately following the report of the independent auditor. 



THE CITY AND ITS ORGANIZATION

Population and Location

Based on the reviewed 2010 Census of Kingsville, the City now has a population of
27, 195; this represents a 6. 33 percent increase over the 2000 Census of 25, 575. The City
of Kingsville' s standard metropolitan statistical area consists of Kleberg County which
has a population of 32. 061 according to the 2010 Census. The geographic location of the
City is on U. S. Highway 77 which has been proposed to be the new Interstate 69 which
will facilitate travel from Mexico, Central and South America to the U.S. and Canada. 
The City is also home to a major military installation, NAS Kingsville, and tourist
attraction, the King Ranch. 

The total area of the City is approximately 13. 93 square miles. The City may expand its
jurisdiction, by adding, territory adjoining or lying adjacent to the City, by ordinance
pursuant to its regularly updated and statutorily required annexation plan. 

Form of Government and City Services

The City was incorporated in 1911. In 1916, the City was organized under a City Charter
and operated as a General Law city until 1926, at which time a Home Rule Charter with a
Commission form of government, was adopted. The Charter was amended in 1986 to
adopt the present and nationally predominant Commission -Manager form of government. 

The City Commission consists of the Mayor and four Commission Members elected for
two-year terms. The Mayor and the four Commission Members are elected at large. The
City Commission is responsible for passing ordinances, adopting the budget, appointing
committees, and appointing the City Manager, City Attorney, and Municipal Court
Judge. The City Manager is the Chief Administrative and Executive Officer and is
responsible for carrying out policies and ordinances of the City Commission, overseeing
day-to-day operations, presenting an annual budget and appointing all other City
Employees. 

The City is a full service municipality, providing a full range of services. The City' s
public safety services include police protection, fire protection, building inspection, and a
specialized emergency management operation. Law enforcement is provided through the
Police Department with 65 employees, which includes 48 police officers and 17 support
personnel. The City' s Fire Department operates two fire stations, and includes an
emergency medical service comprised of two staffed ambulances, with a third ambulance

available if needed. Fire protection and emergency medical services are provided with 3.3
employees, which include 32 fire fighters and I support personnel. Of the 32 fire
fighters, 9 have their Paramedic or Emergency Medical Technician certification. 

The City has a combined utility system ( System) comprised of water and wastewater. 
The City' s water system, consisting of 123. 0 miles of waterlines, serves all residents of
the City, as well as several other customers and industries within Kleberg County and a 2
mile radius of the City. The City' s water supply is primarily provided by seven water
wells. The second water supply source is with STWA which maintains a 4251

water line
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to the City of Corpus Christi. The City' s water supply is now sufficient to continue
serving the City for the next several decades. 

As of May 2010, the City completed the Carriage Park Drainage Project which included
3, 550 feet of storm pipes., inlets, outfall structures and 2, 500 feet of ditch. City staff has
determined the drainage problem areas in the entire city and probable solutions of
drainage problem for these areas. The City has completed the process of designing, 
installing and constructing three major drainage systems with the Carriage Park project as
the last one. This drainage improvement project was part of a 5 -year plan for drainage

improvement for the City. 

The City has completed building a new water well, Water Well #
23 ), 

in Fiscal Year 2008- 

09 with all the finishing touches and plans to complete Water Well 424 in Fiscal Year
2009- 10, to continue to meet the City' s water needs. 

Wastewater collection and treatment is provided within the city limits to more than
26,532 residential, commercial, and industrial customers. The collection system consists

of 96. 1 miles of gravity and force mains, 1, 381 manholes, and 8 lift stations. The City
owns and operates 2 treatment plants with separate collection basins, with an average

aggregated daily flow at treatment plants of 1, 400, 000 gallons per day, or 35% of

aggregate permitted capacity. 

In addition to operating the combined utility system, the City also provides garbage
collection and disposal. Garbage collection is primarily limited to residential service, 
with automated garbage collection using specialized equipment initiated in 2009 and City
households are now using the garbage rollouts with automated inventory bar codes and
GPS tracking. The City, with its automated garbage collection program, provides
garbage pick-up twice a week which results in a savings of more than $ 100, 000 a year. 

The commercial. garbage collection is also automated and is collected up to six days a
week. The City' s recycling center collects approximately 150 tons a year. The City
owns and operates a regional waste disposal facility, also accepting waste from outside of
the City and from commercial garbage haulers. Other public works operations of the

City include drainage and street maintenance, street lighting and traffic signalization and
engineering. The City provides engineering services to support all public works
departments as well as the planning department. It also provides the City with

engineering design for City construction projects. 

Cornmunitv enrichment and culture services are also major programs of the City. The

City and 16eberg County own and operate a library with over 65, 000 volumes. The City
and Kleberg County also ow•n and maintain. extensive recreational facilities, which
include 195 acres of parks and playgrounds, one swimming pool, 12 baseball and softball
diamonds, 12 soccer fields, and 2 recreational centers. 

Public health, animal control/care, and vector control services are provided by the jointly
operated City of Kingsville/Kleberg County Health Department. 

At the July
9h., 

2012 Commissioner' s meeting, the City of Kingsville presented the
development and resolutions for Commission action to enable a transition from having a



separate Convention and Visitor' s Bureau to the implementation of a City Tourism
Service Department. The action allowed for the continuity of tourism services and
recordkeeping, as well as, additional effectiveness and efficiencies. The result reflects

with the addition of the Tourism Fund being incorporated into the City' s Financials. 0

Annual Budget Process

State laws and the City Charter require the preparation and filing of a balanced annual
operating budget. Departments are required to submit requests to the Finance

Department by the last week of May for the development of the annual operating budget. 
Under the direction of the City Manager, the Director of Finance uses these requests to
develop a proposed balanced operating budget for presentation to the City Commission
by the beginning of August. Following a month of budget discussions and deliberations
with City Commission, a public hearing is scheduled for the first week of September and
adoption of the budget ordinance and supporting fee schedules occur no later than
September 30th. The operating budget is prepared by fund, department, function, and
organizational unit or project levels. 

Budgetary management is delegated to department heads that may approve transfers of
appropriations within their department. Budgetary control is performed by both
department heads and the Finance Department. Transfer of appropriations between funds

and departments requires City Commission approval. 

During the months of August and September, a project team comprised of the Finance
Department, Engineering Department and applicable department heads initiate a review
of previously appropriated capital projects and construction in progress. 

Budget -to -actual comparisons are provided in this report for each individual

governmental fund for which an appropriated annual budget has been adopted. For

governmental funds other than the general fund, with appropriated annual budgets, this
comparison is presented in the governmental fund subsection of this report. Budget -to - 

actual reports are prepared on a monthly and unaudited basis by the Finance Department
and provided to City Commission and management for review and use in monitoring
revenues and expenditures, 

FINANCIAL CONDITION

Local Economy

An understanding of the information, presented in the financial statements is enhanced
when it is reviewed within the context of the City' s local economy. The following
information is provided to highlight a broad range of economic forces which support the
City' s operations. 
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Major Revenues

The City' s major sources of revenue are property, sales and other taxes, and business
fees. The September 30, 2012, period showed the following changes in these sources
from the prior year: ( 1) an increase in property tax receipts due to an increase in the
property values, ( 2) a slight decrease in sates tax, and ( 3) a . 5. 8% increase in business

taxes and fees. This illustrates the resilience of the local economy despite negative
revenue trends for other state and local governments in the nation. Real property tax
collections as a percent of levy collected has remained stable. Current fiscal year

collected taxes to date, as a percent of the net current tax levy, have increased slightly
from 96. 5% to 96. 7%. 

Employment

The local unemployment rate stood at 6. 3% for September, 2012. Future Job growth for

the City outpaced the National average and was projected at 32. 78% for this same time

period. Estimated Household income for the City also outpaced the National average as
well. 

Diversification of Economy

The region has a varied manufacturing, agricultural and petrochemical base that adds to
the relative stability of employment. Major industries located within the City' s
boundaries, or in close proximity, include industrial, construction, fast food restaurants, 
convenience stores, banking, and financial services. Texas A&M University - Kingsville

TA.VLLX) is also located within the city limits of the City of Kingsville. There has been

a lot of new construction activity on the campus during this fiscal year. 

The federal government also has a major presence within the area with two bases that

make up the south Texas military complex: Naval Air Station — Kingsville for jet

aviation training and Naval Air Station — Corpus Christi. NAS Kingsville has recently
added new tenant commands and is refurbishing and expanding its infrastructure and
facilities. 

The City of Kingsville' s trade area consists of four counties: Kleberg, Kenedy, Nueces
and Jim Wells. Each of these counties maintains a solid and diversified economic base

which contributes material support to the City of Kingsville due to its location as a
regional trade center. The City of Kingsville' s economy provides a diversified product
market including metal fabrication, chemical processing, farm and ranch equipment, 
cement, petrochemical products, fishing and seafood products and more. 

Since 2010, the City has funded its participation in the Texas Main Street program as a
strategy for the redevelopment of its historic downtown commercial district, a district that
serves the local community, a growing tourism market, as well as the students of the local
university. 

The land in the City of Kingsville region has strong mineral deposits, rich soil and an
excellent climate, with the principle crops being grain, sorghum, and cotton. The region

I
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produces a large supply of livestock including cattle, hogs, and poultry. The oil and gas

industry is a major factor in the growth and stability within the trade area. This industry
provides a secondary market for petroleum by-products and chemicals. 

Wind farm development is springing up in the area, affecting hotel occupancy and sales
tax, but has also raised Navy concerns over the impact on potential nearby wind farms on
flight training safety due to radar interference. 

Major Eagle Ford Shale Region oil and gas discoveries, while too far away to have direct
effect, are having a positive spillover impact on businesses and on hotel occupancy and
sales tax. Meanwhile, job opportunities in the oil and gas industry are attracting local and
city employees. 

Transportation

A primary component of the City' s transportation system is the 2, 457 -acre Corpus Christi
International Airport, which is only 45 minutes from the City of Kingsville. Currently, 
the Airport is served by approximately 24-30 daily flights from three major domestic
carriers that use the Airport' s 7, 508 and 6,080 feet of lighted runways for a total of
13, 588 feet. The Airport serviced 328, 663 enplanes and 327, 045 deplanes in fiscal year

2012. Additionally, airport safety has been enhanced through a multi jurisdictional
cooperative effort with other civil and military law enforcement agencies. 

The City is also served by a network of major highways. U. S. Highway 77 ( in transition
and under construction to become Interstate 69) links the City of Kingsville to both the
Rio Grande Valley/Mexico to the south and Victoria ( which then provides a direct
connection to U. S. 59 and Houston). State Highway 44 and U. S. Highway 59 also link
the City of Kingsville to Laredo/ Mexico from U. S. Highway 77 at Robstown and
Victoria. All highways are four -lane roads and are maintained at interstate or near

interstate standards. There is a total of 145. 76 miles of local streets within the city limits
of Kingsville. Of this total, the Texas Department of Transportation JX Dot) owns and

maintains approximately 25. 76 miles of roadway. The City of Kingsville owns and
maintains the other 120.0 miles of streets. Seventeen separate motor carriers serve the

City of Kingsville for truck transport of products to market. Rail service to and from the
City of Kingsville is provided by the Burlington Northern/ Santa Fe Railway, Texas
Mexican Railway and Union Pacific Railroad. 

Major Initiatives

During Fiscal Year 2012, the citizens and elected officials of Kingsville cooperated in the
planning and implementation of several major projects and capital asset acquisitions. 

The City created a Beautification Board made up of internal staff members to coordinate
and. plan community appearance activities. In Fiscal Year 2012 the city made a

substantial investment in corridor planning and beautification as wells as additional
infrastructure improvements. These included but were not limited to the installation of

121 true date palm trees planted along the General Cavazos Blvd. Also, included in this
initiative was the resurfacing of major portions of Armstrong St. and Ailsie St. The City



I

also was successful in implementing a pilot program to provide wood enclosures to
surround and screen many of the unsightly commercial dumpsters. These and many other
programs have been implemented and will continue to be implemented toward

beautifying the City. 

The Planning & Development Services Department continued its dangerous building
initiative, wherein the Community Appearance Division and the Building Services
Division collectively identified and razed 18 dangerous buildings in Kingsville in Fiscal
Year 2012. In total, eleven dangerous structures were demolished and properly disposed
utilizing City demolition funds. This program will continue in Fiscal Year 2013, with a

goal of razing 25 additional dangerous buildings. 

With the Certificate of Obligations the city has received, the City is continuing to update
the waste water treatment plants. 

The HM King High School renovation and adaptive re -use has made tremendous
progress in Fiscal Year 2012. Additional funding was awarded via a grant and the City
has pledged additional funds toward it completion. The exterior of the structure was tuck

pointed and the interior demolition was completed in Fiscal Year 2012. Additional work

will commence in Fiscal Year 2013 which will bring the exterior to 90% completion with

the interior work to begin soon thereafter. Anticipated completion is January 2015. 

City Growth and Development

In fiscal year 2010, the City continued previous year' s projects and completed upgrades
of lift stations and sewer force mains with a total cost of $1, 740,051; rehabilitation of 3
elevated storage tanks and one ground storage tank with a total cost of $ 1, 224, 050; 

rehabilitation of the clarifier and stairs with a cost of $2, 544, 856; upgrade on the SCADA

system for the wastewater treatment plant with a total cost of $37, 899; and installation of

blowers at the North. and South Wastewater Plants with a total cost of $ 1, 089,
0333. 

All of

the above projects were paid for with 2005 Certificates of Obligation bond funds. 

The city has been conducted smoke tests starting in fiscal year 2008- 2009 for the Inflow
and Infiltration ( 1& 1) study of existing sanitary sewer lines and completed testing through
fiscal year 2009- 2010. 

Economic Development

The City continues to partner with Kleberg County, the Economic Development Council
EDC), Texas A& M University -Kingsville ( TAM K) and Coastal Bend College in

creating quality jobs and programs toward achieving optimal economic stability and
diversification. Major initiatives tied to economic development are being collaborated
with these partners. Recently this partnership has produced substantial development

Ltraction, most notably the increase in construction activity. During the course of Fiscal
Year 2012, ongoing negotiations have progressed toward the finalization of an economic
incentive package to be entered into with a residential development company that will

Lconstruct 184 new single family homes in the City. Additionally, the aforementioned
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partners have collaborated to continue marketing the community and have attracted
substantial intereset in apartment developments and commercial prospects. 

The City also continues to support our local. economic partners most notably the
University and MASK. The City in partnership with the EDC continues to monitor and
support the missions of our important industries. In conjunctionwith this we continually
work to bring diverse industry that can relate and or equally capitalize on the current
industries/ services that are currently located in Kingsville. 

Additionally, the City was able to successfully continue a partnership with our
neighboring industry, Celanese. The City and Celanese renegotiated a Payment In Lieu
Of Taxes Agreement wherein both parties have agreed to cooperate on economic

development initiatives both financially for the City and from a business development
standpoint for Celanese. This exciting partnership, while a continuation, is a valuable
contribution to the economic development mission. 

Current Construction Projects

The Kingsville Independent School District begun construction of a new high

school to replace the existing high school. This will be a substantial investment

and improvement to the school facilities in the community. 
The City of Kingsville continues investing in an enhanced corridor landscape
project that will beautify a portion of Santa Gertrdus Avenue from Highway 141
to Seale St. This project will consist of the planting of 65 new trees to create a
tree lined boulevard within the existing center median. 
Franklin Welding Inc. comlpeted a 2,400 sq. ft. expansion of their current facility. 
This expanded the shop area to facilitate future growth, both in jobs and
production. 

e Coastal Plains MHMR completed the construction of a nearly 14, 000 sq. ft. 
facility on Corral Ave. to relocate their offices and provide additional services for
their clients. 

The Newman Connection, in partnership with the Corpus Christi Catholic
Diocese, began construction of phase one of a 600 unit student housing facility
near the Texas A& M University - Kingsville campus. This project consists of

three phases with the first phase ( 200 units) beginning in September of 2012 with
completion of phase one in July of2013. Future phases will come thereafter. 

Future Construction Projects

The Wildwood Trails residential development preliminary plat has been approved
wherein 184 new homes will be constructed. 

The City of Kingsville continues its enhanced corridor landscape program that
will beautiA- a large portion of the

6th

Street corridor

Several properties are near or are currently under contract to facilitate apartment
development. One is proposing 200 apartment units. 

4- Di -Trot Systems is proposing a 2800 sq. ft. office addition to allow for expansion
of their business. 

8



LRamos Refrigeration is proposing a 6000 sq. ft. warehosing addition to allow for
expansion of their business. 

I

L 4- Blake Fulenwilder Dodge, Chrysler, Jeep is preparing to perform site and building
development at their location including paving and shop expansion. 

ee The local Taco Bell is proposing a fall interior/ exterior remodel to update and
i

I

L improve the aesthetics of the site. 

Christus Spohn Hospital is proposing an addition to their Emergency Room which
will double is size to provide more acute care. 
In fiscal year 2012, a total of I new commercial permits were issued with a total
valuation of $4, 105, 943. 00. 

Residential Developments

0e Stone Village Apts. located at W Santa Gertrudis completed their 3, 630 sq. ft. 
project consisting of 6 apartment units valued at $ 220, 000. 00 in the fall of 2011. 

4- Ranch View Apts. located at 70X W. Avenue B completed their 3, 700 sq. ft. 
project consisting of 6 apartment units valued at $ 230, 000. 00 in the fall of 2012. 
The construction of Paulson Falls Phase III is ongoing. Currently, 35 of the sixty- 
three lots have been built upon. 

Casa Ricardo, the new senior housing development, located at 200 W. Yoakum
St. was completed in the fall of 2012. This project is valued at $ 2, 000, 750. 00. 

4- In fiscal year 2012, a total of 39 new residential permits were issued with a total
valuation of $ 4, 372, 505. 00. Additionally, 223 remodeling permits were issued
with a total value of $ 2, 587, 269. 00. All totaled residential contraction values

increased. by $6,959,774.00

Tourism

The City of Kingsville has significant brand equity in its identification with the King
Ranch, Texas A& M University - Kingsville, Naval Air Station Kingsville and as an entry
into the Rio Grande Valley. The City' s location puts it in an area that attracts " Winter

Texans" and various other tourism sub -markets. 

The ranchland connections support birding, hunting, fishing, gunning, heritage events and
other tourism. 

The University provides its own visitor draws, is growing in enrollment and adding
events, and is pursuingF sports -related tourism that relates to its mission and its own

L recruitment and marketing. 

The Naval Air Station provides its own Navy and business visitors, as well as providing
the venue for a spectacular biennial Wings over South Texas Air Show with the Navy' s
Blue Angels. 

Efforts in historic preservation, the Main Street program, the offerings of the downtown

merchants, and downtown events are beginning to build downtown visitation. 

I
I

L
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Financing of Major Capital Projects

During the 2012 fiscal year, the City continued to utilize the three bond issues from the
previous fiscal years to fund projects and capital assets planned and approved during the
past fiscal year. These are major initiatives that represent a si6nfificant long term
commitment to revitalization strategies that support commercial and industrial growth

and improved quality of life for current residents. 

CAFR Program

The Government Finance Officers Association ( GFOA) awarded a Certificate of

Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Kingsville for its
comprehensive annual financial report ( CAFR) for the fiscal year ended September 30, 

2011. continuing to confirm compliance with both GAAP and legal requirements. This

was the twenty- four consecutive year that the City has received this prestigious award. A
Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that this
CAFR continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program' s requirements and we

are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility certification. 
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JOHN WOMACK & CO.' P.C. 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

LP. 0. eox 1/ 47
JOHN L' WowAon. CPA mnosv| LLE. TEXAS 7aos4

1(
361) 592-2671

JOHN n. avOwACK, CPA FAX ( 3s\) se2'/ 411
6- MARGARET KELLY, CPA

Independent Auditor' s Report wwFinancial Statements

Board of Trustees

City ufKingsville
Y P/ J. Box 1458

Kingsville, Texas 78384

members of the Board mfTrustees: 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business -type
activities, the diac/ e k/ poyoon0ad component unit, each major fund, and the m0gnyg n remaining fund
information " of City of Kingsville as of and for the year ended September 30, 2012, which collectively
the City' s basic financial statements as | ietaj in the of contents. These financial statements are the

responsibility of City of Kingsville's management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial
statements based nnour audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards gnnuna| k/ accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govennnneni Auditing 8bzndanos, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we pian and perform the
oudb0mob inreasonable assurance about w/ h herthe financial statements are hoacfm aha| miao demmnt' 
An audit includes examining on atest basis, e daoueaupporbngthe amounts and disclosures inthe financial
statements. Am audit also i'-- u| udeo assessing the accounting principles used and the significant oobma&ao
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. VVm believe that our

im., audit provides areasonable basis for our opinions. 

n- opinion, u— ' ^ 
in all material respects, the respective

financial position of the governmental audv- ea, the buo/neoo'% po ouhw.kiea, the discretely presented

component unit, each major fund, and e aggregate / fund of City ofKingsville as of

September 30 2012' and the respective changes in financial pouition, and cash Uows, where applicable, 
thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally nucop0ad in the United
States ofAmerica. 

in accordance with Govemmeni Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April 26, 2013, 
L on our consideration of City of KinQoville' o internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its

compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. 
The purpose ofthat report inbodescribe the scope ofour testing ufintarno control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial

d i accordance with

reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of on audit performed n
owynitneni Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit. 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the managementsL discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information identified as Required Supplementary
Information in the abmbof contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, oughnot ~aportofdhebae| cdnoncio| ota1ementa, ioraquirmdbythaGovennmanta| Accounting

0 PRIVATE COMPANIES PRACTICE SECTION, AICPA DIVISION FOR CPA FIRMS

113



Standards Board, who considers bto be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate opermdnna|, ononomic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards gonondh
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted ofinquiries nf management about the methods of

preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management' s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. VVedo not express an opinion u/ provide any assurance mnthe information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions nnthe financial statements that collectively  
comprise the City of K] ugov| le' s financial statements as awho| e. The introductory oection, combining and . 
individual nonmajurfund financial statements, and statistical section are presented for purposes ofadditional
analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. The combining and individual nonmaior fund
financial statements are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly tothe - 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been  
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit ofthe financial statements and certain additional
proondureo, including comparing and reconciling such information directly tothe underlying accounting and
other veomnda used to prepare the financial statements ortothe financial statements themselves, and other . 
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial
statements as a whole. The introductory and stadadnm| sections have not been subjected to the auditing -- 
pronedu/ es applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, socordinQly, we do not express an  
opinion orprovide any assurance unthem. 

Respectfully submitted, 

John Womack 0Company, PI. 
April 26, 2013
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MANAGEMENT' S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This section of the City of K.ingsville' s ( City) annual financial report presents management' s
discussion and analysis ( MD&A) of the City' s financial performance during the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2012. The MI3& A should be read in conjunction with the transmittal letter
found in the Introductory Section of this report and the City' s Financial Statements which follow
this section, 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The assets of the City exceeded its liabilities by $ 29. 8 million. 

The fund balance of the General Fund increased from $ 10. 4 million to $ 10. 7 million. 

This represents a 3. 0%d increase over the prior year' s fund balance, and finihermore, 
represents 69. 0% of the $ 15. 5 million in expenditures. The General Fund' s Unassigned
Fund Balance was $ 5. 6 million, or 36.2% of general fund expenditures. 

Total assets, were $66.8 million; total liabilities were $37.0 million. 
The ratio of total assets to total liabilities for governmental activities was 2. 17 times; for
business -type activities the ratio was 1. 59 times. 
The quick ratio ( current assets to current liabilities) was 4.217 times for governmental
activities and 3. 92 times for business -type activities. 
Total net assets were $ 29.8 million, which was an increase from $ 27. 2 million for the

prior year, or about 9. 5%. Governmental activities' net assets increased by 1. 0%, while

business -type activities net assets increased by 21. 23%. 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This annual report consists of management discussion and analysis ( this section), the basic

financial statements, and supplementary information. Figure A- 1 demonstrates the relationships
among the components of this annual report. 

The basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 

The government -wide financial statements provide both long-term and short-term
information about the City' s overall financial status. These statements are presented for

both governmental activities and business - type activities. They are designed to provide
readers with a broad overview of the City' s finances, similar to a private -sector business. 
A legally separate component unit ( Kingsville Convention and Visitors Bureau) are also
shown in these statements. 

o The statement o, f' net assets presents information on all of the City' s assets and
liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, 

increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the
financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating. 

o The statement of activities presents information to show how the City' s net assets
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported
as scion as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the
timing of related. cash flows. Both of the government - gide financial statements

distinguish functions of the City that are principally supported by taxes and
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intergovernmental revenues ( governmental activities) from other functions that
are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees
and charges ( business -type activities), 

The fnd financial statements focus on individual parts of the City, reporting the City' s I

operations in greater detail that the government -wide statements. A fund is a grouping of
related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated
for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local governments, uses! 
fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance -related. ' legal
requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into three categories: 
govenimental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, 

o The governmental funds statements shove how general government serviceswere
intheento! -term as as what remains for future spending. The two

majora
areg re the General. Fund and the Debt Service Fund.. 

o Proprietary fund statements offer short- term and long- term financial information
about the activities the City operates like a business: enterprise finds and internal
servicefiarads. The major proprietary fund is the combined Utility System Fund. 

o Fiduciary funds statements provide information about the financial relationships
in which the City acts solely as a trustee or agent for the benefit of others, to
whom the resources belong. Fiduciary punas are used to account for resources
held for the benefit of parties outside the government. Fiduciary funds are not
reflected in the government -wide financial statements because the resources of
those funds are not available to support the City' s own programs. The accounting
used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary fund. 

7

Notes to the financial statements proAde essential additional information to provide a
clear picture of the particular assets, liabilities, or inherent risks. The notes to the

financial statements follow the basic financial statements. 

The financial statements are followed by a section of required supplementary information ( RSI) 
that further explains and supports the information in the financial statements. RSI information
follows the notes to the financial statements. 

i
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Figure A- 1: Required Components of the City' s Annual Financial Deport

F_ 
Management' s Basic Required
Discussion Financial Supplementary

Arid Analysis Statements Information

Government - wide Fund Notes to the
Financial Financial Financial

Statements statements Statements

Summary Detail

Figure A- 1 shows how the required parts of this annual financial report are arranged and relate to

one another. In. addition to these required elements, a section: with combining statements that
provides details about the non -major governmental funds and internal service funds is included. 

More about the City' s Fund Financial Statements: 
Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities except that' the Solid Waste Activity is reported as a business -type
activity in the government -wide financial statements. However, unlike the government - wide

ILS financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and
ouy7ows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the
end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government' s near-term
financing requirements. 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government -wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar

information presented for governmental activities in the government -wide financial statements. 
By doing so, readers may better understand the long- term impact of the government' s near-term
financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to
facilitate this comparison between governmentalfunds and governmental activities. 

Major and non -major funds are presented separately in the governmental fund' s balance sheet
and in the governmental fund' s statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in. fund
balances. The general fund and the debt service fund are presented separately along with the

17
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aggregated ether governmental Funds. Individual fund data for each of these non -major

governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements following the presentation
of the major funds. There are four non -major governmental funds. 

The City adopts an annual operating budget for governmental funds. A budgetary comparison
statement has been provided for these funds to demonstrate compliance with this budget. 

i

More about the City' s Proprietary Funds: 
Two types ofproprietaryfunds are used by the City: 

Enterprise nu  are used to report die same functions resented as bp , f2d p< p uSineSS- ty 3e. activities in the
government -wide financial statements, excluding Solid Waste which is recorded in the General
Fund. The City uses enterprise funds to account for its Utility System, which provides water, 
sewer and garbage services. Proprietary fiends provide the same type of information as the
government -wide financial statements, only.in more detail. 

Internal service rnds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally
among the City' s various functions. The City uses an internal service fund to account for risk
management activities, including insurance for general liabilities, workers' compensation, and
health benefits. Because this coverage predominately benefits governmental rather that business - 
type functions, it has been included within governmental activities in the government -wide
financial statements. 

GOVT ENT -WIDE FINANCIALL ANALYSIS

Net Assets

Net assets serve over time as a useful indicator of the City' s financial position. , At September
2012, the net assets totaled $ 29. 8 million, $ 2. 5 million more than the prior year. The
composition of these net assets is $ 16. 0 million for governmental activities and $ 13. 8 million for

business -type activities, which is comprised primarily of the Combined Utility System. 

1 A large portion of the City' s net assets, 42. 5%, are invested in capital assets ( e. g., land, 

infrastructure, buildings, machinery, and equipment), less any related debt used to acquire those
assets that is still outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; 
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City' s investment
in its, capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to
repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot
be used to liquidate these liabilities, and the City has over 2,5% of its net assets set aside for the
retirement of debt. Approximatety 26.4% of the City' s governmental activities' net assets are
unrestricted in their use for Citi activities, i

I
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Table A- 1: Net Assets for Governmental and Business -type Activities
September 30, 2012 and 2011 ( in thousands of dollars) 

Governmental Activities Business - type Activities Total

2912 2911 2012 2011 2012 2013

Current & other assets S 16, 149 18, 193 S 19, 999 $ 18, 713 S 36, 148 S 36, 946

Capital assets 13, 521 12, 985 17, 292 17, 498 34, 722 34, 483

Total assets 29. 674 31, 178 37, 241 36, 211 66,870 67, 389

Long-term liabilities 9, 924 9, 982 18, 311. 22,396 281, 231 32, 378

Current and Other liabilities 3, 747 5. 353 5, 064 2, 411 8, 811 7, 764

Total liabilities 13, 657. 15, 335 23. 373 24, 807 37, 042 - 40, 142

Net assets 16;003 15, 843 13, 826 11; 444 29; 828 27, 2 7

Net assets

Investment in capital assets

net of related debt 8,642 8, 704 4, 449 3, 399 12, 691 12, 102

Restricted 3, 144. 683 1, 486 1, 403 4,226 2, 086

Unrestricted 4, 222 6,457 8, 694 6, 642 12, 912 13, 459

Total net assets $ 16, 1143 $ 15, 843 S 13. 825 S 11, 444 $ 29, 829 $ 27,2 #7

TABLE A- 1 Governmental -Type Activities

Current & Other .Assets decreased. $ 2. 1 million from $ 18. 2 million_ in FYI I to $ 16. 1 million in
FY12 or 11. 23%. The majority of this decrease is due to the City' s decision to drag down the
Fund Balance closer to the industry standard. of 3 months operating expenditures in its
Unassigned Fund Balance. The City- set aside $ 1. 4 million to finance one-time purchases for

infrastructure, community appearance, software enhancements and other capital outlays. As a
result, capital assets net of accumulated depreciation increased $ 536 thousand from $ 13. 0 in

FY 11 to $ 13. 5 million in FY12 or 4. 13%. Current and other liabilities decreased $ 1. 7 million
from $. 4 in FYI to $ 3. 7 in FY12 or 30,0%. This resulted from the payoff of a TRS

accumulated pension liability in the amount of $795, 045 See Note l on Page 64 for more details. 

As a result of more properly reflecting the restrictions on fund balances, Restricted Net Assets
increased by $2. 5 million from $ 683 thousand in FYI to $ 3. 1 million in FY12 as follows: 

79, 348 increased Federal and State programs

64, 833} decreased Debt Service

35, 501) decreased Capital projects

75, 099 increased Municipal Court Building Security funds
1, 917, 986 increased Law Enforcement

75, 099 increased Municipal Court Building Security Fund
37, 898 increased Municipal Court Technology fund
444, 204 increased Tourism funds ( previously a component unit) 
2, 862 increased Other purposes
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For this same reason, Unrestricted Net Assets decreased $ 2. 3 million from $ 6. 5 million in FYI I
to $ 4.2 million in FY12 or 34. 61%. 

i

TABLE A -I Business - Type Activities

The Combined Utility System' s net assets were $ 13. 8 million, which is 46. 4% of total net assets

and is $ 2. 4 million more than the prior year. The Combined Utility System contributed all of the
total unrestricted business -type net assets. 

Current & Other Assets increased $ 1. 3 million from $ 18. 7 million in FYI I to $ 20.0 million in
FY12 or 6. 87%. Restrictive Cash is up from $ 6.7 million to $ 7.9 million. Due to the recent

engineering Closure J Posh- Closure study there was a release of $2 million. Capital assets net of
accumulated depreciation decreased $ 296 thousand from $ 17. 5 million in FYI I to $ 17.2 million
in FY12 or 1. 69% due to equipment and vehicle retirements, auction sales and annual straight- 
line depreciation costs. 

Scheduled annual debt retirement and the $ 2 million in restatement of Landfill Closure I Post
Closure cost liability caused Long- term liabilities to decrease $ 4. 1 million from $ 22.4 million in
FYI to $ 18. 3 million in FY12 or 18. 24%. Investment in capital assets net of related debt
increased $ 650 thousand from $ 3. 4 in FY11 to $ 4.0 million in FY12 or 19.2% due to FY12
acquisitions. 

Restricted Net Assets decreased $ 317 thousand from $ 1. 4 million in FYI to $ 1. 1 million in
FY12 or 22.59%. Debt Service increased $ 54 thousand from $ 206 thousand in FYI to $ 260
thousand in FY12 or 26.42% due to a planned gradual build- up in debt service fund balance. 
Capital projects decreased $ 372 thousand from $ 1. 2 million in FYI to $ 825 thousand in FY12
or 31. 1% o as acquisition of assets occurred in FYI 2. 

Unrestricted Net Assets increased ;$ 2. 1 million from $ 6. 6 million in FYI I to $ 8. 7 million in
FY12 or 31. 6:% due to the reduction of the Landfill Closure 1 Post Closure cost reduced the
liability and increased unrestricted net assets. 

The City has sufficient funds to meet requirements for cash outlays in the next fiscal year as well
as the financial capacity to meet its long-term obligations. 

i
i
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Ganges in Net Assets

Table - 2 details the City' s change in net assets from the prior year. 

Table A-2: Changes in Net Assets at September 34, 2012 and 2411
in thousands of dollars) 

Governmental Activities Business - type Activities Total

2012 2012 2011 2912 2011

Revenue: 

Program revenue: 

Charges for services S 2, 829 S 3, 409 S 12, 210 S 11, 526 S 15, 039 S 14, 935

Operating grants
and contributions 308 479 - - 308 479

Capital grants

and contributions 20 93 - - 20 93

General revenues, 

Property taxes 5, 992 3, 998 - 5, 992 5, 948

Sales taxes 4,204 4, 3$ 2 - - 4, 204 4, 582

Other taxes 1, 023 1' 028 - - 1, 023 1, 028

Investment earnings 84 87 137 130 ' 221 217

Other 2% - - - 2% 

Total revenues 14, 736 15, 676 12, 347 11, 656 27, 103 27, 332

Expenses: 

General government 3, 286 2, 975 - - 3, 286 2, 975

Public safely 9, 476 9, 145 - - 9, 476 9, 145

Public works 2, 824 2, 521 _ 2, 824 2, 521

Health & ether public secs. 812 801 - - 812 801

Tourism 389 484 - - 389 484

Interest -on long- term debt 333 319 - 333 319

Water and wastewater - - 7; 021 6, 240

Solid waste - - 2, 417 2. 670

7, 021

2.417

6, 240

2, 670

Total expenses 17, 122 16, 245 9,438 8, 910 26, 5fk 25, 155

Increase in net assets

before transfers £ 2, 366 ( 569) 2, 969 2. 746 543 2, 177

Transfers 2, 663 2, 440 ( 2, 663; ( 2, 440) 

Increase ( decrease) in net assets 297 1, 871 246 306 543 2. 177

Net assets, beginning 15, 844 13, 973 11, 403 11, 097 27,247 25, 070

Prier period adjustment lido - 2, 177 - 2, 039

Net assets, ending S t6, 003 $ 13, 84-1 S 13, 826 $ 11. 403 S 29, 828 $ 27, 247

Governmental Activities

As shown in Table A -z, revenues were split between governmental activities and business -type
activities 54. 4% and 45. 6%. respectively, with expenses for each at 64. 5% and 35. 5%. Net

assets increased 1. 0% from the prior period for govenimental activities, increased 21. 2% for
business -type activities, and increased 9. 52% overall. 

The cost of all governmental activities for the fiscal year 2012 was $ 17. 1 million. 
However, the amount that taxpayers paid for these services through City taxes and
business fees was $ 11. 2 million. 
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Some of the coast was paid by; 
o Those who directly benefited from the programs ($ 2. 8 million), and
o Other governments and organizations that subsidized certain programs with grants

and contributions ($328 thousand). 

Charges for services comprised 19. 2% of .governmental activities revenues excluding
transfers and 98. 9% of business -type aetix ties' revenues excluding transfers. 
Taxes contributed 76.0% of governmental activities revenues including transfers.  
Investment earnings, with interest rates,, generated 0. 6%o and 1. 1%  of governmental

activities revenues and business -ty=pe activities, respectively. 
Public Safety ( including Police, Fire, Emergency Management, Municipal Court, and
Inspections) expenses accounted for 55. 3% of governmental activities expenses and

16. 5% of total. expenses were for public works. 

Public Safety required the largest net amount of public funds aftex deducting program
revenue, grants, and contributions. The total subsidy was $ 7.2 million. 
General, government comprises 19.2% of all governmental activities' expenses. 

TABLE A-2 Governmental .Activities

Charges for services revenue decreased $ 580 thousand from $ 3. 4 million in' FYI 1 to $ 2. 8 in
FY12 or 17. 01%. Reduced public safety charges make up $ 510 thousand of the decrease. 
General revenue sales tax decreased `6378 thousand from $ 4.6 million in FY11 to $4.2 million in
FY12 or 8. 25%. In FYI 1 the City received an additional $382 thousand in one-time comptroller
sales tax audit adjustments. In FY12, the City received only an additional $ 10 thousand in one- 
time comptroller audit adjustments. 

Miscellaneous revenues increased from essentially $ 0 in FYI I to $ 296 thousand in FY12. The
majority of the increase, $ 289 thousand, is from a donation from the Kingsville Convention
Visitors Bureau (KCVB) to the City of Kingsville. The KCVB was a component unit of the City
in FY 11 that performed tourism promotion for the City using Hotel Occupancy tax funds. In
August 2012, these activities were transferred bank to the City of Kingsville to be performed in- 
house. 

General government expenses increased $ 311 thousand from $ 3. 4 million in FYI l . to $ 3. 3
million in FY12 or 10.5%. Publicub c Safety expenses increased $331 thousand from $9. 1 rniIlion an  
FYI I to $ 9. 5 million in FY12 or 3. 6%. Fire and Police Department personnel received a 1. 5% 
salary increase in FY12. Public Works expenses increased $ 343 thousand. from $ 2. 5 million, in
FYI 1 to $ 2. 8 million in FY12 or 12. 0% 

The change in net assets before transfers -in was $569 thousand in FYI I, while the change in net
assets before transfers -in, was ($ 2.4 million) in FYI 2, indicating a decrease of $2. 9 million in net
change in net assets from the FYI 1. Transfers increased $ 223 thousand from $ 2.4 million in
FY 11. to $ 2. 7 million in FY 12 or 9. 1 % through the utilization of fund balances to finance one- 
time purchases. 

e 
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TABLE A- 2 Business -Type Activities

Charges for services revenue increased $ 684 thousand from $ 11. 5 million in FYI 1 to $ 12. 2

million in FY12 or 5. 9%. Water and Waste Water sales were up substantially due to drought
conditions combined with 2% water and 4% waste water rate increases in FY12. 

The change in net assets before transfers increased $ 161 thousand from $ 2. 7 million in FYI to

2. 9 in FY12, or 5. 9%. Transfers Out increased $ 223 thousand from $ 2. 4 million in FYI to

2. 7 million in FY12 or 9. 1% due to drawing down the fund balance as designed in the Water
and Waste Water Rate Model. The City had built up about 14 months of operating funds over the
years. As a result, a study was performed, a model was built and rates adopted in a planned draw
down of the excess months over the 3 to 4 months of operating expenses in the fund balance, 
which is a benchmark in the industry. The model is designed to allow for smaller rate increases
over a 5 year period to offset the increased infrastructure replacement and enhancement needs

while reducing the Fund Balance. FY12 is the second year of the 5 year rate model that gradually
increases those rates with an annual average rate increase of 1 to 2% for water and slightly over a
3% annual average rate increase for waste water over the 5 year period. 

Solid Waste expenses decreased $ 253 thousand from $ 2, 670 in FYI I to $ 2, 417 in FY12. Water

and waste water expenses increased $ 781 thousand from $ 6. 2 million in FYI I to $ 7. 0 million in

FY12 or 12. 5%. 

Graph 1 presents the cost of each of the City' s major governmental functions, for FY12, as well
as the associated program revenues. 

Graph 1: Program Revenues to Activity Expenditures
in thousands of dollars
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Graph 2 indicates, in pie chart form, the sources of revenue for governmental activities. As

expected in governmental activities, the subsidy required from taxpayers provides the majority
support to these core services. 
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Graph 2: Revenue by Source — Governmental Activities
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Revenues of the City' s business -type activities are associated with operating activities accounted
for in the Enterprise Funds. Solid Waste activities are recorded in the General Fund but are

shown in the government - wide statement as a business -type activity. 

The Combined Utilities System of water and wastewater accounted for 74. 4% of the expenses

generated for business -type activities, with solid waste accounting for the additional 25. 6%. It

had operating revenues of $ 8. 4 million, operating income of $ 1. 4 million, and income before

transfers of about $ 1. 50 million, with a profit after transfers of $245 thousand for the fiscal year. 

Compared to the 2011 fiscal year, the System' s operating revenues were up by $ 514 thousand, 

the operating income was down by $ 268 thousand and net income after transfers was $ 282

thousand lower. The major causes of these results were: 

Increased operating revenues are the result of an unusually dry spring and summer during
2012 compared to the previous year, which caused water revenues to increase by $ 549

thousand, or 12. 1 % more than the preceding year. 

Wastewater fund revenue was down by $ 35 thousand, or by 1. 0%. 
The operating expenses increased by $ 782 thousand, primarily due to increased
maintenance along with increased depreciation and amortization costs. 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY' S FUNDS

Governmental Funds

Total assets of the General Fund decreased $ 113 thousand from $ 13. 5 million to $ 13. 4

million between FY 2011 and FY 2012. Most of this overall decrease in total assets is

from a decrease in Investments, Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents and Cash
and Cash Equivalents of $ 1. 7 million, a reduction in Due From Other Funds of $ 1. 3

million, a $ 326 thousand increase in Accounts Receivable, and an increase in Restricted

Cash and Cash equivalents of $2. 7 million over the previous Fiscal Year 2011. 
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The City renewed the forgiveness of all Accrued Interest on old Street 'Assessments to
encourage the collection of the principal portion of the assessment. This was conditional

on payment being made in full for the principal over the course of a year. Therefore, 
Accrued Interest Receivable declined by $ 26 thousand, as well as Deferred Revenue by
the same amount. 

Total liabilities of the General Fund decreased by $ 429 thousand to approximately $ 2.7
million, a

13 .

7%a decrease. The majority of the decrease is attributed to a $ 571 thousand
decrease in Current .accounts Payable, a $ 93 thousand increase in Due to Other Funds, a

78 thousand increase in Due to Other Governments, and a $ 41 thousand reduction in
Deferred Revenue for Fiscal Year 2012 compared to Fiscal Year 2011. This brings the

ratio of total assets to total liabilities to 4.96 times in 2012, up from 4. 32 in 2011. 
See on page 27 the Budgetary Results of the General Fund section for more details on the
General Fund revenues and expenditures resulting in a General Fund Excess of revenues
over expenditures before other financing sources. 
The General Fund, Unassigned Fund balance decreased $ 287 thousand in Fiscal Year

2012 to $ 5.6 million from $ 5.9 million in Fiscal Year 2011. The Committed Fund

Balances for Landfill Closure / Post Closure increased by $ 284 thousand and $ 561

thousand for Capital Outlays. The overall Fund Balance increased $ 315 thousand from
10.4 million in FY 2011 to $ 10.7 million in FY 2012. 

Police Forfeiture Funds

Total assets of the Police Forfeiture Fund increased $ 277 thousand from $ 4. 8 million to

5. 1 million between Fiscal Year 2011 and Fiscal Year 2012. Most of this overall

increase in total assets is from the netting of decreased: Cash and Cash Equivalents of
514 thousand, and increased restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents of $822 thousand as

compared to the previous Fiscal Year 2011. 

Total liabilities of the Police Forfeiture Fund increased by $ 1. 1 million from $2. 3 million
in Fiscal Year 2011 to $ 3. 4 million in Fiscal Year 2412. This brings the quick ratio
current assets to current liabilities) to 1. 49 in Fiscal Year 2012 from 2.48 in FY 2411. 

This fund still had $ 822 thousand in unsettled seizures, at FY 2012, an increase of $47

thousand, and Due to Other Funds of $ 2. 2 million for FY 2012, which was up $ 1. 2
million from FY 02011. 
The Police Forfeiture Fund revenues dropped $ 715 thousand or 45. 11% from $ 1. 5

million in FY 2011 to $ 871 thousand in FY 2412. Chapter 59 seizures and resulting
awards were down as criminals continue to change their strategy of moving money and
the U. S. Highway 77 corridor becomes more concentrated with larger numbers of federal, 
state and local law enforcement personnel. The Police Forfeiture Fund expenditures
stayed about the same at $ 1. 5 million for both fiscal. years. 

L • 
The Police Forfeiture Fund' s Unassigned Fund balance decreased. by $829 thousand from
approximately $ 2. 5 million in Fiscal Year 2011 to $ 1. 7 million in Fiscal Year 2012. In

Fiscal Year 2012 there was a $ 138 thousand prior period adjustment, relating to FY 2011. 
The prior period adjustment is to correct for a couple of seizure cases that were recorded
as awarded in. Fiscal Year 2011 that were actually awarded in Fiscal Year 2012. 
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Debt Service Fund

The Debt Service Fund Balance increased $ 79 thousand from about $ 655 thousand in
Fiscal Year 2011 to $ 734 thousand in Fiscal Year 2012. This was an increase of 12. 1%. 

The City has implemented a strategy to build up the Debt Service Fund Balance to
safeguard against adverse econoimic times that could occur in the future as a conservative

measure. This is balanced with structuring the Debt Service Fund. Balance to minimize
the balance being carried to no more than required for the cash flaw necessary to service
the City' s debt. 

Capital improvement Fund
i

Total assets of the Capital Improvement Fund decreased $ 1. 3 million from $ 5. 0 million
to $ 3. 7 million between Fiscal ' Years 20111 and 2012. Most of this overall decrease in
total assets is the result of the Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents dropping $ 1. 1

million from $4. 8 million in Fiscal Year 2011 to $3. 7 million in Fiscal Year 2012 paying
for capital project construction: 

Total liabilities of the Capital Improvements decreased by $20 thousand to approximately
661 thousand, a 3. 0% decrease. The majority of the decrease is attributed to a $ 68

thousand decrease in Current , accounts Payable, and a $ 47 thousand increase in Due to
Other Funds for Fiscal Year 2012 compared to Fiscal Year 2011. This brings the ratio of
total assets to total liabilities to 5, 64 times in Fiscal Year 2012. 
The Capital Improvement Fund Restricted Fund Balance decreased by,$ 1. 3 million. 
For more details on the Certificate of Obligations see Note H beginning. on ,page 61. 

I Other Governmental Funds

Total assets of the Other Governmental Funds increased $ 247 thousand from $ 480
thousand to $ 727 thousand between Fiscal Years 2011 and Fiscal Year 2012. Equity in
Pooled Cash and Cash equivalents was $ 94 thousand more with Restricted Cash and
Cash equivalents increasing $ 245 thousand., This increase is the result of the $ 289

thousand donation by the Kingsville Convention and ' Visitor' s Bureau of their unspent
Hotel Occupancy Tax balance when their board decided in August of 2012 to discontinue
future tourism promotional services for the City. 
Total liabilities of the Other Governmental Funds decreased by $ 194 thousand to

approximately $ 276 thousand, a 41. 34% decrease. The majority of the decrease is
attributed to a $114 thousand decrease in Due to Other Funds. 

I 

26



Budgetary Results of the General Fund

General Fund taxes and business fee revenues were $ 9. 8 million, which was $ 314 thousand or
3. 32% above the final budget. Ad Valorem Delinquent taxes and penalties and interest revenues
were $ 62 thousand or 82. 87% and $ 68 thousand or 236. 57% respectively above budget. The City
usually budgets these estimated revenues very low to adjust for possible anomalies that might
occur in the collection process. Sales Tax Revenue was $ 184 thousand or 4.6% above budget. 

Electric Franchise revenue was $ 44 thousand or 6. 54% higher than the final budget. - These

positive variances are the result of conservative budgeting and a surge in the local economy
resulting from increased activity in the tail and Gas industry. 

Fines and Forfeitures revenue was less than the Final Budget for Fiscal Year 2012 by $ 155

thousand or 22. 26%. Most of this unfavorable Budget to Actual variance is attributed to a
shortfall in Municipal Court Fines expected revenue. In Fiscal Year 2012, there was an

additional $ 282 thousand budgeted for Municipal Court Fines than in Fiscal Year 2011. This
expected revenue increase was anticipated based on the' hiring of a full- time warrant officer and
managerial restructuring in the department. The warrant officer was hired later in the fiscal year
and the implementation of neve initiatives in compliance and warrant collection were not

L
implemented as expected. 

Total Charges for Sanitation Services revenues were $ 149 thousand or 3. 45% more than the final

L budget. Sanitation Services Garbage Fees were higher than the final budget by $ 68 thousand, or
about 2. 21% of the Final Budget for Fiscal year 2012. Sanitation Services Landfill Fees were
higher than the final budget by $53 thousand, or about 9.41% of the Final Budget for Fiscal year

L2012. This resulted from budgeting conservatively, updating sanitation revenue ordinances, and
adjusting marketing strategies throughout the fiscal year. 

City pe pe than the final budget by $ 50 thousand. ThisCi Special Services expenditures were lower
favorable budget variance is mainly the result of less Claims Paid against the City expenditures
because less than normal claims and deductible amounts were needed for the fiscal year. This
favorable budget ,variance is made up of several small individual contributing line4tems, the
largest of which is $ 15 thousand Kleberg County Golf Course expenditure. 

LCommunity Appearance Services expenditures were louver than the final budget by $ 46

thousand. This was the result of a $ 37 thousand budget increase for additional services not

needed before fiscal year end. The largest of these services was a $ 30 thousand budget

Lamendment for web -site design. The web -site design project did not get underway until Fiscal
Year 2013. 

LFire Department Total expenditures were lower than the final budget by $ 170 thousand. Of this

amount, $ 125 thousand of the positive variance is related to Personal Services for the Fire
Department, or about 5. 25% of the Fire Department Personal Services final budget. Police
Department total expenditures were also lower than the final budget by $ 221 thousand. Of this

i
amount, $ 89 thousand is related to Personal Services for the Police Department or about 2. 42% 
of the Police Department Personal Services final budget. In Fiscal Year 2012, both of theseL departments Personal Services were budgeted conservatively. The City budgets at 100% of the
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City of Kingsville Compensation Plan. In both departments, employee turnover is offset by
retirement pay -of (Haat cannot always be planned in advance). The final result was a positive
variance for this fiscal year. The rather expenditures in these departments were also
conservatively budgeted with managerial oversight contributing to the positive variances, I

Street Department Total expenditures were lower than the final budget by $ 345 thousand or
17. 27%. The majority of this came from Personal Services and Street and Bridge Maintenance
expenditures. Of this amount, $$5 thousand is from. Personal Services for the Street Department

1
or about 11. 6% of the 'Street Department Personal Services final budget. This positive variance is
due to budgeting at full staff and experiencing turnover in the department. The downside is the
City is experiencing considerable turnover in labor competing with the Oil and Gas Industry. 
Street Department Street and Bridge Maintenance expenditures were lower than the final budget
by $ 195 thousand or 32. 23%. Street Maintenance projects were budgeted but not completed until
Fiscal Year 2013. 

Landfill Department Total expenditures were lower than the final budget by $ 233 thousand or k23. 99°x"0. The majority of this came from a $ 124 thousand variance in Capital Outlays and a $ 48
thousand variance in Services expenditures. The Capital Outlay savings is from a $ 134 thousand
Landfill expansion project that was not started by fiscal year end. This was offset by a $ 10
thousand loss on the sale of an asset that was not budgeted. 

General Fund total revenues came in $334 thousand or 2. 2% above the final budget. The General
Fund expenditures came in at $ 1. 4 million, or 8. 2% below the find budget. These two favorable
variances combined ( excluding the $ 44 thousand Other Financing Sources Gain on the Disposal
of an Asset) for a net favorable variance of $ 1. 7 million.. Actual Expenditures exceeded
Revenues, before Transfers, by $446 thousand. 

Budget Amendments of the General Fund

Sanitation Services for Garbage Fees Revenue was amended up $ 44 thousand due to the original
budget being conservatively estimated. This budget adjustment in the expected revenue was used
to finance an increase in fuel and vehicle maintenance. Sanitation Services Landfill Fees
Revenues was amended up $ 47 thousand due to the original budget being conservatively
estimated. This budget adjustment in the expected revenue was used to finance an increase in
fuel and vehicle maintenance. 

Financial Service Capital Outlays was amended up by $ 76 thousand for an upgrade of the time 1
clock and attendance management system, and Collections . Accounts Receivable package. City
Administration Department City Special Other Service Expenditures was amended up $ 33

thousand to assist l. leberg County with Golf Course utility costs. 

Planning Department Building Maintenance Expenditures for corridor landscaping programs and
community cleanup and demolition was amended up by $ 47 thousand. Community . Appearance
Services Expenditures for contracted personal service was amended up by $ 25 thousand for

website enhancement and an additional $ 25 thousand for Building Maintenance Expenditures for
the dumpster enclosure pilot program. The Recycling Center Building Maintenance Expenditures

i
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was amended up $ 33 thousand for replacement of sidewalks and exterior building repairs. The
building was eventually repurposed and converted to the center for Community Appearance
services. 

Police Department Personal Services Expenditures was amended down $ 77 thousand. These

expenditures were originally budgeted conservatively. As a: result, this budget amendment
provided a $43 thousand increase in funding for a CRIMES software maintenance agreement in
the Police Department Services Expenditures. in addition, this budget amendment assisted in
financing most of the funding needed for a $43 thousand increase in the Police Department for
signage, building, repairs, and landscaping. During Fiscal Year 2011- 12, the Police Department
Supplies expenditures budget was amended up $ 89 thousand for the purchase of body armor. 
The Fire Department Supplies budget was amended up $ 67 thousand for fuel, supplies, hunker

gear and laptops for the ambulances. Operating Transfers Out was amended up $ 100 thousand

for upgrades to Station #2. 

Public Works . administration Building Maintenance was amended up $ 58 thousand for the

public works yard fence, electric gate opener, canopy over the gas pumps, and a catwalk to the
trucks. Also in this department, the Capital Outlay budget was amended up $ 24 thousand for a
welding shed. The Garage Department Capital Outlay budget was amended up $ 36 thousand for
a vehicle purchase. 

The Sanitation Department Personal Services Expenditures were amended down $ 23 thousand

due to the original budget being conservatively budgeted and re -appropriated to finance vehicle
and machinery repairs in the department. Supplies Expenditures was amended up $ 62 thousand
for fuel, supplies and dumpsters. Equipment Maintenance Expenditures was amended up $ 71

thousand for vehicle and machinery maintenance. Capital Outlay Expenditures was amended up
236 thousand for vehicle and equipment purchases. Landfill Department Capital Outlay

Expenditures was amended up $223 thousand for landfill expansion and equipment costs. 

Engineering Department Services Expenditures was amended up $ 29 thousand for assisting
Texas A & M University -Kingsville with the Kleberg Avenue Engineering design project. Street
Department Street and Bridge Maintenance Expenditures was amended up $ 527 thousand for

street repairs and drainage projects. 

Additional information on the City' s Original Budget to Final Budget and Final Budget to .Actual
can be found on Exhibit B- 1, pages 78- 85. 

Non -major Governmental Funds

Four special revenue funds comprise this portion of the financial statements. Total assets for the
combined funds were $ 727 thousand, total liabilities were $ 276 thousand, and total fund

balances were $ 451 thousand, with $ 2 thousand in Assigned Fund Balance and $ 449 thousand in
Restricted Fund Balance. 

The Tourism Fund makes up 63. 61110 of the special revenue funds total assets. The main source of
funding for the Tourism Fund is from Hotel Motel Occupancy ' Taxes. Another significant
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portion, 31. 6%, of these special funds is for Federal Grants. Each of the special revenue funds
are maintained separately because of specialrovisions for the receipt and expenditurenditure cifp funds

in compliance with Federal or State laws or regulations and the City' s bond ordinances, or other
City Commission actions. 

CAPITAL ASSET .AND DEBT  D ISTRATIOi'N

Table .A-3: Capital Assets (net ofdepreciation) at September 30, 2012 and 2011
In thousands of dollars) 

Govvemmentat.Activities B_usines• Activities
I

Change % Change

2012 2411 11. 12 2012 2011 11- 12

Land $ 469 469 0.00 352 $ 352 0. 00% 

Building and improvements 1, 786 1,850 - 3% 12, 660 13, 575 - 6.74% 
Equipment 712 607 17. 23, 1,967 1, 194 64. 71% 

Vehicles 2, 491 2, 662 - 6.42% 1, 937 1, 811 6. 92%. 

Road network 7, 129 7, 397 - 3. 62% - 0, 00% 

Construction in progress 934 - 2.86 566 - 49.48% 

100. 00% 

Total 13, 521 $ 12, 985 4. 13% $ 17,202 $ 17, 498 - 1.69% 

As shown in. Table A-3, at. September- 30, .2+012, the City had invested $ 30. 7 million ( net of

depreciation) in a broad range of capital assets, including police and fire equipment, buildings, 
parr facilities, roads and bridges, and its.utility system. 

TABLE - 3 Governmental Activities

Construction in progress increased $ 934 thousand from $ 0 in FYI to $ 934 in FY12. with the
start of projects funded with Certificate of Obligations. 

TABLE A-3 Business -type Activities

Building and improvements decreased $ 915- thousand from $ 13. 6 million in FYI l to $ 12. 7 1
million in FY12 or 6.7% as the result of normal depreciation and retirements. Equipment
increased $ 773 thousand from $ 1. 2 million in FYI I to $ 2. 0 million in FY12 or 64. 74%. 
Construction in progress decreased $ 280 thousand from $ 566 thousand. in F11 to $ 236
thousand in FY12 or.49. 47% as construction projects were completed. 

Additional information on the City' s Capital Assets can be found on Note E. page 59-60 of the
Notes to the Financial Statements. 
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Table A- 4: Long -Term Liabilities at September 30, 2012 and 2011
in thousands of dollars) 

Long- term Debt

Table A- 4 indicates that total long- term debt decreased by $ 1. 8 million from Fiscal Year 2011 to

Fiscal Year 2012 or 5. 6%. Of that, landfill closure costs increased $ 100 thousand or 5. 18%, 

while compensated absences decreased 7. 2%. Certificates of Obligation decreased $ 1. 7 million

whicb, is a 6. 27% reduction from the previous Fiscal Year. Other Post - Employment Benefits

increased by $ 155 thousand. Total debt outstanding at fiscal year- end was $ 27. 4 million, down
from $ 29. 2 million for the prior year. 

In addition, there were overall reductions of $ 1. 9 million in certificates of obligation bonds and
revenue bonds ( Combined Utility System) through scheduled principal payments. Governmental
Activities certificate of obligations had $ 657 thousand in debt reduction and the Business— type

had a reduction. of $ 1. 3 million in certificate of obligations and revenue bonds. Additional
information on the City' s Long - Term Obligations can be found on Note H, Item # 1- 4, and pages

61- 64 of the Notes to the Financial Statements. 

The FY 201. 1- 2012 tax rates were $ 0. 63752 for the General Fund and $ 0. 20468 for the Debt

Service Fund, totaling $ 0. 84220 per $ 100 of assessed value. Therefore, the City' s tax margin of
1. 65780 per $ 100 of assessed value could increase taxes $ 11. 3 million each year based on the

assessed value of $ 683, 253, 635. A brief discussion of the ad valorem tax, limitations of the

Constitution of the State of Texas and the City Charter are found in Note A, Item #
3 )

b, page 53 of

the Notes to the Financial Statements. 
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Goveffmntal Activities Business - type Activities Total

2012 20 1̀1 2012 2011 2012 2011

Certificates of obligation S 8, 899 S 9, 556 S 17, 401 $ 18, 504 $ 26, 300 $ 28,060

Capital Leases 85 Ito 85 110

Other post -employment benefits 807 683 217 186 1. 024 869

Net Pension Obligation

Revenue bonds payable 190 190

Total debt 9, 790 10, 3349 17, 618 18, 880 27, 408 29, 229

Compensated absences 851 916 61 1 67 912 983

Landfill closure cost 2,031 1, 931 2,031 1, 931

Total long-term debt S $ 10, 641 $ 11, 265 S $ 19, 710, $ 20,878 S 530,351 - S 532, 143

Long- term Debt

Table A- 4 indicates that total long- term debt decreased by $ 1. 8 million from Fiscal Year 2011 to

Fiscal Year 2012 or 5. 6%. Of that, landfill closure costs increased $ 100 thousand or 5. 18%, 

while compensated absences decreased 7. 2%. Certificates of Obligation decreased $ 1. 7 million

whicb, is a 6. 27% reduction from the previous Fiscal Year. Other Post - Employment Benefits

increased by $ 155 thousand. Total debt outstanding at fiscal year- end was $ 27. 4 million, down
from $ 29. 2 million for the prior year. 

In addition, there were overall reductions of $ 1. 9 million in certificates of obligation bonds and
revenue bonds ( Combined Utility System) through scheduled principal payments. Governmental

Activities certificate of obligations had $ 657 thousand in debt reduction and the Business— type

had a reduction. of $ 1. 3 million in certificate of obligations and revenue bonds. Additional
information on the City' s Long - Term Obligations can be found on Note H, Item # 1- 4, and pages

61- 64 of the Notes to the Financial Statements. 

The FY 201. 1- 2012 tax rates were $ 0. 63752 for the General Fund and $ 0. 20468 for the Debt

Service Fund, totaling $ 0. 84220 per $ 100 of assessed value. Therefore, the City' s tax margin of
1. 65780 per $ 100 of assessed value could increase taxes $ 11. 3 million each year based on the

assessed value of $ 683, 253, 635. A brief discussion of the ad valorem tax, limitations of the

Constitution of the State of Texas and the City Charter are found in Note A, Item #
3 )

b, page 53 of

the Notes to the Financial Statements. 
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TABLE A-4 Governmental Activities

Certificates of obligation decreased $ 657 thousand from $ 9. 6 million in FYI l to $ 8. 9 million in
FYI'.,'. or 6. 9% through the utilization of cash. Other past -employment benefits increased $ 124
thousand from. $ 683 thousand in FYI I to $ 807 thousand in FYI or 18. 16% due to the current
year addition. 

TABLE A-4 Business -type Activities I

Certificates of obligation decreased :from $ 18. 5 million in FYI 1 to $ 17. 4 in FY12 a difference of
1. 1 million, or 5. 95% due to normal pay down. The only remaining Revenue Bond Payable was ' 

paid off resulting in a decrease of $ 190 thousand from $ 190 in FY 11 to ,$0 in FY 12. Landfill
Closure costs increased $ 100 thousand from $ 1. 9 million in FYI I to $ 2. 0 million in FY12, or
4. 93% as the result of a new" engineering study. 

Bond Ratings

The City' s bond ratings from two rating agencies were reaffirmed or maintained in fiscal year
2012. The unenhanced bond ratings for general obligation bonds were maintained at Al from

oody' s Investors Service, Inc. ( Moody' s) and reaffirmed A.+ from Standard & Poor' s Ratings
iService ( S& P). The City no longer has revenue bonds outstanding, and therefore does not

maintain revenue bond ratings. 

FISCAL YEAR 2012. 2013 ADOPTED OPERATING BUDGET

Total Revenues and Expenditures budgeted for FY 2012- 2013 are $ 31, 781, 395 and $ 37, 906, 525, 
respectively. The $ 6, 125, 130 difference between expenditures and revenues is due mostly to
drawing down fund balances to complete capital, projects, the largest portion of which are for
projects financed by Certificates of Obligation ( C.4.' s) 

BUDGET OVERVIEW

The City' s budget circumstances continued in a positive direction due to a strong local economy; 
posiuve ongoing effects of City Commission policy decisions, and a history of annual budgetary
surpluses that have generated sufficient operating fund balances. As a result, the adopted FY
2013 budget included: 

1. Employee compensation increases and compensation plan adjustments
2. Six employee additions ( three from new Tourism Services Department) 
3. Capital equipment additions
4. Street and other infrastructure repairs and upgrades
5: Special, cine -time purchases using remaining and projected FY2011 and FY2012 budget

surpluses. 

6. Special, one- time deposits to the Self-insurance Fund to minimize future health insurance
costs while beeping employee and dependent costs at existing levels. 

7. No proposed increase to the City' s combined property tax rate at $. 84220/ $ 100 assessed
value. 
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The net deficits for FY2012 and FY2013 are not generally attributed to the . +City' s basic
operations resulting instead from planned expenditures anddrain dawn ofbond proceeds
Certificates of Obligation) and accumulated operating surpluses from previous years. 

Self -Insurance Fund Shortfall
During FY2011 and FY2012 the City overcame two financial obligations using one- time sources
of funding. These obligations included a $747, 261 pension shortfall. The funding source the City
used to satisfy these obligations was the FY2011 budgetary surplus. Utilizing the FY2011
surplus in this manner avoided immediate increases to the City' s minimum required pension
contributions. 

Large dollar medical claims and other health care cast increases are causing the City to
I determine, once again, how best to deal with an actuarially -determined funding shortfall in the
L— City' s Self -Insurance Fund. This shortfall, if not addressed, will cause the City' s and possibly

employees' annual health insurance costs to increase. To counter this, the FY 2013 budget has a
one- time deposit to the Self -Insurance Reserve Fund of $574, 576 including a small " cushion" 

intended to mitigate the effects of near- term health care cost increases. The $ 574, 576 amount

comes from the following sources:( 1) $ 277, 510 from the General Fund using the FY 2412

L budget surplus, ( 2) $ 204, 775 from the General Fund using FY 2013 excess property tax
accumulations transferred from the Debt Service Fund, ( 3) $ 69, 938 from Utility Fund operating
revenue, and ( 4) $ 17,353 from Task Farce revenues. 

In order to reduce the Debt Service Fund balance to a more appropriate and necessary level, the
City adopted a budget with a one-year (FY201.3 only) increase to the General Fund tax rate with
an offsetting decrease to the Debt Service Fund tax rate. The City' s total tax rate for FY2013 is
proposed to remain unchanged at $. 84220 per $ 100 assessed valuation. 

L
Compensation Plan and Personnel adjustments

FY2013 expenditures for personnel services are proposed to increase $ 1, 353, 697 ( 9. 7%) from

13, 876, 848 in FY2012 to $ 15, 230,545 in FY2013. Approximately one-half the increase, 
690, 198 is from employee salaries, wages, overtime, longevity, etc... with the balance of
663, 499 generated from employee benefits as follows. 

A. Scheduled Step increases for Fire and Police totaled $ 118, 325; an increase of 8. 7%. 
B. Civil Service support for Fire and Police increases rose 5. 2% to $70,270. 

C. Cost of Living Adjustments were budgeted at 1. 5% for all remaining staff and resulted in
an increase of $51, 347, which equates to a 5. 2% increase from the prior year. 

D. The City added the Tourism department which brought about additional budget
requirements of $302, 588; a 22. 4% increase overall. 

E. Compensation Plan adjustments increased 27. 4%Q to $ 371, 022. 
F. Self -Insurance Fund supplements rose 42. 4% to $ 574,576. 
G. Texas Municipal Retirement Systems ( TMRS) increased $ 75, 724 ( 5. 6%) 
H. Other -Not Specifically Identified accumulated to $ 58, 757, a 4. 3% increase. 
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Capital Outlays

City staff capital outlay requests for FY'2013

totaled $ 4,275, 132; of which $ 3, 855, 132 was
approved. All FY 2013 capital outlay requests were approved with one modification. Due to the
significant cost of the trash compactor, $ 420,000, the City Commissioner' s approved leasing the
equipment for seven years at approximately $56,000 per year instead of purchasing it: Spreading
the cost over seven years makes it affordable on an annual basis. Landfill expansion is to
continue with projected costs of $ 191, 767 remaining to be paid with Landfill ` fees and CO
Bonds. The Water Well 19 Pump House was budgeted for $ 200, 000, with costs being covered
by water fees. A 500,000 gallon elevated water tower has a budget of $1, 076,250. The 2011
Certificates of Obligation, along with water fees, will fund the project as well as the new water
well # 25}. A secondary clarifier for the city' s south plant will cost $ 977,620 and Bar Screen

171, 422) will be funders, by waste water fees and the 2011 C. t3.' s. Smaller CIP projects
totaling $ 293, 073 will come from surplus funds ($ 243

0733) and state asset seizures ($ 50, 000).' 

I Proposed Street Improvements
City staff submitted street improvement project requests totaling $ 809, 104, all of which were
approved. All street improvement projects are budgeted and paid for from Fund 065 - 2011
Certificate of Obligation bond proceeds. 

Proposed Expenditure of FY2i1p p l i. Al'+isa Fit'2412 Budget Surpluses
The availability and use of FY2011 actual and F'Y2012 estimated budget surpluses in F'Y2013, 
eases the task of preparing FY2013 budgets. However, because the City cannot be certain that
annual budget surpluses will continue year -after -year, use of these surpluses continue to be
limited to one-time or periodic expenditures as follows. 

Several projects totaling $ 609, 169 were approved for funding from the General Fund' s Capital
Surplus. 

7

For more details on the City of Kingsville FY 2012- 2013 Adopted Budget, visit the city web -site
referenced below. 

I
CITY' S FINANCIAL NLkNAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide the City Commission, citizens, taxpayers, customers, 
bondholders, creditors, and other governmental sectors with a general overview of the City' s
financial condition and to demonstrate the City' s accountability for the funds it receives. 

Ifou havey any questions about this report or need.. additional information, contact: 

The City of Kingsville
Director of Finance

P.U. Box 1458
Kingsville, Texas 78364

361) 595- 8009 ( phone) ( 361) 595- 8035 ( fay) 
or visit our web site at: wwwci &v kiNg.willecom
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EXHIBIT Awl

Chit OF KINaGSVILLE
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

i

Governmental Business -type

Activities Activities Total

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents $ 
7, 566, 416 $ 9, 750, 054 11, 316,466

Equity in pooled cash and cash equivalents
2;208,319 2, 195, 729 4,404, 048

Receivables ( net of allowances for uncollectibles): 
Taxes

1, 303;161. 1, 303, 161

Accounts
494, 375 1, 639.240 2, 133,615

Accrued Interest
4,238 2, 721 6, 959; 

Internal Balances 3, 872, 326) 3,872,326

Clue from other governments 312,179 312, 179

inventory, at cosi
208, 105 286, 437 494, 542

Restricted assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents
7,620,424 7,9617885 15, 582, 909

L Equity in pooled cash and cash equivalents
170,675 170,675

Accounts
125, 381 125, 381

Long-term assets: 
Bond issuance costs 133, 604 165,252 298, 856

Land and construction in progress 1, 443, 144 638,441 2,041, 545

Capital assets net of related depreciation 12117 598 16, 563, 140 28,680. 738
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LIABILITIES

Accounts payabie 1, 220,095 494,458 1, 714,553

Accrued wages payable - 131, 736 22, 102 153,838

Payable from restricted assets: 
2,23,039 2,243, 039

Bank overdraft
Accrued interest payable 53,214 113, 475 166, 689

Customer deposits 1, 018, 703 724, 032 1, 742,735

Due to: 

Ctlzergovemmerrts 512, 455 1, 217 513,572

Others
293 293

Unearned revenues
11, 405 11, 405

Liabilities due within one year: 
Accumulated unpaid compensated absences 226, 680 38, 500 265,184

Leases payable 27, 010 27, 010

Contractual obligations payable 545, 152 1, 427,518 1; 972,670

Liabilities due beyond one year. 
Accumulated unpaid compensated absences 623,897

57, 637

22, 631 646, 528

57, 637
Leases payable

Accrued other post -employment benefits 806, 509 217,053 1, 023,562

Contractual obligations payable 8, 354, 092 15,973,234 24, 327, 326

Premium on bonds 77, 946 66, 840 144, 746

Landfill closure costs
2,031, 027 2,031, 027

Total Liabilities
13,666,824 23,375;486 37,441, 910

I
L

NET ASSETS

invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 8; 641; 553 4, 049, 345 12, 690, 898

Restricted For: , 
79, 348 79, 348

Federal and State Programs
478, 573 261, 056 739, 629

Debt Service
Capital Projects 103, 960 825, 169 929,129

Municipal Court Security 75, 099

1, 917, 986

75, 099

1, 917, 986
Law Enforcement

Municipal Court Technology
37,898 37, 898

L Tourism
444,204 444,204

Other Purposes 2, 862

4,221, 605. 8, 689, 906

2, 862

12,911 511
Unrestricted

r .... T 
It Y r,,f t^.rr.. r . Y.' w:..• f Yf<. fl, YFjf rfjHrr.. J f b fly; t1!-+- s"G Z •: '. , 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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I

CITY OF KINGSVILLE
STATEMENT t7FACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

f
i

i
j

Program ` Revenues

Operating capital 7
Charges for Grants and Grants and

Functions/ Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions

Primary Government
General government and administration 3, 285, 875 $ 265, 724 57, 648

Public safety 9, 475, 608 1, 975, 762 256, 858 19, 700

Public works 2, 823, 707 23, 470
i CitylCounty 811, 546 21, 581
i Tourism 389,259 542,582

Interest on long-term debt 335, 136 ' -- 

Total Government Activities 17, 121, 131 2, 829, 119 308, 366, 19, 700

Business - type Activities: 

t Water Improvement 4,570, 338 5,064, 986

Solid Waste 2,417,443 3,815,313

Wastewater

Total business - type Activities

2,451, 466 3,329,276

9,439, 247. 12, 209, 575

Total Primary Government 26, 568, 378 $ 15, 038: 694 19, 700

General Revenues: 

Property Taxes
Sates Taxes

Franchise Taxes

Bingo Taxes

Alcoholic Beverage Taxes

Unrestricted Investment Earnings

Miscellaneous Income

Transfers

Total General Revenues and Transfers f
t J 1V- 1' • J JJJ . f> J ' f Jf J J > 

Yr qq} Yf, r yr r}fY y.`+Y f) r r,.r r4rr r r r r, 

ONO, r Je4, fff. f> :..> fJJf_. JJ>. 4 Jr fr,.rJ+'Jf. r.+r>.JrrGGbri. hYin.:>..... 

Net Assets - Beginning
f. 4.•...:: f.;:: Jr. 

Prior Period Adjustment

Net Assets - Ending

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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EX131B( T A- 2

Net ( Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets

Governmental Business -type

Activities Activities Total

t

L$ 2, 962, 643) 2,962, 843) 
7, 229, 288) 7, 229, 288) 

2, 800, 237) 2, 800, 237) 

789, 965) 789, 965) 

153, 323 153, 323

335, 136) 335, 136) 

13, 963, 946) 13, 963, 94

6
494,648 494, 648

1, 397, 870 1, 397, 870

877, 810 877, 810

2, 770, 328 2, 770, 323

13, 963, 946) 2, 770, 325 11, 193, 618) 

5, 991, 693 5, 991, 693
4,204,521 4, 204, 521

977, 459

4,422

977, 459

4, 422

41, 281 41, 281

83, 886 137, 410 221, 296

295, 794 295, 794

2,662, 642 2, 662, 842) 

14,261, 8r9.{8 2,525j, 4y332)^ 11, 73 6, 46_$6, 

15, 8430269 11, 403, 875 27,247, 144
138, 133) 2, 176, 705 2, 038, 572

16, 003, 088 13, 825 4766 29, 828, 564

L
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i

CITY OF KINGSVILLE
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

j SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Police
General Forfeiture

Fund Fund
ASSETS

Assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 6, 252, 802 3, 466, 900
Equity in pooled cash and cash equivalents 14; 77& - 
Receivables ( net of allowances for uncollectibles): 

Taxes 1, 280, 329
Accounts 796, 151 401

Assessments 68, 619
Accrued Interest 6, 959

Due from: 

Other funds 854, 25 3

Other governments 85, 884

Inventory, at cost 268, 105
Restricted assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 3,678,264 1, 597,962
Equity in pooled cash and cash equivalents 75, 599 37,898
Accounts 125, 381

j

r.f,  , r.,,:.,.... r. .,• t:: ..,..,. r Yr Jr irir  irr. r Srrr pyrr.r. e yyyy.. '# 

II
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Liabilities: 

Accounts payable $ 896, 138 2.8, 204

Accrued swages payable 122, 388 9, 348

Payable from restricted assets: j
Customer deposits 822, 844

Due to: 
Other funds 1, 077,991 2,244,734
Cather governmenis 177, 048 316, 997
Others 293

Deferred revenues 444, 275

Total Liabilities 2, 712, 133 3, 422, 127

Equity: 
Fund balances: 

Nonspendable: 

Inventory 208,,164

Resricied: 

Debt service

Capital outlay 49, 738

Municipal court building security 75, 099

Municipal court technology 37, 898
Law enforcement 1, 643,138
Tourism

Federal and stateprograms

Community Enrichment
Committed: 

Landfill 3, 909, 340

Sanitation capital outlay 288, 299

Capital outlay 573, 907

Assigned: 

Drug Awareness
Unassigned: 5,629,846

Total 10, 734:32,

y7, 
1, 6,{81, 634equity

y ( } 

YrJC i/ j.i it r": rr.r  err r"
Y+:.' t",XLt Xr r rrrJ lJ ¢- r: rs. V , grr'>; sY+.. r. r.T' r rtfr ..r:.. r, 

The accompanying notes are an integral pari of this statement. 
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EXHIBIT A-3

Debt Capital tither Total

Service Improvements Governmental Governmental

Fund Fund Funds Funds

9,719, 702

124, 816

1, 303, 161
22, 832

36, 477 836, 180
3,151 _ 

fi6, 959 959

18, 002 22, 817 2, 924 897, 996

226, 295 312,179

V 208, 105

956, 234 3, 705, 376 337, 024 10, 274, 806

247, 935
134, 438 -- 

125,381

fj! 1 ! t:: r it JYJ JYJ y.y/h fh 1' 1.^..,. fYi4Cf 1 Jyti fYYF4 f r F } • f fjf fjY' tt f̀'

rt4l
f..,''+ m't F: ...+' A': i'- 

y, L+ f t SCJ} a .i. rfy' Y t: f.( _ _ i. • iJf: 1 . rte ^ 
i. I.M1Y. t," .?, T.( 

85, 807 37,48 3 1, 041, 632

131, 736

822,844

378, 005 575,452 208, 667 4, 484, 849

18, 410 512,455
293

22, 831 11, 405 478, 511

400, 836 661, 259 275,965 7,472,320

208, 104

733, 821 -- 
733, 821

3,066,934 3, 116,672
75, 099

37,898
1, 643, 136

L 4" 204 444, 204

2, 140 2, 140

2, 862 2, W2

3, 909, 340

288, 299

573,907

2, 365 2, 365

5,629,840

733, 821 3,066,934 4511, 571 16,667, 687

CY ! e ' ( J f'. Y> J JJJ ., Yysy. J JL1
f. 

JJ J J"  ({ i J1J i. i F J4  
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 

EXHIBIT A- 4

CITY OF KINGSVILLE
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASST TS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Total fund balances - governmental funds balance sheet $ 16, 667, 687

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets
SNA") are different: because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not reported in the funds. 13, 520, 742

Property taxes receivable unavailable to pay for current period expenditures are deferred in the funds. 335, 088

The assets and liabilities of internal service funds are included in governmental activities in the SCCA. 342, 366
Payables for bond principal which are not due in the current period are not reported in the funds. 
Payables for capital leases which are not due in the current period are not reported in the funds. 

8,899, 244) 

84, 647) 

Payables for bond interest which are not due in the current period are not reported in the funds. 53, 214) 

Payables for compensated absences which are not dine in the current period are not reported in the funds. 850, 577) 
Other long- term liabilities which -are not due and payable in the current period are not reported in the funds. 884, 455) 

Other lung -term assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures and are deferred in the funds. 133, 604

Solid Waste assets and liabilities are included in the general fund but are included in business activities in SNA 4, 288, 261) 

Net assets of governmental activities - Statement of Net Assets $ 16, 003, 088

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 





t

CITY OF KINGSVILLE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES iIN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

i
Police

General Forfeiture
Fund Fund

Revenue: — 

Taxes $ 9, 797, 041
Licenses and permits 185, 798
Charges for services 4, 452, 674 1
Fines and forfeitures 542, 852 824, 617
Special assessments 15, 725
Interest and miscellaneous 106,299 46, 409
Donations 6, 250
Federal and state grants

Total revenues 15, 166, 549 871, 026

Expenditures: 

Current: 
General government and administrallon 3, 334, 590 12, 728
Public Safety 7, 200, 797 1, 548, 908
Public works 4, 226, 895- 

City/County 773, 413
Tourism

Other expenditures 17, 187
Debt service: 

Principal refired

Inferesf

Paying agent fees
Total expenditures 15, 552, 882 1, 561, 636

Excess ( deficiency) of revenues ( under) expenditures 446, 333) 690, 610) 
C

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 1, 250, 000
Transfers out 527, 20) 
Gain on Sale ofAssets 40, 000
Total other financing sources ( uses) 762, 084

Net change in fund balances 315, 747 690, 610) 

Fund balances/ equity, October 1 10, 418, 580 2, 509, 777' 
Prior period adjustment __ ( 138, 133) 

Y"' T'.:?.: T,+7,fl. J.... J. 1. .... f, ..Yl... . i. J. J, J. . F fftJ.Y: Y. . l, ::.,Yl.Y Y. - 1 d

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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EXHIBIT A- 5

Debt Capital Other Total

Service Improvements Governmental Govemrnentat

Fund Fund Funds Funds

1, 450,437 541, 630 11, 789, 108

185, 708

952 4,453, 626

1, 367, 469

15, 725

3, 795 20, 169 1, 438 178, 110

289, 544 295, 794

326, 628 326, 628

1, 454, 232 20, 169 1, 160, 192 18, 612, 168

58; 946 3, 406, 264

200, 922 270, 896 9, 221, 523

1, 220, 280 5, 447, 175
773, 413

389, 081 389, 081

17, 187

1, 266, 933
1, 266, 933

534,012
534,012

2,050 N 2,050

1, 802, 995 1, 421, 202 718, 923 21, 057, 638

348, 763) 1, 401, 033) 441, 269 2, 445, 470) 

427, 920 100, 000 1, 777, 920

527, 920) 

18, 500 58, 500

427,920_ 118,500 1, 308, 500

79, 157 1, 282, 533) 441, 269 1,. 136, 970) 

654, 664 4, 349, 467 10, 302 17, 942, 790

jy i' i'; Sj f ff( ftu' ! f Sf irJ ! JfYttiJ! 
Jff fi^(? Y. 
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i CITY OF KINGSVILLE
EXHIBIT A-5

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SSEPTEMBER 3o, 2012

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ 1, 136, 974) 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities
SOA") are different because: 

Capital outlays are not reported as expenses in the SOA. 1, 589, 614 I

The depreciation of capital assets used in governmental activities is not reported in the funds. 1, 037, 555) 
Trade- in or disposal of capital assets decrease net assets in the SOA but not in the funds, 
Certain tax revenues deferred in

16, 728) 
property are the funds. This is the change in these amounts this year. 28, 101) 

Expenses not requiring the use of current financial resources are not reported as expenditures in the funds. 123, 664) 
Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the funds but is not an expense in the SOA. 657, 041
Repayment of capital lease principal is an expenditure in the funds but is not an expense in the SOA. 25, 871

Increase) decrease in accrued interest from beginning. of period to end of period. 95, 169

The net revenue "(expense) of internal service funds is reported with governmental activities. 300, 767) 

li
Compensated absences are reported as the amount eamed in the SOA but as the amount paid in the funds. 65, 188
Solid waste activities are included in the general fund, but are included in the business activities in the SOA. 548, 854

Change in net assets of governmental activities - Statement of Activities 297952

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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EXHIBIT A-7

CITY OF KINGSVILLE
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2012
N4nrnaJ4r - 

internal Service

L Fun Fund

Utility Insurance

Fund Fund

ASSETS

Current assets: 
820, 539

Gash and cash equivalents

Equity in pooled cash and cash equivalents
2,152,524 1, 738

Receivables ( net of allowances for uncollectibles): 
Accounts

1, 269, 617 54, 680

Due from: 

OtherCash
3,972, 672 968, 826

Invenfwy, at cost
286, 437

Restricted assets - noncurrent: 

and cash equivalents 5,612, 088

Equity in pooled cash and cash equivalents
263, 279

Total current assets 13,5%, 617 1, 845, 783

Noncurrent assets: 

Bond issuance costs 165, 252

L
al assets: 

Lana
132, 35+8

Utilitplanty
35,745, 716

Equipment 2, 127, 891

vehicles 2: 243, 937

Construction in progress 218, 247

Total capital assets 40, 468, 145

Less accumulated depreciation 27,473, 626} 

Net capital assets
12,994, 519

Total noncurrent assets 13, 159 771
v 

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable $ 
417, 470 212, 364

Accrued wages payable 22, 102

Dtie to: 

other funds 261, 189 1, 093, 456

ottwgovemments

Accumulated unpaid compensated absences

1, 217

38,500

Current liabilities payable from restricted assets: 
Accrued werest payable

99, 150

Gontractnal obligations payable

Customer deposits

332, 670

724, 032 195,859

Tonal current liabilities 2,396, 330 1, 501, 679

Long -terra liabilities, net of current portion
Accumulated unpaid compensated absences

Accrued other poo- empl©yment benefits

22: 1

158, 693 Y
Premium on bonds payable 66, 800

Contractual obligations payable 13, 779, 223

Total long-term liabilities, net of current portion 14, 027, 347

Total Umbilities 16, 4223, 677 1, 501, 679

Net Assets: 
Invested in cM* al assets, net of refated debt
Restricted for: 

2,631, 181

Debt service
261, 056

Self insurance
344, 104

Capital outlay
825, 169

Unreslric tso

Total net assets

6; 575, 305

10,292,711 344, 104

r.£ y'....... .....
r. ....::.

r•.*.. Yry ,£. eve: :£"£.•.,.
circ rr % r' r£. r '. t :`: .W}"_, h' r.S l -. 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 



CITY OF KIN GSVILLE
RECONCILIATION OF THE PROPRIETARY FUND STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

EXHIBIT A -7R

TO TNi= GOVERNMENT - WIDE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2112

i

7

i Utility Fund Net Assets - Proprietary Funds Statement of Net Assets 10,292,711

Amounts reported for business -type activities in the statement of net assets
are different because: 

Solid Waste is a business -type activity that is included in the general fund. Assets 3, 489,553
and liabilities relating to Solid Waste are included in business -type activities in the
government - wide statement of net assets. 

The assets and liabilities of certain internal service funds are included in business 43,206
type activities in the SNA: 

i Net Assets of Business -type Activities - Statement of Net Assets

The nates to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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EXHIBIT A- 8

CITY OF KINGSVILLE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND NET ASSETS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

NonrOajrsr

Enterprise Internal Service

Fund Fund

utility Insurance

L Fund Fond

OPERATING REVENUES: 

Water 5, 150, 035

Othar income 27,584

3, 2.26, 910

2, 508

Wastewater
2, 426, 324

Insurance premiums

Total Operating Revenues 8, 404, 529 2, 428, 830

OPERATING EXPENSES: 
Personal services 1, 950,433
Supplies 310, 034

Services 1, 228, 100 2, 729, 597

Maintenance 1, 114, 707

Water supply contract 384, 581' 

Uncollectable accounts 35, 890

Depreciation and amortization 1, 352, 380

Total Operating Expenses 6, 376, 125 2,729, 597

Operating Income ( Loss) 2, 028, 404 300, 767) 

NON-OPERATING REVENUES ( EXPENSES): 
Interest 32, 774

Gain or loss on sale of property 75, 500

L Interest and fiscal anent charge 645, 679) 

Total Non- operating Revenues ( Expenses) 537,405) 

Net Income (Loss) before Transfers 1, 490, 999 300, 767) 

TRANSFERS IN ( OUT): 
To General Fund 1, 250, 000) 

Total Transfers In ( Out) 1, 250, 000) 

Net income (loss) 240, 999 300,767) 

Net assets October 1 10 051, 712 644, 871

rrr rp,, . "• 
r<

frrlr'

rrrrr
rrr rrfrjr r>C rrr.<, ` 7' S"( y7 ri vii r rrhrl,.< r r,,rrrr 1

r rY rlrY ¢.'., rrrr. ',.$ r rlrY rrryr,, rrr fryF,,r•r J p , r. i ,. yrfrr

rte: 
J`} .<rr

rr<'
xp• 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement
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CITY OF KINGSVILLE
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, 

EXHIBIT A -SR

AND CHANCES IN FUND NET :ASSETS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Change in net assets -utility fund 240, 999

Amounts reported for Business -type activities in the statement of activities are
different because: 

Solid Waste is a business -type activity that is included in the general fund. The
net avenues of the Solid Waste activityre in the business -typeare reportedp type activities. 3,.897

Change in net assets of Business -type activities - statement of activities 244, 896

The nates to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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EXHIBIT A-9

CITY OF KINGSVILLE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

L— Internal

Utility Service

Fund Fund .—. 

Gash Flows from Operating Activities: 
8,342,562

Cash Received from Customers
Cash Receipts ( Payments) for Quasi -externa! 2, 428, 562

L operating Transactions with tither Funds 41, 907, 61 Cash Payments to Employees for Serviees
Cash Payments to Other Suppliers for Goods and Services 3, 354, 553) J2, 692, 181) 

Net Gash Provided ( Used) by Operating Activities 3, 060, 395 2$ 3, 619) 

Cash Flows from Non -capital Financing Activities. 61, 687} 
Proceeds ( Payments) from ( for) Interfund Borrowings 558, 165} 

Transfers To Other Funds
Net Gash Provided (Used) by bion -capital Financing Activities

1, 250,000} 
33, F3f38, 165} 61, 687} 

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities: 
Principal and Interest Paid 1, 399, 251 } 

Proceeds from Issuance of Bonds 75, 500

Acquisition or Construction of Capital Assets 1, 045, 425) 

Net Gash Provided ( Used) for Capital & Related 'Financing Activities 2, 360, 186) 

Investing Activities: L Cash Flows from
32,774

Interest and Dividends on Investments
32,774

LNet
Net Gash Provided ( Used) for Investing Activities

325, 306) 
Increase (Decrease) in Gash and Cash Equivalents 3, 075, 182) 

1, 147, 583
Gash and Gash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 11, 103, 073

a,027 822, 277

L_ 
Gash and Gash Equivalents at End of Year

891

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities: 

2, 028, 404 300, 767) 
Operating Income (Lass} O
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net Gash

Provided by Operating Activities
1, 352, 380

Depreciation

Provision for Uncollectible Accounts
35,890

Change in Assets and Liabilities: 89, 738} 200, 811
Decrease ( Increase) in Receivables

15, 001) 
Decrease ( increase) in Inventories
Increase ) Decrease) in Accounts Payable

30 2, 130} 163, 395} 

Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Wages Payable 7,833

Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Other Employment and
Post Employment Benefits

Increase ( Decrease) in Accumulated Compensated Absences

20, 472

5=486} 

Increase (Decrease) in Customer Deposits
27,771

1, 031, 991

268) 

37, 148
Total Adjustments

Net Gash Provided ( Used) by Operating Activities 3 263,613) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF KINGSVILLE EXHIBIT A- 10

STAT' Eh{IENT OF FIDUCIARY NETASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS i

SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Agency
Fund

Court Cash
Bond

Account
ASSETS

Assets

Cash andcashequivalents 34, 247
fY y'..• ff. 

lrYYY
f fj of fJY

YfYf<
ffY f Y

YYt
Yf l Y, f f!J i"fY t'%f! S) Jfff5•.. ..... ..

f. .. '+.... TJ. :. : f. %: 5. . . T•51.. 71. Yjf„ tjf .( SSb ỳ

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities: 
Payable from restricted assets: 

Customer deposits $ 34, 247
Total Liabilities 34, 247

Net Assets -- 

Total Net Assets — 

ff rY Yhi'+'f' SJffY yY3lS ffJ fff ffW J' J1J Gf lfSf 3 tJff f,'. t/ jf f. J,S{ lJ
W,..:.. j>..r rJ nhfJi :. f. r."C<Y rYW. ....:. Y., , 

r! frF,{ V°_-i. L-Is-C: GGC• .? L

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF KINGSVILLE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2a 12

A. SMMMsi ' ifican= Unt1hg_ r' o i i

The financial statements of the City have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles in the United States of America ( GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental

Accounting Standards Board ( GASB) is the standard- setting body for governmental accounting and financial
reporting. Pronouncements of the Financial Accounting Standards Board ( FASB) issued after November 30, 1989
are not applied in the preparation of the financial statements of the proprietary fund types in accordance with an
election made by the City under GASB Statement No. 20. The GASB periodically updates its codification of the
existing Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, which, along with subsequent GASB
pronouncements ( Statements and Interpretations), constitutes GAAP for governmental units. 

The accounting and reporting framework and the more significant accounting principles and practices are
discussed in subsequent sections of these Motes. The remainder of the Notes is organized toprovide explanations, 
including required disclosures, on the City' s financial activities for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2012. 

1. Reporting Entity

The City of Kingsville was incorporated in 1911 and adopted its first charter in 1916 as a home rule city under
the provisions of Chapter 13 of the Revised Statutes of the State of Texas. The City operates tinder a
Commission - Manager form of government and provides the following services as authorized by its charter ( last
amended August 9, 1986), public safety ( police and fire), streets and sidewalks, sanitation, health and social
services, parks and recreation, public improvements, and general administrative services. 

In evaluating how to define the City, for financial reporting purposes, management has considered all
potential component units. As required by generally accepted accounting principles, these financial

statements present the City and should include any entities for " which the City is considered financially
accountable. Mended component units, although legally separate entities in substance, are part of the
City operations and data from these units should be combined with data of the City. an the other hand, the

discretely presented component unit is reported in a separate column in the combined financial statements to
emphasize it is legally separate from the City. 

a. Blended Component Units

The City did not have a Blended Component ' Unit at September 30, 2012. 

b. Discretely Presented Component Unit

The Kingsville Convention and Visitor' s Bureau ( K.C. V. B.) was a non- profit corporation created by

the City under state law to facilitate the development of tourism for the City. The K. C. V. B. 

ceased to exist in August of 2012 and therefore, is no longer a Component Unit of the City. it surrendered, 
all of its assets to the City, with an estimated value of $ 289,544. The City now operates its Tourism in a
Special Revenue Fund. 

C. Related Organizations and Jointly Governed Organizations

Related organizations and jointly governed organizations provide services within the City that are
administered by separate boards or commissions, but the City is not financially accountable, and

such organizations are therefore not component units of the City, even though the City Council
may appoint a voting majority of an organizations' board. Consequently, financial information

for the Kingsville Housing Authority, Kingsville Industrial Foundation and the Greater Economic

Development Council are not included in these financial statements. 
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2. Basis of Presentation, Basis of Accounting

a. Basis of Presentation

Government -wide Statements: The statement of net assets and the statement of activities include the
financial activities of the overall . government, except for fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been
made to minimize the double -counting of internal activities. These statements distinguish between the
governmental and business - type activities of the City. Governmental activities generagy are financed
through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange transactions. Business - type

activities , are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties. 

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses . and program revenues for
the different business -type activities of the City and for each function of the City's governmental
activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and, 
therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. The City doss not allocate indirect expenses
in the statement of activities. Program revenues include ( a) fees, fines, and charges paid by the
recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and ( b) grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are
not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenue. 

Fund Financial Statements: The fund . financial statements provide information about the City' s funds, 
with separate statements presented for each fund category. The emphasis of fund financial statements Is

IIon major governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining
governmental and enterpriser funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds. 

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for service, result from exchange transactions
associated with the principal activity of the fund: Exchange transactions are those in which each party
receives and gives up essentially equal values. 1Nonoperating revenues, such as subsidies and
investment earnings, result from nonexchange transactions or ancillary activities. 

Internal service funds of, a government ( which traditionally provide services primarily to other
funds of the government) are presented in the summary farm as part of the proprietary fund
financial statements. The City' s internal service fund accounts for major medical activities. Since
the principal users of the internal services are the City' s governmental activities, financial
statements of internal service funds are consolidated into the governmental column when

presented at the govemment-wide level in the Statement of Net Assets. The net activity of these
services is offset against , the appropriate functional activity in the Statement of Activities. This
complies with the City' s policy of eliminating internal activity from the government -wide

statements. Interfund services provided and used are not eliminated in the process of

consolidation

The City' s fiduciary funds are presented in . the fund financial statements. Since by definition
these assets are being held for the benefit of a third patty ( e.g., other governments or private

parties) and cannot be used to finance activities or obligations of the government, these funds
are not incorporated intothe government -wide statements. The City' s fiduciary funds are used to
account for court cash bonds held for others, and for certain funds collected and passed through
to other governments. 

The City reports the following major governmental funds: 

General Fund. This fund is the general operating fund of the City. it is used to account for all
financial resources except for those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

Police Forfeiure Fund. This fund is used to account for revenues from seized assets, and the
related expenditures. 
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Debt Service Fund. This fund is used to account for funds needed to make principal and interest
payments on outstanding bonds when due. The City reports this fund as major because of public
interest and consistency between years. 

Capital Projects Fund. The City accounts for bond proceeds and related expenditures for
construction projects in the capital projects fund. 

In addition, the City reports the followingmajor enterprise fund: 

Enterprise Fund. This fund is used to account for the operations of the City's combined utilities
The fund includes the Gity`s water and wastewater systems, and the activities of the City' s landfill
is included in the government -wide presentation. _ 

b_ Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting

Government -wide Financial Statements: These financial statements are reported using the economic
resources measurement focus. They are reported using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when
the related cash flows take place. Nonexchange transactions, in which the City gives ( or receives) value
without directly receiving ( or accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year
for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations is recognized in the
fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. 

Governmental Fund Financial Statements: Govemmental funds are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues
are recognized when measurable and available. The City considers all revenues reported in the
governmental funds to be available if the revenues are collected within sixty days after year-end. Property
tax revenues and revenues received from the State are recognized under the susceptible -to -accrual
concept. Those revenues considered susceptible -to -accrual are property taxes, hotel occupancy taxes, 
special assessments, interest income, and charges for services. Miscellaneous revenues are recorded as

revenue when received in cash because they are generally not measurable until actually received. 
Investment earnings are recorded as earned, since they are both measurable and available. Expenditures
are recorded when the related fund liability_ is incurred, except for principal and interest on general
long- term debt, otaims and judgments, and compensated absences, which are recognized as

expenditures to the extent they have matured. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as
expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general long- term debt and acquisitions under capital
leases are reported as other financing sources. 

When the City incurs an expenditure or expanse for which bath restricted and unrestricted resources may
be used, it is the City's policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources. 

Financial Statement Amounts

a. Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash balances of all City funds are pooled and invested. At year-end, negative balances of individual

funds which result from pooling cash, are reclassified to bank overdraft in the financial statements. 
Investments purchased with pooled cash consisting of certificates of deposit and obligations of the U. S. 
Government and ft agencies or instrumentalities, are recorded at cost, which approximates estimated
fair value. Cash and cash equivalents in the accompanying combined balance sheets, includes
amounts in demand deposits as well as short- term investments with a maturity datewithin three months
of the date acquired by the City. 
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b. Real Property and Sales Taxers

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1. The. City' s property tax is
levied each October i on the basis of assessed value at the dates the enforceable lien attaches. 
Appraised values are established by the Kleberg County Appraisal Board, assessed at 100% of

appraised value, approved by the Klebeirg County : Appraisal Review Board and certified by the Chief
Appraiser. Responsibility for the billing and collection of the City' s taxes has been transferred to i
Kleberg County as a cost-cutting measure in consolidating government functions. j

Taxes . are due on receipt of the tax bill and are delinquent it not, paid before February of the year
fallowing the year in which imposed. Taxes become delinquent at February 1, at which time penalties
and interest charges are applicable. Property tax revenues are recorded as revenues when they became
available. At September 30, property tax receivables are fully deferred because collections received
within the following sixty days are immaterial. 

The City operates under the Lams of the State of Texas as a Home Rule City, and is limited to a total
tax rate of $ 2. 50. per $ 100 of assessed valuation. Neither the State law nor the City Charter limits the
proportion of this total tax rate which may be applied to debt service. 

In order to obtain approval of its general obligation bonds by the Attorney General of the State, a
satisfactory showing of adequate taxing power must be made. As a general rule the Attorney General
will not approve new bonds if this will make the net debt exceed twenty-five percent of the assessed
value. The 2011 tau rate was $. 84220 of which $. 63752 was distributed to the General Fund and

20468 was applied to the Debt Service Fund. Using the twenty- five percent rule, the City' s legal
margin is $ 181, 119, 210. 

Allowances for uncollectible tax receivables within the General Fund are based - upon historical

experience in collecting property taxes. Uncollectible personal property taxes are periodically reviewed
and written off, but the City is prohibited from writing off real property taxes without specific statutory
authority from the Texas Legislature. 

the top ten taxpayers are as follows: 
of Total

Nature of Assessed Taxable

Taxpayer blame _ {} erations Valuation  , Valuation

AEP Texas Central Company Electric Utility 10, 269, 870 1. 500/0

Wal- Mart Stores East LP # 01- 0442 Retail 7, 790, 360 1. 1411/ 6

Kingsville Two Apartments . 6, 836, 800 1. 01% 

Eddie Yaklin Ford Lincoln Mercury Ltd Auto Dealership 6,836, 240 1. 00% 

HBC Holding LTD Apartments 6,829„380 . 1. 00®!0

Collegiate Kingsville Partners LP : Apartments 6, 387, 370 0. 94% 

Wal- Mart Stores Inc. # 61- 0442 Retail 5, 555, 450 0. 81% 

HEB Grocery Inc. Grocery 4, 698, 090 0.69°la
Lowes Home Centers Inc. Retail 4, 296, 710 0.63% 
Yaklin, Eddie L Automotive 4, 112, 500 0. 60°fa

C. Inventory

Inventory is valued at cost ( last- n, first -out). All inventory purchases are recorded as inventory
acquisitions ( current assets) at the time of purchase and expensed when issued. 

Inventories of governmental funds are offset by a fund balance reserve which indicates that they do not
constitute " available expendable resources” even though they are a component of net current assets. 
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d. Capital Assets

Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost or estimated historical cost. Donated capital
assets are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of the donation. The cost of normal
maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets, lives are
not capitalized. A capitalization threshold of $ 5,000 is used. 

Capital assets are being depreciated using the straight- line method over the following estimated useful lives: 
Estimated

Asset Class Useful Lives

Infrastructure 311

Buildings 50

Building Improvements 20

Vehicles 2-15

Office Equipment 3-15

Computer Equipment 3- 15

Impairment losses related to capital assets are recognized and measured when there has been a
significant, unexpected decline in the service utility of capital assets. The events or changes in
circumstances which lead to impairment determinations are not considered to be normal or

ordinary. The service utility of a capital asset is the usable capacity which, at acquisition, was
expected to be used or provide service. Common indicators " of- impairment include evidence of

physical damage where the level of damage is such that restoration efforts are needed to restore
service utility; enactment of laws or approval of regulations as well as changes in environmental
factors; technological developments, or other evidence of obsolescence; changes in the , manner of, 
duration of use of capital assets; or construction stoppage due to lack of funding. There were no
impairment charges during fiscal 2012. 

e. Receivable and Payable Balances

The City believes that sufficient detail of receivable and payable balances is provided in the financial
statements to avoid the obscuring of significant components by aggregation. Therefore, no disclosure is
provided which disaggregates those balances. 

There are no significant receivables which are not scheduled for collection within one year of year end. 

f. Restricted Assets

Certain debt proceeds of the City' s enterprise funds, as well as certain resources set aside for their
repayment, are classified as restricted assets on the balance sheet because their use is limited by
applicable bond covenants. 

When an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net assets are
available, the city' s policy is to apply restricted net assets first. 

g. Long- term Obligations

In the government -wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term debt obligations are reported as liabilities in the
applicable governmental activities, business -type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net
assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the
fife of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable

bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over
the term of the related debt. 
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I

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as
iwell as bond ' issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as f

other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing' resources
while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not
withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures in the
governmental funds, bond discounts and issuance costs are treated as period casts in the year
issued. Bond issuance costs are shown as an "other financing use.'- 

h. 

se.'- 

h. Pension Plans

It is the policy of the City to fund pension costs annually. Pension costs are composed of normal cost
and, where applicable, amortization of unfunded acturial accrued liability and unfunded prior service
costs. 

L Fund Equity

Fund balances of the governmental funds are classified as follows: 

Nonspendable Fund Balance - represents amounts that cannot be spent because they are either
not in spendable form ( such as inventory or prepaid insurance) or legally required to remain
intact (such as notes receivable or principal of a permanent fund). 

Restricted Fund Balance - represents amounts that are constrained by external parties, 

constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

Committed Fund Balance - represents amounts that can only be used for a specific purpose
pursuant to constraints imposed by City ordinance or resolution no later than the close of the
fiscal year. Committed amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the Board of
Commissioners removes those constraints by taking the same type of formal
action. Committed fund balance amounts may be used for other purposes with appropriate
due process by the Board of Commissioners. Committed fund balance amounts differ from

balancesrestricted in that the constraints on their use do not come from outside parties, 
constitutional provisions, or enabling legislation. 

Assigned Fund Balance - represents amounts which the City intends to use for a specific purpose, but
that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed. Intent may be stipulated by the
Board of Commissioners or by an official or body to which the Board of Commissioners delegates the authority. 
Specific amounts that are not restricted or committed in a special revenue, capital projects, debt service
or permanent fund are assigned for purposes in accordance with the nature of their fund type or the fund's
primary purpose. Assignments within the general fund conveys that the ' intended use of those amounts is
for a specific purpose that is narrower than the general purposes of the City itself. 

Unassigned Fund Balance - represents amounts which are unconstrained in that they may be
spent for any purpose. Only the general fund reports a positive unassigned fund balance. Other
governmental funds might report a negative balance in this classification because of

overspending for specific purposes for which amounts had been restricted, committed or assigned. 

When an expenditure is incurred for a purpose for which both restricted and unrestricted fund
balance is available, the City considers restricted funds to have been spent first When an
expenditure is incurred for which committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balances are
available, the City considers amounts to have been spent first out of committed funds, then
assigned funds, and finally unassigned funds. , 
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j. Accumulated Unpaid Compensated Absences

It is the City' s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick pay
benefits. These compensated absences are accrued when incurred in the government -wide and
proprietary fund financialstatements. Expenses are recorded in the governmental funds as employees
resign or retire. Compensated absence liabilities are normally paid from, the funds reporting payroll and, 
related expenditures including the general fund and special revenue funds. 

k. Interfund Activity

Interlund activity results from loans, services provided, reimbursements or transfers between funds. 
Loans are reported as interfund receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to
elimination upon consolidation. Services provided, deemed to be at market or near market rates, are
treated as revenues and expenditures or expenses. Reimbursements occur when one fund incurs a
cosi, charges the appropriate benefiting fund and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement. All
other interfund transactions are treated as transfers. Transfers In and Transfers Out are netted and
presented as a single ' Transfers" line on the government - wide statement of activities. Similarly, 

interfund receivables and payables are netted and presented as a single " Internal Balances" line of
the government -aide statement of net assets. 

B. Compliance and Acc wntatft. 

i. Finance -Related Legal and Contractual Provisions

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 38, " Certain Financial Statement Mote Disclosures," violations of

finance -related legal and contractual provisions, if any, are reported below, along with actions taken to address
such violations: 

Violation Action Taken.. 

None N/ A

2. Deficit Fund Balance or Fund Net Assets of Individual Funds

Following are funds having deficit fund balances or fund net assets at year end, if any, along with remarks which address
such deficits: 

Deficit

EuudBme Amount Remlim

None reported Not applicable Not applicable

C. Dleosits and Inve& Ifi= 

The City's funds are required to be deposited and invested under the terms of a depository contract. The depository
bank deposits for safekeeping and trust with the City' s agent bank approved pledged securities in an amount sufficient
to protect City funds on a day-to-day basis during the period of the contract. The pledge of approved securities is

waived only to the extent of the depository bank' s dollar amount of Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (" FDIC") 

insurance. 

ty',a' i and Inv , merli5

Texas statutes authorize the City to invest in ( 1) obligations of the U. S. Treasury or its agencies and
instrumentalities; ( 2) direct obligations of the State of Texas or its agencies; ( 3) other obligations, the principal of

and interest on which are unconditionally guaranteed or insured by the State of Texas or the United States; ( 4) 

obligations of states, agencies, counties or cities rated A or better by a national investment rating firm; ( 5) 

certificates of deposit that are insured by the Federal Deposit insurance Corporation ( FDIC) or secured by obligations
having a market value of at least the principal amount of the certificates; and ( 6) fully collateralized direct
repurchase agreements. 
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1. Cash & Gash Equivalents

At September 30, 2012, the carrying amount of the City' s deposits ( cash, certificates of deposit, and
interest-bearing savings accounts included in temporary investments) was $ 11, 385, 721 and the bank

1
balance was $ 11, 238, 076. The City' s cash deposits at September 30, 2012 and during the year ended
September 30, 2012, were entirely covered by FMC insurance or properly secured by collateral held by
the City's agent in the City's name. 

2. Investments

The Public Funds Investment Act (" Act") requires an annual audit of investment practices. Audit
procedures in this area conducted as a part of the audit of the financial statements disclosed that in the
areas of investment practices, management, reports and establishment of appropriate policies, the City
adhered to the requirements of the Act: Additionally, investment practices of the City were in
accordance with local policies. 

inves Tie t►siti49 P€.l-iov
The City' s general policy is to report money market investtnents and short- term participating
interest- earning investment contracts at amortized cost and to report nonparticipating interest- earning
investment contracts using a cost -based measure. However, if the fair value of an investment is
significantly affected by the impairment of the credit standing of the issuer or by other factors, it is
reported at fair value. All other investments are reported at fair value unless a legal contract exists
which guarantees a higher value. The term " short-teiJ rm" refers to investments which have a , remainingg
term of one year or less at time of purchase. The term " nonparticipating" means that the investments
fair value does not vary with market interest rate changes. Pion -negotiable certificates of deposit
are examples of nonparticipating interest- earning investment contracts. 

Public Funds investment pools in Texas (" Pools") are established under the authority of the Interlocal
Cooperation Act, Chapter 79 of the- Texas Government Code, and are subject to the provisions of the
Public Funds Investment Act ( the"Act"), Chapter 2256 of the Texas Government Code. In addition to

other provisions of the Act designed to promote liquidity and safety of principal, the Act requires Pools 1
to : 1j have an advisory board composed of participants in the pool and other persons who do not have
a business relationship with the pool and are qualified to advise Efts pool; 2) maintain a continuous
rating of no lower than AAA or ARA. -m or an equivalent rating by at least one nationally recognized
rating service; and 3) maintain the fair value of its underlying investment portfolio: within one half of
one percent of the value of its shares. 

The City' s investments in pools are reported at an amount determined by the fair value per share of the
pool' s underlying portfolio, unless the pool is A 2a7 -like, in which case they are reported at share value. 
A 20 -like pool is one which is not registered with the Securities & Exchange Commission („ SEG") as an l
investment company, but nevertheless has a policy that it will, and does, operate in a manner consistent
with the SEC's Rule 2a7 of the Investment Company Act of 1940. 

Reported Fair
Investment Amount Value

Cutwater( Rated @ AAA/ V1+) $ 17, 84.4, 738 $

11,
7_x844, 738
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Anatv is of Sp Sjfic Depos t' , t7 i3.ti: tit$ i: 

GASB Statement No. 44 requires a determination as to whether the City was exposed to the following specific
investment risks at year end and if so, the reporting of the certain related disclosures: 

1. Credit Risks

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fuifill its
obligations. The ratings of securities by nationally recognized rating agencies are designed to give
an indication of credit risk. At the end of the period, the City was not significantly exposed to credit rids. 

2. Custodial Credit Risk

Deposits are exposed to custodial credit risk if they are not covered by depository insurance and the
deposits are uncollateralized, collateralized with securities hell by the pledging financial institution, or
collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution' s trust department or agent but
not in the City's name. 

investment securities are exposed to custodial credit risk if the securities are uninsured, are not
registered in the name of the government, and are heldby either the counterparty or the counterparty' s
trust department or agent but not in the C4's name. 

At the end of the period, the City was not exposed to custodial credit risk. 

3. Concentration of Risk

This risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of government's investment in a single issuer. At

the end of the period, the City was not exposed to concentration of credit risk. 

4. Interest Rate Risk

This is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment At the
and of the period, the City was not significantly exposed to interest rate risk. 

5. Foreign Currency Risk

This is the risk that exchange rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. At the end of

the period, the City was not exposed to foreign currency risk. 

D. Receivables

Primary
Debt Enterprise Government

General Service Enterprise Restricted — Total

Receivables: 

Accounts $ 1, 440, 558 $ 3, 151 $ 2, 409, 553 $ 125, 381 $ 3, 978,£ 43

Taxes - Property 652, 861 39;332 – -- 692, 193

Taxes - Franchise & Sales 904, 117 -- – - 904, 117

Special Assessments 68„419 – 68,419

Gross Receivables 3, 065, 555 42, 483 2, 4€Y9, 553 125, 381 5, 542, 972

Less: Allowance for
uncollectable ( 1, 294, 002) ( 16, 500) ( 770,313) – — ( 2, 080, 815} 

Net total receivable $_ 1, 771553 $ 25, 983 $==== I , 6=39 ,244 $ 125, 381 $ 31562, 157
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E. Gain, Asti

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2412, was as follows: 

Beginning Ending
Balances Increases Decreases Balances

a2aernmentai s3S ttti. se _ 

Capital assets not being depreciated: 
Land

Construction in progress

469, 540 $ 

933, 604

469, 540

933, 604

Total capital assets not being depreciated 469, 540 - 933, 604 1, 403, 144

Capital assets being depreciated: 
1 Road Network 18, 568, 151 18, 568, 151

Buildings and improvements 3,914,802 3,914, 802
Equipment 2,867, 465 385, 678 127, 968) 3, 125, 175
Vehicles 5, 110, 440 270, 332 5, 380, 772

Total capital assets being depreciated 30, 46+0, 858 656,010 127, 968) 30,988,900 ' 
Less accumulated depreciation for: w

Road Network 11, 171, 059) 268, 082) 11, 439, 141) 
Buildings and improvements 2,065, 226) 63, 940) 2, 129, 166) 
Equipment 2, 260, 203) 264, 331) 111, 240 2, 413„294) 
Vehicles ( 2,448, 499) 441, 202) `! 2, 889, 701) 

Total accumulated depreciation 17, 944,987) 103 7, 555) 111, 240 18, 871, 302) 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 12,515,871 _^, 381, 545) 16, 728) 12, 117, 598

Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 12985, 41 i _ 552, 059 $_ i 16, 728} $ 13, 520, 742

Beginning Ending
BalancesIncreases Decreases Balances

BusinPS ea 6; 

Capital assets not being depreciated: 
Land $ 352,354 $ 352, 354
Construction in progress_ 566, 237 285,6_91_ 5_65,881) 286, 046

Total capital assets not being depreciated 918,591 285, 691 565, 881) 638,400

Capital assets being,depreciated: 
Buildings and improvements 37,632,033 205, 333 37, 837, 365
Equipment 3,097, 515 1, 079, 694 418, 572) 3, 758, 637
Vehicles 4,203, 821 474, 009 51, 737) 4,626, 093

Tota( capital assets being depreciated 44, 933, 369 1, 759, 035470, 309) 46,222,095
Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Buildings and improvements 24, 058, 173) 1, 119, 614) 25,177, 787) 
Equipment 1, 903, 253) 279, 841) 391, 472 1, 791, 622) 
Vehicles 2,392, 643) 340, 325) 43, 423 2, 689, 545) 

Total accumulated depreciation 28, 354, 069) 1, 739, 781) 434,89T 29, 658, 955) 
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 16, 579, 300 _ 19, 254 i35, 414) 16, 563, 140

Business -type activities capital assets, net $- 17¢497, 89{ $_ 304, 945 $, 1 t01. 2 $ 1, 540) 5
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Depreciation was charged to functions as follows: 

General Government 58, 207

Public Safety 497, 232

Public Works 453, 549

City/ County 28, 567

1, 037, 555

IF. 

L

Interfund Baarce an

1. Due To and From Other Funds

Balances due to and due from other funds at September 30, 2012, consisted of the following: 

Due To Fund Due From Fund Amount Purpose

General Fund Capital l Improvements Fund 159, 233 Short- term loans

General Fund Police Forfeiture Fund 246, 855 Short- term loans

General Fund Debt Service Fund 313, 102 Short- term loans

General Fund Utility Fund 90, 054 Short- term loans

Utility Fund General Fund 277, 010 Short- term loans

Utility Fund Police Forfeiture Fund 1, 957, 927 Short- term loans

Utility Fund Debt Service Fund 64, 903 Short- term loans

Utility Fund Capital Improvements Fund 416,219 Short- term loans

Utility Fund Internal Service Fund 1, 093, 456 Short-term loans

Utility Fund Other Governmental Fund 208, 166 Short- term loans

Debt Service Fund Utility Fund 18, 002 Short- term loans

Internal Service Fund General Fund 823, 173 Short- term loans

Internal Service Fund Police Forfeiture Fund 37,029 Short-term loans

Internal Service Fund Utility Fund 108, 123 Short- term loans

Internal Service Fund Other Governmental Funds 501 Short- term loans

Capital Projecs Fund Other Governmental Funds 22, 817 Short- term loans

Other Governmental Funds Other Governmental Funds 2,923 Short- term loans

Total 5, 839, 493

All amounts due are scheduled to be repaid within one year. 

2. Transfers To and From Other Funds

Transfers to and from other funds at September 30, 2012, consisted of the following: 

Transfers From Transfers To Amount Reason

General Fund Debt Service Funds 427, 920 Supplement other funds sources

Utility Fund General Fund 1, 250, 000 Supplement other funds sources

Total
i_ 

1; 677,920

I
L
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G. Deferred Revenutt

Deferred revenues are primarily used for the deferring of property taxes that are not " measurable" in Nate B. An
analysis of deferred taxes at September 30, 2012 is as follows: 

All Governmental

Fund Types

Deferred Taxes $ 399, 037

Deferred Assessmentslinterest 68,019

Other 11,

4051
Total Deferred Revenue $- 478,511

H. L9g-Tem Obliaotls

1. Lang -Tema Obligation Activity

Long- term obligations include debt and other long- term liabilities. Changes in long- term obligations for the year ended
September 30, 2012, are as follows: 

Amounts

Beginning Ending Due Within

i

Balance Increases _ Decreases Balance One Year

Certificates of obligation $ 9, 556, 289 $ - $ 657, 045 $ 8,899, 244 $ 545, 152

Capital leases 110, 518 -- 25, 871 84, 647 27, 010

Total long- term debt 9,666,807 - 682, 916 8,983; 897 572, 162

Accumulated compensated

absences`: 915, 766 691, 654 756, 843 850, 577 226, 680
Other post -employment

benefits 682,845 123, 664 - 806, 509

Net Pension Obligation -- - -- 

Governmental activity
Total long- term debt $-- 11, 265, 418 81.5,318. $_ 1. 439, 759 $ jQ, 640, 977 $ 798, 842_ 

sitYa, activities: 

Revenue bonds -payable $ 190, 000 $ - $ 190, 000, $ 
Certificates of obligation ( 1) 18, 503_,711- 1, 102, 959_ 17, 400, 752 1, 427, 518

Total long-term deist 18,693, 711  1, 92,959 - 17,400,752 1, 427, 518

Landfill closure cost ( 2) 1, 931, 026 100, 000 2, 031, 026

Other post -employment

benefits 185, 728 31, 325 - 217, 053

Accumulated compensated

absences` 66,617 52,704 58, 190 61, 131 38, 500

Net Pension Obligation - - - 
Business -type activities

Long- term liabilities $ - 2ti,877,062 $ _ ___ 184429 $ 1, 357, 1.49 $ 19, 709, 962 $ 1466, 018

1) The utility funds share of the now issues of CO in conjunction with the general fund. 
2) See Note for prior year adjustment

In the governmental funds, the OPEB obligation will be liquidated by the General Fund ( 93%) and Special
Revenue Fund ( 7%) based on the allocation of the cost of self- insurance for health benefits. The General

Fund will typically liquidate 96% and Special' Revenue Fund will liquidate 4% of the pension liability. 

Other long- term liabilities
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The funds typically used to liquidate other long- term liabilities in the past are as follows: 

Liability Activity Type
Compensated absences Governmental activities

Other post -employment benefits Governmental activities, 

Net Pension Obligation Governmental activities

Compensated absences Business -type activities
Other post -employment benefits Business -type activities

Net Pension Obligation Business - type activities

Revenue bonds payable: 2412
T

2411

2,040, 040 Utility System Revenue Bonds
Series 1995; due in annual installments of

190, 040 through April 15, 2012; interest
at 3.95% to 5.8%. $ _ 

134, 444

Total Revenue Bonds Payable $ -- _ L9-0-10-0-0

2411
Certificates of obligation payable: 2412_ 

11, 780, 000 Certificates of Obligation

Series 2405 for General Improvements; due
in annual installments of $ 595, 400 to

994, 044 through August 2425; interest at
3. 00°! to 4. 125%. ( 100% Utility Fund). $ 14, 114, 444 10, 490, 000

10, 000: 040 Certificates of Obligation, 

Series 2011 for General Improvements; 

paid in annual installments of $ 5157400 to

525, 444 through 811! 2432, with interest

at 2. 01/6 to 4.6% ( 53. 8504°la General Fund 9, 755, 040 10, 004, 440

and 46. 1496 % Utility Fund). 

2,485, 400 Certificates of Obligation Series

L 2002A for General Improvements; due in
annual installments of $ 125,400 to $ 215,000
through February 1, 2023;. intertest at 4.25% 1, 505, 444
to 4. 7%. 1, 380, 000

1, 200, 400 Publid.. Property Financial

Contractual Obligation Series 2047 for

General Improvements; due in annual

installments of $ 145,000 to $ 154,000, 

through August 1, 2017; interest at 4. 11 %. 
General Fund 71. 667%, Utility Fund

560, 440 744, 444
35. 83337%). 

4, 274, 000 Certificates of Obligation Series
2009 for Capital Outlay, due in annual

installments of $ 645, 000 to $ 700, 004 through

February 1, 2021; interest at 3. 00°! to

3. 85%. ( General Fund 15.831°' x, Utility Fund
3, 740, 444

84. 169%). 9, 075, 000
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1, 890,000 General Obligation Refunding
Series 2009; due in annual installments of

215,000 to $ 260, 000 through February 1, 
2018; interest at 2. 25% to 3.75%. ( 100% 

General Fund). 1, 420, 000 1, 625,000

Total Certificates of obligation Payable
i

e6. 00 000 $ 28, 066, 000

2. Debt. Service Requirements

Debt service requirements on lung -term debt at September 30, 2012, are as follows: 

Governmental activities

Y b9-$= 1ej- X Principal Interest Total

21313 $ 822,4ff $ 318, 051

2014 849; 241 294,090 1, 143, 331

2015 827,984 268„581 1, 096, 565 1

2016 857, 052 243,646 1, 100, 698

2017 840, 961 215, 593 1, 056, 554

2018- 2022 2, 035, 932 762,630 2,798, 562

2023- 2027 1, 335, 481 447, 744 1, 783, 225

2028- 2032 1, 330, 111
i

179, 720 1, 509, 831

Totals $ 8, 89, 244 $_ 2 730, 061 $ 
J_ 

11 9,30562__ 

Business- typeiivities

Certificates of Obligation Revenue Bonds

YkaLEndiMSWkfflbffM, -- Principal_ interest Total

2013 $ 1, 427; 518 $ 688, 854 $ 2, 116,372

2014 1, 470, 759 644,851 2, 115, 610

2015 1, 492,016 596, 404 2,088, 420

2016 1, 547, 948 540, 998 2, 088,946

2017 1, 139, 039 481, 959 1, 620, 998 i
2018- 2022 5, 279, 068 1, 748, 915 7,027,983

2023- 2027 3, 904, 518 639,448 4, 543, 966

2028- 2032 1, 139, 896 154, 020 1, 293, 916

Totals $__ 17, 400, 762 5,495, 449 __ 22 896, 211

3. advance Refunding of Debt

In 2010, the City issued $ 1, 890,000 in bonds to refund the 1998 Bond Series and for bond issuance expense. 
As result, the City defeased 1, 845,000 of the 2009 Series Bond Debt of $ 1, 845, 000, leaving $ 1, 140,000

outstanding at year end. The City saved $79,716 in assts with a present value savings of $83,764. 
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GASB Statement No. 7, " Advance Refundings Resulting in Defeasance of Debt," provides that refunded debt

and assets placed in escrow for the payment of related debt service be excluded from the financial
statements. As of September 30, 2012, outstanding balances of bond issues that have been refunded and
defeased in -substance by placing existing assets and the proceeds of nevi bonds in an irrevocable trust to
provide for all future debt service payments are as follows: pefeased

Original
Original Balance

Bond Issue
Amount as of 9#30112

Series 1998 $ 
3, 000, 000 $_ 1, 140, 000

Total $ ,
400, 000 $ 1, 14€5, 000

4. Capital Leases

Commitments under capitalized lease agreements for facilities and equipment provide for minimum future
lease payments as of September 30, 2012, as follows: 

Year Enda Rf 30: 

2013 $ 
30, 734

2014
30, 734

2015
30, 734

Total Minimum Rentals
92,202

Less: Amount representing interest 7, 555

Present value of net minimum lease payments $ 114, 647

The effective interest rate on capital leases is 4.400%. 

I. Pension E a

1. Texas Municipal Retirement System

Plan Qescn sg l

The City provides pension benefits for all of its eligible employees, except firefighters, through a

non-traditional, joint contributory, hybrid defined benefit plait in the state-wide Texas Municipal Retirement
System ( TMRS), an agent multiple -employer public employee retirement system. The plan provisions that
have been adopted by the city are within the options available in the governing state statutes of TMRS. 
TMRS issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial statements
and required supplementary information ( RSI) for TMRS; the report also provides detailed explanations of the
contributions, benefits and actuarial methods and assumptions used by the System. This report may beobtained by writing to TMRS, P.O. Box 149153, Austin, TX 78714-9153 or by calling 800-924-8677; in
addition, the report is available on TMRS` website atwww. TMRS. com. 

The plan provisions are adopted by the governing body of the City, within the options available in the state
statutes governing TMRS. Plan provisions for the City were as follows: 

Plan Year Plan Year Plan Year

2410 _ 2011 2012

Employee deposit rate 7.0% 7. 0% 7. 0% 

Matching ratio ( city to employee) 
1. 5 to 1 1. 5 to 1 1. 5 to 1

L Years required for vesting 5 5 5

Service, retirement eligibility
60/ 5, 0/ 20 6015, 0120 6015, 0/ 20

expressed as agelyears of service) 
100% 100% 

Updated service credit
100% 

Y Y
repeating, transfers ( Y/N) 

70070% 70% 700
Annuity increase ( to retirees) 

IY Y
CPl repeating ( YN
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Contributions: 
I under the state lava governing TMRS, the contribution - rate for each city is determined annually by the actuary, 

using the Projected Unit Credit actuarial cost method. This rate consists of the normal cost contribution rate
and the prior service cost contribution rate, which is calculated to be a level percent of payroll from year to
year. The normal cost contribution rate finances the portion of an active member' s projected benefit allocated
annually; the prior service contribution rates include recognition of the projected impact of annually repeating
benefits, such as Updated Service Credits and Annuity Increases. 

The City contributes to the TMRS Plan at an actuarially determined rate. Both the employees and the City 1j make contributions monthly. Since the City needs to know its contribution rate in advance for budgetary
purposes, there is a one-year delay between the actuarial valuation that serves as the basis for the rate and the
calendar year when the rate goes into effect. The annual pension cost and net pension obligation/( asset) are
as follows: 

2010 2011 2012

Annual Required Contribution ( ARC) $ 1, 356, 595 $ 1, 332, 105 $ 1, 134, 814
Interest on Net Pension Obligation 14, 095 38, 706 55, 653

Adjustment to the ARC ( 11, 619) ( 32, 12$ 3) . ( 47, 840) 

Annual Pension Cost ( APC) 1, 356, 688 1, 336, 729 1, 142, 628

Contributions made ( 1, 041, 964) ( 1, 059, 765) ( 1, 937, 673) 

Increase ( decrease) in net pension obligation 314, 724 278, 964 ( 795, 045) 

Net Pension Obligation!(Asset), Beginning of year 201, 357 516, 081 795, 045

Net Pension Obligaiionl( Asset), End of year _ 516_ 081: $ 795, 045 $ 
1{ 

The City fully funded the $ 795,045 for 2011, prior to 12131111. For 2012, the City fully funded the ARC and as t
a result does not have a net pension obligation at the end of 2012. 

Three Year Ttend Information 7
1

Annual Actual Percentage Net Pension
Fiscal Year Pension Contribution of APC Obligation/ 

Ending - _ CostAF' C) Made - Contributed ( asset) 
2010 $' 1, 356,688 $ 1, 041, 964 77. 00%$ 516, 081
2011 $ 1, 332, 105 $ 1, 059, 765 79, 55%$ 795,045
2012 $ 1, 105,220 $ 1, 900, 265 172. 00%$ — 

The required contribution rates for fiscal year 2011 were determined as part of the December 31, 2009 and 2010
actuarial valuations. Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation, December 31, 2011, also follows: 

Valuation Date 12/ 31/ 09 12131/ 10 12131111

Actuarial cost method Projected Unit Projected Unit Projected Unit
Credit Credit Credit

Amortization method Level percent level percent Level percent
of payroll of payroll of payroll

Amortization period 28 years - 27 years - 26 years - 
closed period closed period closed period

Asset valuation method 10 - year. 10 -year 10 - year
Smoothed Smoothed Smoothed

Market Market Market
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Valuation Date 12131149 12131110 12/ 31/ 11

Amortization Period for Now

Gains/ Losses 30 Years 30 Years 30 Years

Assumptions

Investment return " 7.5% 7. 0% 7. 5°1° 

Projected salary increases ` Varies by age Varies by age Varies by age
and service and service and service

Includes Inflation at 3. 0% 3.0% ` 3. 0% 

Cost -of -Living adjustments 2. 1% 2, 1% 2. 1°°, 

Funding Status and Funding Progress - In June, 2011, SB 350 was enacted by the Texas -Legislature, resulting
in a restructure of the TMRS funds. This legislation provided for the actuarial valuation to be completed, as if
restructuring had occurred on December 31, 2010. In addition, the actuarial assumptions were updated for the
new fund structure, Lased on an actuarial experience study that was adopted by the TMRS Board at their May, 
2011 meeting ( the review compared ' actual to expected experience for the four-year period of January 1, 2006
through December 31, 2009). For a complete description of the combined impact of the legislation and new
actuarial assumptions, - including the effects on TMRS city rates - and funding , ratios, please see the December
31, 2011 TMRS Comprehensive Annual Financial Report ( CAFR). 

The funded status as of December 31, 2011, the most recent actuarial valuation date, is as follows: 

Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial UAAL as a

Valuation Value of Accrued Funded Unfunded AAL Covered Percentage of

Date Assets Liability ( AAL) Ratio ( URAL) Payroll Covered Payroll

12131111 $ 40,246,749 $ T 44,637, 193 90. 2% $ 4,390, 444 $ 9, 024, 567 48. 6% 

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probabilcty
of events far into the future. Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision as actual results
are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. 

Actuarial calculations are based .on the benefits provided under the terms of the substantive plan in effect at
the time of each valuation, and reflect a long-term perspective. Consistent with that perspective, actuarial

methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial
accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets. The schedule of funding progress, ' presented as Required
Supplementary Information following the notes to the . financial statements, presents multi- year trend

information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to
the actuarial accrued liability of benefits. 

2. Texas Statewide Emergency Services Personnel Retirement Fund

Plan fico

System ( TESRS), a cost-sharing multiple employer pension system established and administered by the State
of Texas to provide pension benefits for emergency services personnel who serve without significant monetary
renumeration. The Texas Statewide Emergency Services Personnel Retirement Fund is considered a
component unit of the State of Texas financial reporting entity and is included in the State' s financial reports
as a pension trust fund. At August 31, 2012, there were 214 member fire or emergency services departments
participating in TESRS. Eligible participants include volunteer emergency services personnel who are
members in good standing of a participating department

At August 31, 2012, TESRS membership consisted of_ 
State city

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 2, 758 13

Terminated members entitled to benefits but not yet receiving them 2, 260 - 

Active Participants (Vested and Nonvested) 4,2306

9, 248 . 19

66



1

CITY OF KIN!GSV' ILLE 1
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL. STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

The above membership count does not include retirees and beneficiaries that have been in the H. B. 250
TexasLocal Fire Fighters Retirement Act ( TLFFRA) Fund before merging into S.B. 411. Nineteen members

were covered by the City of Kingsville. 

Senate Bill 411, 65th Legislature, Regular , Session ( 1933), created TESRS and established the applicable

benefit provisions. The 39th Legislature, Regular Session ( 2005), recodified the provisions and gave the

TESRS Board of Trustees authority to establish vesting requirements, contributions levels, benefit formulas, 
and eligibility requirements by board rule. The benefit provisions include, retirement benefits as well as death

and disability benefits. Members are 5M,, vested after the tenth year of service, with the besting percent
increasing 10% for each of the next five years of service so that a member becomes 100% vested with 15 years

of service. Upon reaching age 55, a vested member may retire and receive a monthly pension equal to his
vested percentage multiplied by six times the governing body' s average monthly contribution over the
member' s years of ' qualifiedservice. For years of service in excess of 15 years, this monthly
benefit is increased at the rate of 6. 2% compounded annually. 

On and off-duty death benefits and on- duty disablity benefits are dependent on whether or not the member
was engaged in the performance of duties at the time of death or disability. heath benefits include a lump
sum amount and continuing monthly payments to a member' s surviving spouse and dependent children. 

When a department with Texas Local Fire Fighters Retirement Act ( TLFFRA) pension plan elects to participate
in the TESRS, the TLFFRA pension plan is dissolved and merged into the TESRS pension system. TLFFRA

is an agent multiple- employer plan. On the date of the merger, all assets and liabilities of the TLFFRA

pension plan are merged with TESRS on an actuarially sound basis and become an allocated part of the
system. Those members receiving retirement benefits under the former TLFFRA pension are converted into
the TESRS pension system as if they had been TESRS members as of entry date. This conversion is

determined actuarially through cost studies. 

Fundin{I flolicy
TESRS - Contributions provisions were originally established by S. B. 411, 65th Legislature, Regular Session
1993) and were amended by board rule in 2000. No contributions are required by individual members of

participating departments. The governing bodies of participating departments are required to contrubte at
least the minimum prescribed amount per month -($ 36) for each active member and may contribute more- oreAdditionalAdditionalcontributions may be made by a governing body to pay for granting credit for sevice before the
department began pardciipating in TESRS ( prior service). The State may also be required to make annual
contributions up a limited amount to make TESRS actuarially sound. 

Approximately 85% of the costs of administering the pian for fiscal year 2012, was financed through general revenue
appropriations, the other 15% being funded through TESRS. 

TLFFRA - The costs of the TLFFRA pension plan merger are determined on an actuarially sound basis. The

costs must be certified by a qualified actuary as of. the effective date of the merger or within two years following
the date of merger. If the governing body has insufficient funds to pre-fund for liabilities, the : TESRS State
Board by rule may allow for a payment plan. The liabilities of the merged TLFFRA pension pian are then

administered by F'FPC invoicing the local governing bodies for payment. These payments are always equal to
the merged. TLFFRA pension benefits and therefore, there is no fund balance. As of August 31, 2012, there

was one-plan merged into the TESRS pension system, 

ContributiQns Rearimed and r}tpibutia p

TESRS - The contribution requirement per active emergency services personnel member per month is not
actuarialty determined. Rather, the minimum contribution provisions were set by board rule, and there is no
maximum contribution rate. For the fiscal year ending August 31, 2012, total contributions ( dues and prior
service, and interest on financing of prior service) of $ 3,513,455 were paid into TESRS by " the political
subdivisions seared by the member volunteer emergency services personnel. The State did not appropriate

any state contribution for the fiscal years ending August 31, 2011 and 2012. 
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The purpose of the biennial actuarial valuation is to determine if the contribution arrangement is adequate to
pay the benefits that are promised. Actuarial assumptions made, include level dollar, open amortization
method, and a 30 year amortization period. Relating to the Actuarial Value of Assets --all assets are valued at
market value as determined by the System Board of Trustees, with an adjustment made to uniformly spread
the recognition of actuarial gains or losses ( as measured by actual market value investment return vs. assumed
market value investment return) over a five-year period. The total adjustment amount shall be limited as
necessary such that the actuarial value of assets shall not be less than 800/6 of market value nor greater than
120% of market value. 

L The actuarial valuation as of August 31, 2010 revealed the adequacy of the expected contributions from the
political subdivisions ( dues and prior service contributions) together with the actual state appropriations for the
fiscal year ending August 31, 2010 and with the assumed continuation of legislative approprationsof ( 1) the
maximum state contribution amount in future years for up to 30 years as is necessary for the System to have a
30 -year amortization period, and ( 2) approximately $ 500,000 each year to help pay for the System' s
administrative expenses. The last actuarial valuation was conducted as of Austust 31, 2014, and revised in
April of 2011, thus the numbers in this Annual Financial Report are different from those presented in 2010. On

August 31, 2010 the actuarial liabilities exceeded the actuarial assets by $ 17, 150, 427. The actuarial

valuation for fiscal year ending August 31, 2012 is currently being conducted, however, the results are not

available at the time of issuance of this financial report. 

TLFFRA - Currently contributions are not actuarially determined. ` Contributions are made by local governing

bodies of the former TLFFRA plans on a pay-as-you-go basis. Those members receiving retirement benefits
under the merged TLFFRA pension plan are converted into the TESRS pension systema For the fiscal year
ended August 31, 2012, total contributions from local governing bodies for merged TLFFRA pension benefits
were $373, 189. For the City of Kingsville, this contribution was $10,099. 

A ya[ uired C '  

The employer annual pension cost of $ 10, 099 for fiscal year ended August 31, 2012 was equal to the required
and actual contributions. Three- year information is as follows: 

2010 2011 2012

Annual Required Contribution $ 8,458 $ 8, 636 $ 10, 099

Percentage of Required Cost Contributed 10 Mo 100% 100% 

Financial reports that include financial statements and supplementary information for each plan are publicly
available at the locations shown below. 

Address
Plan

Fire Fighters' Retirement System P, O. Box 12577
Austin, TX 78711

l l i[ eiSuRltlementary inform io
The information presented in the required supplementary schedules was determined as part of the actuarial
valuations at the dates indicated. Actuarial assumptions and methods as of the latest actuarial valuation
follows: 

Valuation date August 31, 2010

Actuarial cost m9thod Entry Age

AmortizationmethodLevel dollar, open

Amortization period 30 years
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Asset valuation method Market value smoothed by a 5- year deferred
recognition method with a 80% / 120% 

corridor on market value

Actuarial Assumptions: ' 

Investment rate of return * 7. 75% per year, net of investment expenses

Projected salary increases WA

Includes inflation at 3. 50% 
A

Cost- of- living adjustments None

3. City of Kingsville Referred Compensation. Plan Restatement

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 32, " Mounting and Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue
Code," Section 457, Deferred Compensation Plans, the Plans were amended in 1998 as the assets are field in
trust to meet the Internal Revenue Service requirements. 

The City does not have significant administrative involvement in the asset of its plan nor does it perform any
investment function for the plan. Therefore, the plan is not, presented . as part of the City's Financial
Statements. 

J. Bgmefits

1. uL-Eawlayment Health Care Benefifs

GASB Statement No. 45: Accounting and, Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits
Other than Pensions ( OPEB), established new accounting standards for postretirement benefits. The new
standard does not require funding of OPEB expense, but any difference between the annual required
contribution (, ARG) and the amount funded during the year is required to be recorded in the employer' s
financial statement as an increase ( or decrease) in the net OPER obligation. The effective date for

implementation of GASB 45 by the City of Kingsville is October 1, 2t 07. Accordingly, the City did obtain an
actuarial valuation in accordance with GASB 45 standards as of October 1, 21311 and discloses the following: 

Dote: Actuarial valuations are done every two years.. ci
6

I
Plan_A " n c f3fi Fundints c?JAt

Employees who retire_ from the City of Kingsville are eligible to continue to participate in the City' s health
insurance program at the employee group rate which is determined annually by the City of Kingsville and
approved by the City Commission. Retirees have 31 days to elect to continue with the City' s self-funded health
insurance plan ( City of Kingsville Benefit Plan Trust) in which they were participating at the time or retirement
unless otherwise stated in the plan document or collective bargaining agreement. As of. September 31, 2012, 
a total of 6 eligible retirees were participating in the City' s group health urogram. The City provides one half
of the funding for retiree premiums. Retiree's dependents are excluded from the calculation and are eligible
to continue heafth coverage at the designated COBRA rates during their eligibility period. 
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ua14 PE8 Ggst nld A1ei OPERQbIlgation

The City' s annual other post-employement benefit ( OPER) cost is calculated based on the annual required
contribution ( ARC) of the employer, an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of
GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to
cover normal costs each year and to amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities over a period not to exceed 30
years. The City' s annual OPER cost is as follows: 

OPEB Cost for Fiscal Years Ending 2013 and 2012 FYE 2010 FYE 2011 FYE 2012

Normal Cost $ 96, 690 $ 99,217 $ 79,447
Minimum Amortization of UAL 100, 221 102, 841 102, 977

Interest Adjustment to Year- end 7,876 8, 082 7, 297

Annual Required Contribution 204, 787 210, 140 189, 721

ARC adjustment ( 19, 548) ( 27, 699) ( 31, 021) 

Interest Adjustement to Net OPEB Obligation 21, 894 28, 995 34, 743

OPER Cost 207, 133 211, 436 193, 443

Contributions Made ( 29, 596) ( 67, 744) ( 38, 454) 

Increase in Net OPEB Obligation 177, 537 143, 692 154, 989

Net OPEB Obligation - beginning of year 547,345 724,881 868, 573

Net OPER Obligation - and of year $___ 724 ,881 $ 868, 573 $ 1, 023, 562

Percentage of

Annual OPER

Fiscal Year Annual OPEB Cost Net OPER

Ended Cost Contributed Obligation, 

09130/ 10 $ 207, 133 14. 30% $ 724, 881

09/ 30/ 11 $ 211, 436 32. 001/6 $ 868, 573

09130112 $ 193, 443 19. 88% $ 1, 023, 562

Euntla Status and EundinaProgress
The funded Status of the plan as of September 30, 2011, was as follows: 

Actuarial Valuation Hate 10/ 01/ 2011

Actuarial Value of Assets $ -- 

Actuarial Accrued Liability $ 2, 883, 303

Unfunded Actuarial Liability $ 2, 883, 303

Funded Ratio 0. 0% 
Annualized Covered Payroll $ 8, 003, 491

Ratio of Unfunded Actuarial Liability to Annual Covered Payroll 36. 00% 

Actuarial Cost Method Entry -Age Norma! 

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability
of events in the future. Amounts determined regarding the status of the plan and the annual required
contributions of the City are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared to past expectations
and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required
supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend

information that shows whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative
to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits. 
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A trial Methods. anl:A;s, l

Projections of benefits are based on the substantive plan and iAclude the type of benefits in force at the
valuation date and the pattern of sharing benefits between the City and the plan members at that
point. Actuarial calculations reflect a long term perspective and employ methods and assumptions that
are designed to reduce the short term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets. 
Significant methods and assumptions used for this valuation are as follows: 

MeasurementDate October 1, 2011

Actuarial Cost Method Entry - Age Normal Method

Amortization Period 30 Years. Open

Amortization Method Level Percent of Payroll

Discount Rate 3. 5011/6

CPI 3. 40°le

Healthcare Cost Trend Rate 9.0% Initial rate, 5. 0% uiitmate rate. 9 year grade
in period. 

Payroll Growth Rate 3.00% annually

K. mitm nL%-and Ctrntirlgecnles

1. Contingencies

The City participates in grant programs which are governed by various rules and regulations of the grantor
I

agencies. Costs charged to the respective grant programs are subject to audit and adjustment by the grantor
agencies; therefore, to the extent that the City has not complied with the rules and regulations governing the
grants, refunds of any money received may be required and the collectabitity of any related receivable may be
impaired. In the opinion of the City, there are no significant contingent liabilities relating to compliance with
the rules and regulations governing the respective grants; therefore; no provision has been recorded in the
accompanying basic financial statements for such contingencies. 

2. Litigation

No reportable litigation was pending against the City at September 94,2012. 

L. BudgetaN J= 

Budgets for the General Fund, budgeted special revenue, debt service, and budgeted capital projects funds are
adopted in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles ( GAAP). The City, adopted budgets for the
fiscal year ended September 30, 2412 for the following funds: 

General Fund
Tourism Fund

Debt Service Fund

Capital Projects Fund
Utility Fund
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General Fund budget amendments approved curing the year included the following: 

1 $ 91, 073 addition to revenues and other financing sources comprised mainly of: 
44, 000 in Sanitation Services — Garbage Fee Revenue was originally budgeted conservatively. 

LLL Increase in expected revenue used to appropriate for increased fuel and vehicle maintenance
expenses. 

47, 073 in Sanitation Services - Landfill Fee Revenue was originally budgeted conservatively. 
Increase in expected revenue used to appropriate for increased fuel and vehicle maintenance
expenses. 

1, 787, 371 addition to expenditures and other financing uses comprised mainly of: 
32,829 in City Special Asessments -- Other Service Expenditures for the city' s portion of the

expenditures for the Kleberg County Golf Course. 

76, 408 in Financial Services — Capital Outlay Expenditures for the upgrade of the time clock and
attendance management system, and Collections Accounts Receivable package. 

47,432 in Planning Department -- Building Maintenance Expenditures for corridor landscaping
program and community clean up/ demo projects. 

25, 575 in Community Appearance -- Service Expenditures for professional services for website
enhancement. 

25,350 in Community Appearance - Building Maintenance Expenditures for a dumpster enclosure
pilot program. 

29, 432 in Engineering Department Services Expenditures for assisting Texas A& M

University -- Kingsville with the Kleberg Avenue Engineering Design. 

77, 400) in Police Department -- Personal Service Expenditures were originally budgeted

conservatively. The reduction in personal services appropriation was used for CRIMES maintenance
agreement. 

89, 572 in Police Department - Supplies Expenditures for body armor. 

43, 730 in Police Department - Services Expenditures for CRIMES maintenance agreement and travel. 

43, 692 in Police Department Building Maintenance Expenditures for signage, building repairs, 
and landscaping. 

67,274 in Fire Department -- Supplies Expenditures for fuel, supplies, bunker gear, and laptops. 

58, 266 in Public Works Administration -- Building Maintenance Expenditures for public works yard
fence, electric gate opener, canopy, gas pumpbs and catwalk. 

24,736 in Public Works Administration -- Capital Outlay Expenditures for a welding shed. 

36, 000 in Garage Department -- Capital Outlay Expenditures for a vehicle purchase. 

23,886) in Sanitation Department — Personal Services Expenditures as the original salary and

benefits were budgeted conservatively and reappropriated to be used to finance vehicle and
machinery repairs. 

62, 405 in Sanitation Department -- Supplies Expenditures for fuel, supplies, and dumpsters. 
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71, 854 in Sanitation Department -- Equipment Maintenance Expenditures for vehicle and machinery
E

maintenance. 

236; 283 in Sanitation Department -- Capital Outlay Expenditures for the purchase of vehicle and
equipment purchase: 

527,211 in Street Department — Street and Building Maintenance Expenditures for street repairs and
drainage projects. 

33, 616 in Street Department -- Capital Outlay Expenditures for the purchase of a vehicle. 

223,44.1 in Landfill Department -- Capital Outlay Expenditures for landfill expansion and equipment
purchase. 

i $ 33, 551 in Recycle Center — Building Maintenance Expenditures to replace sidewalks and make
exterior repairs. 

100, 000 in Operating Transfers Out in order to provide upgrades to fire station 42. 

M. C Eir aensa e 

The City allows employees to accumulate ,an unlimited amount of unused sick leave, vacation and holidays. Upon
termination, the maximum hours paid are as follows: 

Vacation Sick Leave

Salary (after completion of probation) 120 - 720(l) 
Hourly (after completion of probation) 120 720( 2) 
Police Department 240 720 I
Fire Department 250 1200
Fire Marshall 166 800

1) Salaried employees may be paid up to 720 hours if these hours were earned prior to January 1, 1884. Hours
earned after this date ars not paid. ( 2) Hourly employees may be paid up to 720 hours if these hours were earned prior
to January 1, 1984. After this date, hourly employees may be paid a maximum of 240 hours. 

There is no limit on accumulated holiday hours to be paid at termination. As of September 30, 2012, the liability
for accrued vacation leave and accrued sick leave is approximately $ 911, 708. The amount applicable to the
General Fund and Enterprise Fund of $ 850,577 and $ 61, 131, respectively, and have been recorded in its respective
fund. 

N. Cotorads Witt- SolithTe aier strty

South Text AU# y.CAniract s n9 C}ctra1LL 14}6T44t 71I7eLQ. eXt E[!$ 4 x. 13!! 

The South Texas Water Authority ( STWA) was created in 1979 as a conservation and reclamation district to finance, I' 

construct and operate a regional water supply system which will supply treated water on a wholesale basis to the
incorporated cities of Kingsville, Bishop, Driscoll, and Agua Dulce and to the unincorporated community of
Banquete. Each of these cities is totally reliant on ground water from the Goliad Formation, an aquifer which
underlies hfueces Kleberg and several adjacent counties. Withdrawal of water from the Goliad Formation created
numerous zones of depression or declines in the water table. Additionally, some locations in the area as well as a
number of individual welts were producing water of marginal quality particularly in regard to dissolved solids and
chloride levels. The Authority's system, which was completed and accepted on September 1, 1984, consists of

pipeline facilities orginating at the City of Corpus ChristiO. N. Stevens Water . Treatment Plant at Catatlen, 
Texas, with terminal ground storage facilities located at Driscoll ( 150, 000 gallons), Bishop ( 750, 000), Kingsville
5,000,000), Banquete and Ague Dulce ( 150,040). The Authority is also authorized to contract the sale_ of water to

non-members. Contracts have been entered into with Coastal Bend ` youth City, Ricardo Water Supply Corporation
and hlueces Water Supply Corporation. The Authority has the ability to levy. property taxes in its district not to
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exceed $. 10 per $ 16a assessed valuation. The Authority purchases treated water from the City of Corpus Christi
and delivers it into ground storage facilities constructed by 4 and located at the designated delivery point in each
customer city. Use and resale of such water by the customer city is subject to all of the terns, conditions, and
restrictions set forth in the Authority' s water supply contract with Corpus Christi. The price of water will be uniform

among the STWA customer cities and will be based on water rates as discussed below. 

PRICES AND TERMS

L ( A) Water Rate - The City shall pay for all water delivered into its system from the Authority at the Water irate, which
shall be the sum of two elements - a Handling Charge and the Cost of Water as described as following: 

1. Handling Charge

a. The Handling Charge shall be designed to cover all of the Authority" s expenses other than the Cost of
Water, including operation and maintenance expenses and amounts budgeted to be paid in the current

L year for capital improvements, plus an amount sufficient to accumulate and maintain a reasonably
adequate reserve fund as stated in subparagraph b, less tax receipts and all other income and
revenue. The Handling Charge, commencing on the effective date of this one-year Contract Extension and
remaining in effect until September 3g, 2612 was $.426386 per thousand gallons of water delivered. 

b. Each Contract Year the Authority may, adjust the Handling Charge to cover reasonable increases in the
Authority' s expenses and to accumulate and maintain a reasonable amount of reserve funds, provided
that the increase in any one Contract Year may not exceed 5% of the above stated initial Handling
Charge and that the total reserve funds of the Authority reasonably projected at its maximum during any
Fiscal Year shall not exceed $ 1. 171 million. It the actual or projected reserve exceeds $ 1. 171 million, 

the Handling Charge shall be reduced accordingly for the next Contract year. 

C. The adjustment in the Handling Charge may exceed an increase of 5% in any Contract Year if the
Authority obtains prior written approval of customers representing in the aggregate not less than 75% of

the water purchased from the Authority during its preceding Fiscal Year. 

d.. Notice of a change in Handling Charge shall be delivered to the City on or before the 13th day of
August of each Contract Year. The notice shall state the amount of the new .Charge and the reason and
calculations for the adjustment. The new Handling Charge shall be effective commencing at the
beginning of the next Contract Year. 

e. The City may object to the Handling Charge for any Contract Year after the initial year by delivering
to the Authority a notice stating the nature of the City' s objection to the Charge. The objection shall be

resolved by fallowing the dispute resolution procedures established in the contract If the dispute is not
resolved by the beginning of the subject contract Year, the City shall pay at the new rate until the
disputa is resolved. The Handling Charge determined through the dispute resolution procedure shall be
effective as the beginning of that Contract Year unless otherwise agreed by the parties. 

f. Any change in the Handling Charge, by agreement, dispute resolution, or otherwise shall apply to all
customers of the Authority, in accordance with the contract. 

g. At the end of the term of this Contract, the City may, request a retroactive , adjustment in the price of
water delivered in the last year of the Contract if the Authority' s reserve fund exceeds $ 1. 171 million on
the last day of that last Contract Year. The request shall be resolved by use of the dispute resolution
procedures stated in the contract. 
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2. Cost of Water

The Cost of Water shall be as defined as meaning the actual price per one thousand gallons paid by the
Authority to the City of Corpus Christi for water received by the Authority under the Corpus Chrisiti Water Supply
Agreement during a Service Month. It is expected that the Cost of Water will fluctuate from month to month, 
resulting in a corresponding fluctuation in the Water Rate. The mater rate ranged from $ 1. 739579 to

1. 769488. 

3. Water Supply Contract Extension

The current contract expired on September 30, 2012, however the City has extended their Water Supply
Contract with STWA for one year to allow adequate time to negotiate a new contract. 

GUAR UT_EED_FUflQHAaE

A) The City shall purchase a minimum volume of water not to be less than $ 350,000 annually unless additional
purchases are necessary to supplement the City of Kingsville water requirements. The City purchased $ 367,264 and

351, 327 in 2012 and 2411, respectfully. 

0. I i[ c lana

1. The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors
and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City obtained general; lawn enforcement, 
error and omissions; automobile, mobile equipment, real and personal property liability coverage; workers' 
compensation and unemployment insurance at a cost that is considered to be economically justiflabie by
joining " together writh other govermentai entities" in the State oto form the Texas Municipal League
Intergovernmental Risk Pool, ( ML), a Self -Funded Pool currently operating . as a common risk management
and insurance program for approximately 1, 800 members. The City pays an annual premium to TML for its
above insurance coverage. The agreement for the formation of TML provides that TML will be self- sustaining
through member premiums and will reinsure- through commercial companies for claims in excess of acceptable
risk levels; however, each category of coverage has its own level of reinsurance. The City continues to carry
commercial insurance for. all other risks of loss, including employee health and accident insurance. Settled I
claims from these risks have not exceeded, commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal
years. TML"s annual Financial . Statements can be obtained at 211 East Seventh Street, Third Floor, 
Austin, Texas 78701. 

2. Health Insurance

The City began to self -insure for health insurance due to the high cost of commercial health insurance, 
effective October 1, 2001. A stop loss policy which covers health claims in excess of $ 75,000 perindividual
with a maximum lifetime coverage of $ 925, 000 is kept in force. In addition, the City' s aggregate stop loss
coverage is $ 1 million and the City maintains aggregate coverage of its group health expenses at 100% of

projected claims. Settlements have not exceeded insurance coverage during the current year. 

All funds of the City participate in the program and make payments to the Self -Insurance Fund based on
estimates of amounts needed to pay prior and current year claims. The claims liability of $ 212, 364 at

September 30, 2012 is based on requirements of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 1
10, which requires that a liability for claims be reported if information prior to the issuance of the financial II
statements and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Changes in the fund claims liability
amounts for fiscal year' 2012 and 2011 were: 

Current - Year

Beginning -of Claims and Balance at
Fiscal -Year Changes in Claim Fiscal

Liabilii v_ Estimates Payments Year -End
2011 $ 178, 217 $ 1, 939, 689 $ 1, 86ff 4_l5 $ 255,4!1
2012 $ 255,491 $ 2, 280, 493 $ 2,323,620 $ 212. 3434
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The liability at year end is equal to three months of paidclaims subsequent to 9130/ 12 but that had been
incurred prior to that date, and is considered a current liability for reporting purposes. 

3. Litigation Tort Claims

The City is a defendant in various tort claims and lawsuits involving general liability, automobile, civil rights
actions, and various contractual matters. In the opinion of the City' s management and counsel, the outcome
of the pending litigation will not have a material effect on the City' s financial position or operation. 

P. IisUIJ1d Polclosure Care Cost

State and federal laws and regulations require that the City place a final cover - on its landfill when closed and
perform maintenance and monitoring functions at the landfill site for thirty years after closure. in addition to

operating expenses related to current activities of the landfill, expense provisions and related liabilities are being
recognized based on the future closure and postclosure care costs that will be incurred near or after the date the
landfill no longer accepts waste. The recognition of these landfill closure and postclosure costs its based on the
amount of the landfill used during the year. The amount of the liability is based on what it would cost to have all
such closure and postclosure care performed in the current year, and is assigned to periods based on cumulative
landfill use.. The estimated liability for landfill closure and postclosure care costs recorded in the business -type
activities at September 30, 2012 is $ 2,031, 026 based on 31. 5% usage ( filled) of the landfill through ' September
30, 2012. It is estimated that an additional $ 4,416, 967 will be recognized as closure and postclosure care expenses
between the date of the balance sheet and the date the landfill is expected to be filled to capacity 2060. The

estimated total current cost for the landfill closure and postclosure care of $ 100, 000 is based on the amount that
would be paid if all equipment, facilities, and services required to close, monitor, and maintain the landfill were
acquired as of September 30, 2012. However, the actual cost of closure and postclosure care may be higher due to

Linflation, changes in technology, or changes in landfill laws and regulations. 

Q.iFror Pekd- Adiustment

1. Prior Period Adjustment -- Landfill

The, City had an Engineer' s Study performed on the landfill in 2012 in order to recalculate usage, with the
results depicted in the table below. Based an the revised usage estimate, the pre- and postclosure costs were

over stated by $ 2,176,525. Therefore, this amount was reversed against unrestricted assets in the

Business - type Activities Funds. It should be noted the previous Engineer's Study had been completed in 1999
and incorrectly utilized 34 acres of gross land area as the landfill area, when it should have been 85. 3
acres. The 85. 3 acres of gross land area is now being utilized. Further, it should be noted that the City has
restricted cash in the amount of $ 3, 772, 330 to cover these expenses and is increasing this amount

i approximately $ 340,000 a year. 

Estimated Percentage Remaining Current Year Year of

Estimate YearLiability Used Closing Costs Additions Completion_ 

Original 2011 $ 4, 107, 731 89. 7611/6 $ 536, 704 253,684. 2014

Restated 2012 $ 2, 031, 026 31. 50% $ 4, 416, 967 $ 100, 000 2€760

2. Prior Period Adjustment — Police Forfeiture Fund

The City, in the major Police Forfeiture Fund ( PFF), had incorrectly recorded $ 138, 133 as revenue in 2011, 

when in fact the decision by the Court to award this revenue was not made until 2012. As a result, the PFF
restated Fund Balance has been corrected and the revenue was recorded in the 2012 year. 

R. Se smer i,lslf© rmatian fob_ me rise Fun,, 

Because the utility system fund is a segment and is reported as a major fund in the fund financial statement, 
segment disclosures herein are not reported. 
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S. Non - Budge d Funds

Budgets are prepared for all governmental funds except the Federal and State Grant Funds and Capital Projects
Fund adopted project - length budgets. The Police Forfeiture Fund and tither Special Revenues fund budgets were
not adopted nor were there any special commission action taken with regard to these funds. The budgets are
prepared on a basis consistent generally accepted accounting principles. All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal
year end. 

T, SubsaguBntFyeM

1. Certificates of obligation
The City issued $ 8, 230, 000 of Certificates of obligations, Series 2013 and $ 1, 260, 000 in Limited Tax l
Refunding Bond, Series 2013 in order to obtain funding for construction, repairs, equipment, and refunding a
portion of the City' s outstanding debt for Certificates of Obligations, Series 2002A; 

The Bond and Certificates of obligation Payout is as foilows: 

Bond Certificate of obligation
YearEndlCi m Principal --- interest Principal Interest Total
2013 -- - 14,700 $ T .. - $ _ .- $ 14, 700
2014 130, 000 23, 900 - 215;333 369, 233
2018 140, 000 21, 200 180,.000 136, 000 477, 200
2016 140, 000 18, 400 185, 000 132, 400 475, 800
2017 170, 000 15, 300 190,000 128, 700 504,000
2018- 2022 575, 000 36, 250 1, 265, 000 575,000 2,451, 250
2023- 2027 105, 000 1, 050 1, 415, 000 426, 300 1, 947, 350
2028- 2032 1, 635, 000 203, 850 1, 838, 850
2033 _ '" - - -- _ 360, 000 _ 10, 800 370, 800 4

Totals $__ 1, 264x940_$-__. 116, 100„$ 0, O09 $ 1, 828, 383 $ 8449, 18

2. Management has reviewed subsequent transactions balanceevents and that occurred after the sheet date through
April 13, 2012 ( the date that the City Council approved the financial statements). The financial statements include
all Type I events or transactions, including estimates, required to be recognized in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. Management , and those charged with governance have determined that there are
no non -recognized Type 11 subsequent events that require additional disclosure. 
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1

Variance with

Final Budget

Budgeted amounts Positive
Original Final Actual

Taxes. 

JiiT
Negative} 

r"+HTt: ST! T" r•. 

General Property Taxes: r rr. rr rr, rr

Current Taxes 4, 225, 282 4, 225, 202 13, 361) 
Delinquent taxes 75, 549 75, 549 r;„

f 62,607

Penalty & Interest 29, 030 29, 030 rr r fTPj` 68, 677
Late Rendition Fee 4,552 4,552

Ylr

rrrr, rti rr
4> G ; f

r 223
In Lieu of Tax Paymentsy 115, 254 115, 254 r' YJ r r .%'t' 1, 625

Total General Property Taxes 4,449, 587 4, 449, 87 rl 119, 771

City Sales Tax 4, 032, 283
rrr

4, 020, 01$ 
rYr rr rJ 1 1 J J J > .• 

184, 503

Mixed Drink Tax 42, 678
r1C

42,678
J'r,i fflYy f! .. 

1, 397) 11

Bingo Tax 3,0143, 014 1, 408

Business Taxes: YrYr r< Y, rj yr

Electric Franchise Tax 674,713 674, 713 `>

lrJ;
fra7 44, 153

Telephone Franchise Tax 130, 988 130, 988 ror''' rdfjTt y` 14„550) 
rY

Gas Franchise Tax 76, 194 76, 194 lJ,;;>° 1. 15, 033} 
Cable T. V. Franchise Tax 85, 390 85, 390 r °' r { 4,396} 
Total Business Taxes 967, 285_ 967, 285 10, 174
Total Taxes 9, 494, 847 9,482,582 r,` t`' f 314, 459

Permits and Licenses: 
yr

J

r,Yrr Y<irJ ._ 

rdrl

Plumbing Permits 5, 656 6, 656
JrJ x.. 

1, 701
Electric Permits 24, 893 24, 893, 1, 419} 

Building Permits 72, 566 72, 566 ;< r `' r'Y I ` r7 r ( 3, 771) 3, 771
Permits 990 990

r {

31Moviny0} 
Other Permits 35, 096 35, 096 3, 0178
Amusement Licenses 45 45
Beer & Mixed Drink Licenses 3, 391 3, 391 rr rr, ry r 48ryr lnr r { } 

Electrical Licenses 3,270 3,270r' r'rYY r,` g { 350} 
Contractor Licenses 25, 870 25, 870 iyr N r„ Y7 7 #¢ 1̀° l "i + 725
Food Handler Licenses 12, 975 12,975 160) 
Other Licenses 1, 330 1, 330 rYY t' 250

Total Permits and Licenses 186, 082 186, 082 374j

riesCCharges for rveces. A Services: 
Y

rJJf„ YYj
t  `' rJ T rJ T' r' 
1rJr Jr r, ! • 

jr• fM1 f < 
Yjr, r r

General Service Fees: 
y rrYn

Zoning Fees 3, 250 3, 2517 r' U r>' rJ ( 475} 
Platting Fees 917 917 r t„ f r y' t 1, 113
Police Accident Reports 3,545 3, 545 278} 
Arrest Fees 1, 310 1, 310 Y' rryr ry r r

f

393jrJ

Fire Reports 41 41
JTr i J. K> J

33} i
Fire Services 31, 195
Ambulance Service 547, 754 547,754 rY' T'' r

3

r rr {
10, 084} 

Other Senrice Fees 22, 859 22, 859 11, 592
Total General Service Fees 579, 676 539, 676

hr

33, 423

City/ County Services: f' N

WeedContro! 2&,298 28, 238

Yri' 
6, 717} 
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Variance with

Final Budget

Positive

LNe-- 9alive) 

68, 249

52, 901

1, 900

1, 075) 

121, 975

155, 664) 

123) 

4) 

386

155, 410

5, 115

31, 382

13, 036

44

3, 670

28, 590) 

19, 542

1, 750) 

330, 263

656

679

2

1, 337

2, 862

433

12, 920

16, 215

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2072

Budgeted Amounts

Original Final Actu

Sanitation Services: 

Garbage Fees 3,849, 308 3,093, 308 t'! 
Landfill Fees 514, 957 562, 030

Demolition Recovery Revenue
Miscellaneous 40, 681 40, 681

Total Sanitation Services 3, 604, 946 3, 696, 019

Total Charges for Services 4, 212, 920 4,303, 993. 
W

Fines and Forfeits: 

Court Fines 665,097 6665, 097

Minor Fines 236 236

L"'
ec" on of State Taxes

Other Court Fines
15, 797

17, 132

15, 797

17, 132

Total Fines and Forfeits 698, 262 698, 262

Special Assessments 610 10, 610

Interest and Miscellaneous: 
Interest from Investments 592) 1, 158

Auction Revenue 10, 000 10, 000

Sale of City Publications 1, 107 1, 107

Sale of Recycle Item 17, 946 17, 946

Miscellaneous 57, 046 56, 546

Total Interest and Miscellaneous 85, 507 86, 757

Donations 6, 250 `
FJ

Reimbursements - Interdepartmental Revenue 1, 750

Total Revenues 14, 678, 228 14, 776, 286

Expenditures:...... 

City Administration Department

City Commission: 
Personal Services

Supplies

66, 467

4,200

76,621

6, 840

Services 39, 100 38, 571

Total City Commission 109, 767 122, 032

City Manager-, 
Personal Services 207, 488 206, 735

Supplies 4, 700 11, 714

Services 18, 710 24,799

Total City Manager 230,898 243, 248
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Positive

LNe-- 9alive) 

68, 249

52, 901

1, 900

1, 075) 

121, 975

155, 664) 

123) 

4) 

386

155, 410

5, 115

31, 382

13, 036

44

3, 670

28, 590) 

19, 542

1, 750) 

330, 263

656

679

2

1, 337

2, 862

433

12, 920

16, 215
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Variance with

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Final Budget

PosiVveBudgeted Amounts
Actual ( Negative) Original Final

Downtown Tourism/ Development: 

1, 036

YY rrrrYr
X.•'' 

Personal Services 29,364 29, 364
Supplies 2, 100 3 250
Services 10, 250 9, 250

Total Downtown Tourism/ Development 41, 714 41, 864

Municipal Building. 

rrr..

IT

3, 843

r

Lrfr, 
Supplies 4,600 1, 600
services - 103, 075 94,834

Building Maintenance 20, 000 31, 641
Lease Payments 10, 200 9, 800

Total Municipal Building 137, 875 137, 875

Risk Management: 

YrjiYr
rf}

ryrrfixfJJ
rro4rfr1fF

Jrf,

fYJJ
xrfrrrr

Personal services 95, 615 95, 799
Supplies 24,000 21, 158
Services 21, 710 20,650
Equipment Maintenance 883

Capital Outlay 2, 835

Total Risk Management 141, 325 141, 325

City Special: 
Personal Services 94, 566 91, 833
supplies 761 1, 360
Services 605, 728 638, 557

Total City Special 701, 055 731, 750

Total City Administration Department 1_ 362, 634
v

1, 418, 094

Management Services Department

Personnel: 

Personal services 118, 738 119, 517
Supplies 3, 700 4, 918
Services 35, 970 38, 278

Total Personnel 158, 408 162, 713

Municipal Court: 

Personal services 165, 242 161, 9141, 91 4
supplies supplies 1, 700 3,787
Services 1, 600 3,670
Equipment Maintenance 300

Total Municipal Court 168, 842 169, 371

80

EXHIBIT , IB. 

Page 3 of8

Variance with

Final Budget

PosiVve

Actual ( Negative) 

r,

t rYrr:

Y

trYj4ftrrr JFrrY.rf

1, 036

YY rrrrYr
X.•'' 

1, 013

trrt
rrrrr

f

r5
frr,
fr(

rr4'

i+

Y<

r

3,438

fYryrY}rry{

47FfQifJrr
rY?

Y: 

f

5, 487

h

r(

rWsrrr

t,'(

rYry

FJr<
f

r

JfJrrr
rf4Y" 
rr 1, 049

rrY JYi
rrS' frr

X,<

rrsJY•,yt

85

rt. JxJJ
rrry' 

Jx<

r(

r

X»

fr<(< 

rrr..

IT

3, 843

r

Lrfr, rry

er 
4,977

t,

ff^";'. 

o 

rr

7, 732
r4` 

Yxfrr fr,,{
r

J>,

frfrrr.<
S

Ytrv7t

7,695 . 

5, 044
J,,

rrjrr. 
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f

rYrrr
f,

f4(

rfJ 
forrr

rlfx 

rYuX><
f'

f>(

y

r Y
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YrjiYr
rf}

ryrrfixfJJ
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Jrf,

fYJJ
xrfrrrr
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PJf

fa:,JJ- 

frJrJ[
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rY,

rrrrri 
ftrv, 

LrrJ
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rlYrr' 
49,775

f

rrrsirrr rrYr', 
X> 

fJyyY
J4fFFrt,
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rf,*
7f
i

Jif.
Jrf

YrYrE-
rYM1frri

Yrrrr
r
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7f,> 
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x,

x,

J' 

ei,,
J> 

yyifrYYr,< Y7F.
rrrK

r` + 

rr

Jfyx 

irrtYY^
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lYn
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fJrfJ

Jy

F

JJ>
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rrfrrY,JffrYrfr}
rr>

rrf(
rrr''•fJ

YYJ>"
ffrry,}

fYrr 76

trrrG
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fYrsrMY JYY
rr
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CITY OF KINGSVILLE E F leff B- 1

GENERAL FUND Page 4 of 8
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 201

Variance with

Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Positive

Original Final Actual ( Negative) 

Warrant Enforcement:
Y yr r f,T, Yv

AQYr , fr fJYvt

Personal Services 62, 106 62, 034} 10, 538

Services 72 fJt JYJJr Y -- 
Jrrrrkir1rJ f

Total Warrant Enforcement 62, 106 62, 1061`=';y'r 
r , r, , r, r, rrr

k 
10, 538

r sr, ryrr Y r, r

Finance; 

hf rYJr ryr, r r r

r,/ , rrr rr rsr, r
r , fi f, f, t / r r

Personal Services 345, 094 345, 138 3,310

Supplies 8, 800 11, 353 J`ff rY` l a' 
f 565

Services 62, 919 59, 793 3, 329

Capital Outlay 76, 408 fYl,/ Y'; 6,658
f t l Jr fl+J, 

Total Finance 416, 813 492,692

i

4Fy 13, 852
J, r , kJY„r., Y, J, r •'J l

Purchasing: 
r r, Y,: J/ stJ

t Yt,Ytf fY /,.. t

Personal Services 96,647 104, 856 1rJJN't'J J A'`& l% 
21.3

Supplies 13,200 12, 660 lr ' ry` J t Fr; 3, 138

Services 8, 775 6, 024 f 'W" /' Y
860

Equipment Maintenance 200 200 f r f; xk7, !. 200

Total Purchasing 118,822 123, 740

Yr f,r , qr r„ Y, rr

nVk `' r' ' '_ 
4, 411

Tftrtr t1TvjfY' F

Computer Operations: 
tY , rY•' fY%, 

Y, rrJYr r r, rrl, 

f , l JJl JY fJ Y
Personal Services 49, 074 50, 513 Y r,%'rte 607

LySupplies 33,625 3$, 673 J f r t ` 11271
r, r r, r fY r • r, 

Services 70,200 63, 795 YY r,°' 1, , rf
936

Equipment Maintenance 5, 000 Kf !'", r

rr'
f`' , J

Operations 157, 898 152, 981r

t f IJ r YY. hr
YrY rs • rY ryr, pJ'. 

r r, Y,'; 
ax'• 2, 814Total Computer 1 s

Total Management Seances Department 1, 082, 890 1, 163,

603yfYr 
r f,YYYfY h 36, 986

Department

f, fYY , fj} ff YtdJ

ld/ t , h hl , r,f trLegal r r rksr r ra r osis ^, 
fYJY, Y rl lrJr J! 

Personal Services

Supplies

159, 705

1, 800

159,701

4,904
r = r1`F 3, 958

J4k `
Y'YFd f. 963

Services 38, 400 51, 300 tisrr5 r: 11, 242

rJ
YJs

rr'?{' - - 
Total Legal Department 199, 905 215, 905

J

r'lfu frf,
r; 16, 163

r,Y J Y' r t,f, pYY , f J

Urban Development Department
k J'rrftrJr t,Y,r , 

Planning. 
Yfr fIYJ l rY fr

YGF QJ'•l,t

jrjrJ `}
f, Ft

Personal Services 131, 077 131, 849 FJfl i, 4,607

Supplies 2, 700 2, 233
y,,,,({, 

Y Y f r''
J

JJ r 7L7 tUJ 121

Services 3,300 23, 205 13, 249) 

Bur7ding Maintenance 47,432
Y i^ rY

fjrr ( 363) 

Total Planning 137,077 204, 719 8,884) 

4e hr. . hf.ff'•Y. 
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CITE` OF KINGSVILLE EXlitStT i,3- 1
GENERAL FUND Page 5 of 8
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 0012

f

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive

Original Final Actual Negative) 
Permits and Licenses: 

Personal Services 156, 810 152, 126 . rk' rr " 

r

1, 830
Supplies 7, 560 11, 204 1G GYfG` 1 Y 80
Services 5, 374

y7}} r

4,069 {, ylgrr,7
yrf G

f< rr
686

Equipment Maintenance 800
JY aYf+ 

2,375 86

Total Permits and Licenses 170, 453
rrr, tr JG

170, 674
J7 Y•. 

2, 632

tv1 i.{ f Community Appearance. Community
rf JYh4ryr

T L`7i 9 r, rX< f

w7„ lf X , ft

rrr., x, r
Y y qIJ

Personal Services 150, 140 148, 040 6, 594 I

Supplies 8, 200 17,625J y}, 
x 1, 889

Services 7.1, 100 96, 675 T y ' y yTXy f 37, 547
Equipment Maintenance 500 369

SGYy `'
7` rrf 1

Building Maintenance 25, 350 500
4

Total Community Appearance 229, 940
ySYf Gf{ rf

285, 359

af,
lr , r+y

r,7,r r,. Y

r 46,531

Y 

YtEngineering. 
yr

f}3CJ Jy! ji3l
rr

lf'i YfY3t

Personal Seances 86, 945 86, 349 4, 086
Supplies

Services
2, 341

4, 372

rYf rYr

8, 030. 
3,

JYJNr} k, rt

34,204 { Y!!} rrY}Yd

555

31, 139
Equipment Maintenance 750 750 r, , 7 Y yY 337

Capital [Jutlay- 14, 825
sr 

Total Engineering 95, 208 144, 558' 4,', , rt; 1 35; 007

Total Urban Development Department " 632, 078 809, 310 75, 296

Felice Department - 

yr,. rrrr„ rrr

rr, rt, rr

yr yl,7, 
t- 

Personal Services 3, 390, 502 3, 713, 102'
jy'` l rY r r, N , 

9,697
Supplies 163, 238

tYhrl7Jl+ 

252, 810 , ryfftt{+ gf 56,061
Services 363, 901 407, 631 „ if; r;; t, 25,402
Equipment Maintenance 73, 574 69, 408 `<; y; ``?r>n4

r

20,223

Building Maintenance
Debt Service

62, 358

20, 000

106, 050 JY! LY

20,

000r7,
yr

r3` 
fS, Y, y ' yr

22, 052
r[,< r} 

L' ` I-" 6, 76

Total Police Police Department 4,473, 573 4, 569, 001 Fihr FJ" c 220, 210

C } Fire De artrrr6n% 
Illy JlJflfJJfYe±` Gf SG J' Yt r

Personal Services 2,301, 959

T7,7

2, 388, 978 125, 528
Supplies 163,071 230, 345 ;}, yf,`.,, r 12,885
Services 178, 767 161, 280 ry7, rJr; 21; 846
Equipment Maintenance 21, 530

fr•y J fd
24, 351 ` r G 1f.7 266

Building Maintenance 37, 350 39,185 Tu. jr'rf Y
y,, 

f

2,248
Dent Service 30, 335 34, 85 f 3G 3 G' 693
Capital Outlay 12, 054 24, 307 Tntr Yr s 6,387' 

Total Fire Department 2,835, 506 2, 903, 684 iYy ,, 163,853
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CITY OF KINGSVILLE E3iHIBrr Earl

GENERAL FUND Page 6 of 8

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Variance with

Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Positive

Original Final Actual Negative) 

Volunteer Fire Department Jrr ,rte
JrJ t Jr r r4 , 7. 

r, rrrq f

Personal Services 11, 600 11, 600 ' >>! Y o ' i r
r;,Yr rrfr

341

Supplies 45,910
rr

61, 201 ' 4Y, YYJrJt 13, 73'8

Services 51, 471 65, 872
YSY

fr, Yr tr,,f 
22, 688

Equipment Maintenance 4y000 rf,'' 4, 40
YrYrr f r, 

Building Maintenance 3, 000 11, 869 ' , s ; fj  

Total Volunteer Fire Department 115,981
Kr,r„ r, rrr r< r

154,951 ;' ;,, 
r JJ

36, 767

Public Works Department 4Jl r, j7 rJ•J 3 Jr

Public Works Administration: 

Yrrjr r`}f£ r r r•r r`, 

Y'

yy'JrY[ r'gYPersonal Services 59, 829 59,964 f JYJ JY, r ffrjr ff 246

Supplies 7,497 11, 868 2, 356

Services 42,997 40, 237 1, 099

Equipment Maintenance 1, 900 2,900
Y f f (, f,{} 

236

Building Maintenance 8, 500 66,766 „
r

f' ff''', 
28, 337

Capital Outlay 30, 000 54,736 22, 823

Total Public Works Administration 150, 723
lJ I,Y M. ljrr, fY

236,471 r wY '< JrJ  
7rf , Yr, r, 

55, 097

ppGarage: 
r J J

qYY J f,Y, M1hf f

Personal Services 354,004 351, 244 35,065

Supplies 26,820 29, 079 YYfJM' tf,Y
Yrrr, Y, Y

887

Services 7, 248
r

7,708 f < iYl r ! L; 1, 416

Equipment Maintenance 2, 800 2,841 f' JfJ >,' Y , ' 351

Capital Outlay. 36, 400 ; y; JY < 
Y 579

Total Garage 390, 872 426,872 rJ r{ Y 38, 298

Sanitation. 
fj fF, Yf t, Yf 

Personal Services 754, 933 731, 047
fjYx{ J J. 

40,779

Supplies 126, 810 189, 215 } Y,' f„ fit';.: 2, 010

Services 29, 978. 30, 976 ' sr,` r., 
8, 278

Equipment Maintenance 97,000 168,854  J' ;' , ; 

r

4,024

Capital outlay 236, 283
r r r) , y r 
Jn YY}r„ x lt1'; 

Y ,, Y , Yj r, fjY•x

25,897) 

Tota( Sanitation 1, 008, 721 1, 356, 375 Jrtr',' r 29, 194
tri JJ Y

YfNY Y YYf , r,Y, 

Street: r.} r, C+.r, lrgr rY

Personal Services 736, 013 736,0138J3tJV' VW: 5, 31185, 311

Supplies 80, 168 r r, YY,Y83, 69(3 !,< rt,>,:l,Y
1, 922) 

Services 283, 149 272, 691 25, 80€3

Equipment Maintenance 52, 500 39, 373 YJr fJ' f fJam. 
rrryf, r, r

344

Building Maintenance 77, 600 604,811 194, 924

Capital Outlay
v

f f (, F ! 

33,616 <, f; . Y 1, 293

Total Street 1, 229, 430
ryr rY , Y Y, frflt

1, 770, 194 fr}: 305, 750
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CITY OF KINGSVILLE
GENERAL FUND

EXHIBIT B- 1 I

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

I

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Variance with I - 
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Positive
C7riginal Final --- 

Train Depot: 

Supplies 150 150
Services 21, 663 20, 921

Building Maintenance 4, 400 5, 142

Total Train Depot 26, 213 25, 213

Landfill. 

YrrJ i qr 1, 943
YJ • r rJr r r J rz+• rJ

Personal Services 359, 631 359, 903
Supplies 105, 307 118, 987

Services 231, 789 211, 547
Equipment Maintenance 49,000 49, 766

Building Maintenance 8,400 8, 000

Capital Outlay 223,441

Total Landfill 753, 727 971, 964

Recycling Center: 

PY, fYJYlrrYJf JY Yt

yr> r r rJ` 13, 937rr tit

Personal Services 31, 699 31, 773
Supplies 1, 708 2, 215
Services 8, 667 8, 518
Equipment Maintenance 2, 000 2, 000

Building Maintenance 2, 500 36, 051

Total Recycling Center 46, 574 80, 557

Total Public Works Department 3,606, 260 4, 868, 646

Health Department

Personal Services 256, 648 256, 648
supplies 40, 572 39, 945. 
Services 21, 675 24, 032
Equipment Maintenance 10, 258 13, 058

Building :Maintenance 10, 000 8, 970

Total Health Department 339, 153 342, 653

Rams and Recreation Department

services 200, 004 200, 000

Building Maintenance . 5, 000

Total Parks and Recreation Departrnent 200, 000 205,000
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EXHIBIT B- 1 I

Page 7 of 8
I

Variance with I - 
Final Budget

Positive

Actual ( Negative) 

Jif
KtJ > > 

r r r r

i
J FYC Y•'`• x'` Yf,wY' Y ,

7, 130

rYlr r````• _. rryJfr Yl J/ 

fJr rY rr ri•> r• 1

Yrf srrG YY•,rr 9, 234

lfJ>. 

1

uYfYl YYf3 JflC+i J 4
Yff J JJr rYtf f

rJYJ r r 3^/• py- rJ JY r ' Y Ti ` rr 3+9x6[%3
Z 3, 546

Yr rt rY rJr r

48, 843

yf Yhr 

6Y>
J' t, HSTM! 

19, 217

YrrJ i qr 1, 943
YJ • r rJr r r J rz+• rJ

r lYtf. t1'. 120, 004 I. 
JJJd Jr rY rti YJf

233, 172

rnYJl
jY/ xlir, r J`rj ,. 

rrr riJ rJ) Jr' rJ> 
r

Y

J r>ryYn {, 9^ rrr
J `' +¢¢' 812

rrryrJr. ZJ r , 
rJ Jr rryJ Y 771
JYJ > J r 2,875
r Jr Jr £. 

r rrJ rr r 1, 379
rtJYrf`

fJJ

r »"" 3 5,357

Y f rJ. J rJY Jr>rf I 
r rJr r. JYJ fir.._ 11, 194tJXJ YYI` .. 

YJYJ JrJYJYj r` ! 

I

rJ rJYJ rr r rJ ryr rJr. r
681, 939Y` a

YY rlryr rr PY%+ 

r t, JLJJ Yr7JY,.,,J rf r
r>r r,r r•  r

Yhr rr. h> rr r

PY, fYJYlrrYJf JY Yt

yr> r r rJ` 13, 937rr tit

rJr i7 Jr a{. ir ( 275) 

PP , Y , lJl!'YJf 2,238

4, 587rr

r 2,072
fj rJfjrJY rJr r J - 

YY' Y7tr' JL lr YYr̀" 
1

I1
rrJ:; 22, 959
JP rJ Y 

ry'
7M. 

9, f . rY, r}rryj 7r, 
rJr rrYf JYt>r r- .. 
uPJq Y : J fry?Cr r>., 

J rP> rlrJr rJ

YJ fj Yl Yf

rJ rJ. f r,FY, h

J rJrjr r' rjrJ J

rry4 cw, yrY..+ N- r7 Y

JY Y7 rrFfJ " f`lrf l - 
7 rJl YJfJY( 1, __ 
rJJJ Y

rY,, rJ , Yft rJr rad
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CITY OF KINGSVILLE E3tHIBfT B- 1

GENERAL FUND Page 8 of 8

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Positive

Original---- Final Actual

Library Department
Negative)_ 

r r rrr¢ yrq
rrryrrr fy yr rrr 

Personal Services 176, 720 176, 720
y'%

r1 `< %  % 5, 143

Supplies 29, 630 27,979
rlr rr r f sr r. 

ryryxS'  
786

Services 29, 430 30,306 or ` r'< ( 1, 057

Equipment Maintenance 11, 567 10, 857

Budding Maintenance 8, 500 9, 985 f, ;f (r ; `$$fir. 141

Total Library Department 255, 847 255,847 ff' l̀', Y  7, 128

ry fr yr Yy if i, 

QOther Expenses fjY yr` r.ly (

YjY
1

Uncoilectable Accounts 38, 809 38, 809

r Xyr yys. rrt

21, 622

Total Other Expenses 38, 809 38, 809

yY Yy r yY ty Y r.^ 

J r Y r fi; r Ys. gf` 21, 622
y rr ry. ff; 

r 1Sv lr

rrh
y

rfr ryfr

l

Y

Total Expenditures 15, 143, 236 16, 945, 503 orf 1, 392, 621
rY • r 1prlYyr.: r. 

Excess ( deficiency) of revenues ( under) expenditures 465, 008) 2, 169, 217) 
r>>r1  fl  1 i

Yff; l

ff
r

rryr fyiyrY r py. 

1, 722, 884

Other financing sources ( uses). 

rrf. yr Cr, 

r }' f fYll flyl: 
rl l ldf ( fol

Operating transfers in 1, 250, 000 1, 250, 000

Operating transfers out 427, 920) 527, 620) 
40, 000Gain on disposal ofassetsr

financing 822,080 722, 080

yry rYyY ry
r- g. rFrr' 
fry.; r '. 40,000Total other sources (uses) 
r rfr>J lfi
1 . rr rlrl > rr rfiY, 

Excess of revenues and other financing sources over
under) expenditures and other financing uses 357, 072 1, 447, 137) 

ryr rl. hfi f.. 

rf '; yam
1, 762, 8$ 4

r r fr rf rrfr

f j'f yr fyryfjl

Fund balancesleclurty, October 1 10 4183 580 10418 580
Yy ffy fjfr fYN

fy  

i3F4r4. ..t;w!95a': r•,% r r' r ,> r f F{ iF,At
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I

CITY OF KINGSVILLE
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

TEXAS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT SYSTEM

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

1

Actuarial Acturial Accrued Unfunded URAL as a
Actuarial Value of Liability (, AAL) AAL Funded Covered Percentage of
Valuation Assets - Entry Age URAL) Ratio Payroll Covered. Payroll

Date ( a) ( b) _.. b -a) c) b- a)to) 

12131/ 09 $ 23, 123, 674 32, 383, 854 9, 260, 780 71. 4% 8,.665, 138 106. 9% 

12/ 31/ 10 37, 068, 999 42, 296, 552 5; 221, 553 87. 7% 8,912, 036 58.6% 
12131/ 11 40, 246, 749 44, 637, 193 4,390, 444 90. 211/o 9, 024, 567 48. 6°la

7

Other Post -employment Benefit Plan: j
Actuarial Acturial Accrued Unfunded URAL as a

Actuarial ' Value of Liability ( AAL) AAL Funded Covered Percentage of
Valuation Assets - Entry Age URAL) Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll

Date ( a) - -- ( b) b -a) a/ b) -- c) b-a)tc) 

10! 61107 -- 3, 94.6,836 3,946, 830 7, 219, 268 54.7% 

10161109 -- 2, 806, 136 2,866, 136 7, 453, 813 37. 6% 
16/ 01111 _. 2, 883, 303 2,883, 303 8, 003, 491 3,6. 0% 

Note: Actuarial valuations are completed every two years.) 
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CITE" OF KINGSVILLE
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 34, 2012

The basis of budgeting in the General Fund Budgetary Comparison Schedule is the same as Accounting
Principles Generally Accepted in the United States of America ( GAAP). 

L_ 
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CITY OF KINGSVILLE
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

1 NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

I
i

Tourism Federal
Fund Grants

ASSETS

Assets: 

Equity in pooled:cash and cash equivalents 88, 987 1, 287
Receivables ( net of allowances for uncollectibles): 

Accounts 36, 473
Due from: _ _ 

Other funds 2, 924
Other governments 225, 869

Restricted assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 337, 024

rJr r,.r ,: rr. rrr r r. J rJr .,? rJ Jrr w' r Jfi' rrr J 3^ rrr rry .° 
r rsr sr.. Jrr rrrr yrJt

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

If
Liabilities: 

Accounts payable 17,783
Due to

Other funds 501 208, 166
Other governments

Deferred revenues
18, 410

3, 447
Total Liabilities 18, 284 230, 023

Equity: 
Fund balances: 
Resected: 

Tourism 444,204
Federal and state programs 57

Community Enrichment
Assigned: 

Drug Awareness
Total equity 444, 204 57

5 51''?' 

Jrr ,
r-rJr rj r r i♦ rJr; it jfri J,,r

1Pr¢ r1n rr . , ` r r-' j J .,. 

J 3w Jy3w...... i. . 4 .. w-. w•.. 0-.... .. 4u

uY
uw. w4......" i. w....... w: Y wVrJ5 C

I
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L

EXHIBIT C- 1

Total

Nonmajor

Special

Other Revenue

State Special Funds ( See

Grants Revenues Exhibit A- 3) 

29,315 5, 227 124,816 , 

36, 477

2, 924

426 226, 295

337,024
a} rr rt n,' rff r r r}. r,, ,, , rnG r rr:rfrr jY r. ry r YfY,, pr rf t r9 f - 

r 4' s.;,;- f, Y' a ir_ ) rn"Y rr rr,, fi7 Sr,.• r .

4r
4 .' t}. . s?.#" ifl' rr. J. Lt.. ,..\.: f

L
19, 704 37, 483

208, 667

18, 41€ 3

7,958 11, 405

27,658 275, 965

444,2014

2, 083
2. 862

2, 140

2, 862

2, 365 2, 365

2,083 5, 227 451, 571

lj
rjf rr-.rr, rif Yrfj

Yf
Y: YYf fj ,' f rl Yrjrf tfj: r r% f ,

jr
rYf f f{.- rYfj ( tYY<

ryrj
J.' ri Jr Y, 
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CITY OF KINGSVILLE
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 
AND CHANGES 1N FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Tourism r lFederal
Fund Grants

Revenue: 

Taxes 541, 0
Charges for services 952

Interest and miscellaneous

Donations 289, 544

Federal and state grants 305, 584
Total revenues _ -- - - 832, 126- - - 365, 584

Expenditures: 

Current: 

General government and administration 57, 508
Public Safety
Tourism 389, 081

248, 476

Total expenditures 389,081 365, 584

Net change in fund balances 443, 045

i

Fund balances/equity, October 1 11159 57
j! 

1` 4. 41,9 ° 57**

ir,. 
rsr r. rlr r- ri t t s f r f rrt . t t vt i$Ld• L: f r:: f, fr ftrCryLr"rte. w? r

00



EXHIBIT C- 2

Total

Nonmajc r

Other

Special

Revenue

State Special Funds (See
Grants Revenues Exhibit A- 5) 

541, 634

952

1, 438 1, 438

289, 544

21, 044 326, 628

21, 044.._ 1438 _ __ 1, 160, 192

1, 438 58, 946

21, 044 1, 776 274, 896

389, 081

21, 044 3,214 718, 923

1, 776) 441, 269

L2,083 7, 043 10, 342

rq'`. r'' 4,n" r-

rr..-
r,:,%

rr

j.'.....
rrr

e r, 

yam

t ry,, f t..... rrgr.'' r s•s> r_ .. ,A.}.' 

L
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i

CITY OF KINGSVILLE EXHIBIT c-3
TOURISM FUND

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive

Original - Final Actual Negative) 
Revenues: YJJrr  rJ( f r rY Y

HctellMotel Property Tax 453, 636 453, 636 r nJ 87,994
Miscellaneous 500 5€ 0 r' r ;'%: Y Jr r. 452
Donations 289, 54.4

Total Revenues

JYJJ rG sr r. rr. 
Yjr nrY JY Jr rJrJ, r

r

454, 136 454, 136 r,';

rr
rJ

77;990

YjJ f M1rf. Y f YJr^ r

Expenditures: c,. 
Q . r rj jlJY Y lJ

rJY ,, 7j CYfyfl tY
Y( r

rr J JYJrf r Y YJr
Yi J ryrr rf r r

Tourism

Departmentr
rri rrYJYrr r J. 

Personal- Services 35, 276 51, 388
M4( J JY r J r r! r

r

rJ
r':' : f  13, 963

Jllppl{ lam.$ 3, V9 i r rfi/,

rr;
d,' Tf}

rr
8455) 

Services 418, 860 385,767
P JYr

42, 951

Building Maintenance
Lease Paymentsy

rrrrY rJr y

rJY YY,yrrrJ
3,95.1

f r̂rrJYr Y4 rr, 475) 

Total Tourism Department 454, 136 440, 724
rs , rrrYYJrJJ ter. 
Jrrrrr , p

r t, r' G"r Yl' 51, 643

Total Expenditures 454, 136 441, 724J!J Jrl Y r rJrxr 51, 643
Jnr JrJ rJr rrr

Excess (deficiency) of revenues (under) expenditures 13, 412

Jf
Yir

r Jr ' 1. 429, 633
rJ fr Jr rYJ JYf rn Y

Fund balanceslequity, October 1 1, 159 1, 159
rr/ r

1F •
a-+, f f...:.. 1.rG ri. r r ( . Y r

L, J,Y.+..Yi.:... SAF..rr.r:rf?Y. Jf.. r+.r-rs.`.:f i`. 1, 

e6
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CITY 4F KINGSVILLE EXHIBIT C- 4

FEDERAL GRANT FUND
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Project Prior Current Total To

Authorization Years Year Date

Revenues: 

Federal and state grants 1, 172, 712 $ 589, 304 305,584 894, 888

Total Revenues 1, 172, 712 589, 304 345, 584 894, 888

Expenditures: 

Emergency Management: 
General Government and Administradon 57,508 57, 508 57,508

Public Safety 1, 115, 204 589, 304 248, 476 837, 380

Total Expenditures 1, 172, 712 589, 304 305, 584 894, 888

Excess (deficiency) of revenues (under) expenditures

LFund balances/ equity, October 1 57

Fund balances/equity, September 30 57

L
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CITY OF KINGSVILLE EXHIBIT, - 
j STATE GRANTS FUND

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER ,30, 2012

ProjectI Prior Current Tota! To
Authorization Years Year Date

Revenues. 

Federal' andstategrants 1 $ 49, 39 9,395 $ 21, 044 30, 439

Total Revenues 49391 9_,395 21, 044 30, 439'- 4, 439`

Expenditures: Expenditures: 

Public Safety 49,391 9, 395 21, 044 30, 439

Total Expenditures 49, 391 — 9, 395 21, 044 30,439

Excess (deficiency) of revenues (under) expenditures

Fund balances/ equity, October 9 2, 083

Fund balances/ equity, September 30 2, 083

j. 
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1

CITY OF KINGSVILLE E Dili r c-6

DEBT SERVICE FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

L Variance with

Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Pos& e

Original Final Actual Negative) 

Revenues. YJr r Y {, r l4ri

General Property Taxes: $ 1, 513, 542 1, 513, 542Ff}! X̀: 

yr 
63, 105) 

Interest from Investments 1, 348 1, 348 rJ3' rlk Xr ` r 2, 447
iJ TJN f rJY,Y r' lJ.rj flf

fJ rX ' J Jiff r•,!! 1f r

Total Revenues 1, 514, 890 1, 514, 890
t« 

60, 658) 
rJT YJ JrJTJrr rJr' Y r

J}l YJY J`J Xtf
G Expenditures: 

fVYXf
X J

YJir TJlJ ! J PfiG JFK
3YT YY ( jf / Xr! 

Prfncipatrerecl 1, 300, 000 1, 300, 000

518, 9484

rtY YYJrf ff ft K,. 
X$

r 33, 0&7

Interesi 518, 948 15, 064) 

Paying agent fees 4, 250_ 4, 250
TJX sr, J'` ` 2,200, 
rJX Jt. rr/ 1fr-: 

Total Expenditures 1, 823, 198 1, 823, 198
tJt Y fjTj r•, tJ dYrrf

fYY,, fY fYY

4irX i" 20, 203
rjd fJt f rjF pYj, Y11Y, tr, 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues ( under) expenditures 308, 308) 308, 308) 
X JYJ JtJr rJ4dJ! fjrJ lJf

40, 455) 

Other

Y% rYJ r.•XrJ` rlrr r: 
r dl rJ rlr J Y f,. 

d,, llflrJ! Jf. YY ' 
r rrXr nti6.'.. 

Operating transfers in 428, 420 428, 420 r5 JY r'r J
t

Total other financing sources (uses) 428, 420 428, 420 rJY,

t Jl rJJ
Y.

y

t, 500) 

Excess of revenues and other financing sources over! 

Jf Yf yYJl YX lr YJ. 
r r J ri l Xr J2} r , 

rJ T * r; r
r !

yr{T, T.C<

iryyf
under) expenditures and other financing uses 120, 112 120, 1 i2 J4 rrr`3J 1gY3 ` 40,955) 

Yf rs J rJ ! J<jr. r, 

Fund balances/equity, October 1- 654, 664 654,664

fJr
Y f"• Y$

jrr.
f,{{YY YY Y n Yfi Y YY YX

Ylr
qr rJr XJ l ' X. r.1J J

Xr X ' 

f r Y •!' tiJY JYJr!! . :.., ff t. l i Iy: XZ` e . XYJf fj{ I lJfj {. f t' Jf f. j, 
Y•Yr

l r f.4̂'r r r n. nfe r ` ri.<

l ' IJ
r.

l.

fr
Yf

t.. 
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EXI- HErT C- 7

Variance with

Final Budget

Positive

Negative) 

17, 321

17, 321

3, 787

27, 567

1, 179, 575

1, 384

1, 212, 313

1, 229, 634

18, 500

18, 500

1, 248, 134

CITY OF KINGSVILLE
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS FUND
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Budgbted Amounts

Original Final Actual

Revenues: 

Interest from Investments 2,848 2, 848 Y, I ray

Total Revenues 2, 848 2,848

Expenditures: 

A, 

General Government 3, 787

228,489Public Safety
Public Works 1, 189, 466 2, 399, 855

CitylCounty 1, 384 YfVIY' VYJ r, < r

Total Expenditures 1, 189, 466. 2, 633, 515. 

gf

Excess ( deficiency) of revenues ( under) expenditures 1, 186, 618) 

J

Other financing sources (uses): 
Operating transfers in 100, 000

Gain on disposal of assets

Total other financing sources (uses) 1009000 pg.4 

Excess of revenues and other financing sources over, 
under) expenditures and other financing uses 1, 186, 618) 2, 50,667) 

Fund balances/equity, October 1 4, 349, 467 4,349, 467
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Variance with

Final Budget

Positive

Negative) 

17, 321

17, 321

3, 787

27, 567

1, 179, 575

1, 384

1, 212, 313

1, 229, 634

18, 500

18, 500

1, 248, 134







CITY OF KINGSVILLE EXHlBff ;- s

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Balance

October 1, 
Balance

September 30, 

2012 Additions Deductions 2.0.12
w,,,,.,. 

p . m t

4:mlftSr3. i t 'aas pnd Account Fund1
z 5 f r r,.,,rfr rtr r
rJ J' i,

trfi}'
YJti 3 r t.. 

ASSETS

JfJt
YT % ot''%, Y•., t'. 

tJ t i KrtY r Y K jJ+' 

Cash & Investments 25,680 $ 83,326 $ 74, 759 Jr

t

rt'
rf F j . 

Total Assets 25, 680 $ 83, 32_6 $ 74, 759

LIABILITIES
f r Jr J f rr

rrJ / f FYr f

rff Y YY' 

r rY r f r r f'.^ 

Cash Bonds Held 25, 680 $ 83, 326 $ 74, 759
Kr K

Total_ Liabilities _ __ 25, 680. $ 83, 326

L
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i

Statistical Section

This part of the City of Kingsville' s comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as
a context for understanding what the information in the financial" statements, note disclosures, and required
supplementary information says about the City' s overall financial health. 

i

Contents
Page

Financial Trends

These schedules contain tread information to help the reader understand how the city' s financial 98- 105

performance and well- being have changed over time. 

Revenue Capacity

106- 114These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the factors affecting the city' s ability to
generate its property and sales taxes. 

Debt Capacity

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the city's current levels 115- 121

of outstanding debt and the city' s ability to issue additional debt in the future. 

Demographic and Economic Information

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the 122- 123

environment within which the city' s financial activities take place and to help snake comparisons over time
with other governments. 

Operating Information

These schedules contain information about the city' s operations and resources to help the reader 124- 128

understand how the city°s financial information relates to the services the city provides and the activities it
performs. 

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive
L annual financial reports for the relevant year. The city implemented Statement 34 in 2003; schedules

presenting government -wide information include information beginning that year. 

L_ 
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I

CITY OF KINGSVIiLE
NET ASSETS BY COMPONENT
LAST TEN FISCAL YE,4RS

Fiscal Year

2012 2011 2010 2009 2408

Governmental activities I

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 8, 641, 553 8,703, 647 7, 242, 987 7, 229, 724 7, 980, 938
Restricted 3, 139, 930 682, 867 911, 541 2, 946, 915 2, 727, 155
Unrestricted 4,221, 605 6, 456, 755 5, 818, 599 5,341, 187 3, 037, 771

Total governmental activities net assets 16, 003;088 13, 843269 13, 973, 127 15; 517, 826 13, 745, 864

I Business - type activities

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 4,049, 345 3, 398, 641 3,028, 078 1, 028, 641 4, 376, 931
Restricted 1, 086, 225 1, 403, 545 2,225,548 1, 704, 129 3, 056,231
Unrestricted 8, 689, 996 6,601, 689 5,843; 383 7, 19.1, 437 1, 229, 553

Total business -type activities net assets 13,$ 25, 476 11, 403, 875 11, 097, 006 9,924, 207 8, 662; 715

Primary government
Invested in capital assets„ net of related debt 12, 690, 898 12, 102, 288 10, 271, 065 8,258, 365 12, 357, 869
Restricted 4, 226, 155 2, 086, 412 3, 137, 086 4,651, 044 5, 783, 386
Unrestricted 12, 911, 511 13, 058, A44 11, 661, 982 12, 532, 624 4,267, 324

Total primary government net assets 29, 828, 564$ 2712471444 25, 070, 133 25,442, 033 22, 408, 579

Mote: The city began to report accrual information when it implemented GArSS Statement 34 in fiscal year 2003. The data in this
table is extracted from Exhibit A- 1. 
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S4WHEDULE 1

Fiscal Year

2997 24396 2995 24394 2993

7,419,484 7, 199, 499 5, 751, 659 4, 472, 669 1, 819, 325

2, 649, 969 2,314, 775 2, 325,562 2, 844, 822 4, 954, 399

2,079,519 1, 985, 412 1, 159,966 754,979 379, 136

12; t39 972 19, 599, 68£ 9, 228; 1-78 8:93101 - 7,143

4, 311, 656 4,315,474 4,933, 396 3, 321, 566 2, 419, 279

2, 496, 143 2, 174, 298 2,528,455 2, 293, 934 3,934, 529

679, 366 113,493 1, 998, 572) 1, 117, 171) 549, 286) 

7,487, 165 6,693, 175 4,653, 279 4,497, 429 5, 894, 594

11, 722, 140 11, 595, 973 9, 785, 946 7, 794, 226 4, 229, 595

5, 146, 112 4, 489, 073 4,854,017 5, 997, 856 8, 888, 829

179, 150) 2,758, 885 1, 198, 815 757, 696) 363,992) 

19, 627, 137 17, 193,861 13, 881, 457 12,528, 999 12, 948, 265
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I

CITY OF KINGSVILLE
CHANGES IN NETASSETS, 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal Year
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

Expenses

Governmental activities: 

General government 3, 285,875 2, 974, 363 2, 853, 471 2,481, 859 2. 438, 913
Public safety 9, 475, 608 9, 144, 528 8,450, 026 8, 175, 281 8, 167,213
Public works 2, 823, 707 2, 521, 159 2, 838, 815 2,770, 070 2,414, 167' 
CitylCounty 811, 546 801, 490 782, 399 761, 837 731, 158
Tourism 389, 259 484, 470 421, 233 440, 694 421, 633
interest on long- term debt 335, 136 319, 288 Igo„913 262, 818 292, 623

Total governmental activities expenses 17, 121, 131 16, 245, 298 15, 53+, 857 14, 892, 559 14, 465, 707

I Business -type activities; 

Water 4,570, 338 3, 847,697 3, 474, 155 3, 687, 376 3, 153,345
I Solidwaste 2, 417, 443 2, 669, 749 2, 273, 372 2, 201, 955 2, 516, 322
I Wastewater 2,451, 466" 2, 392, 136 3,201, 052 2, 692, 116 2, 020, 090

Total business -type activity expenses 9,439, 247 8, 909, 582 8, 948, 579 8, 581, 447 7,689,757

Total primary government expenses 26, 5W, 378 25, 154, 880 24,485,436 23, 474, 006 22, 155,464

Program Revenue ( see schedule 3
I

Governmental activities

Charges for services: 
General government 265, 724 357, 478 160, 225 309, 430 284, 438
Public safety 1, 975, 782 2, 486, 253 2,476,666 2, 981, 961 2:980, 370
Public works 23,470 48, 367 60,302 661
CitylCounty' 21, 581 32, 5$ 7 20, 302 9, 117 8, 924
Tourism 542, 582 483,424 422, 584 440,694 421, 633

Operating grants and contributions 308, 366 479, 148 486, 855 294,364 260, 506
Capital grants and contributions 19„700 92, 993 176, 363 30, 000

Total governmental activities program revenues. 3, 157, 185 3, 980, 250 3,626, 934 4, 212, 590 3, 985, 871

Business - type activities: 
Charges for services: 

Water 5,064, 9886 4,516, 381 3, 769, 784 4,808,714 4, 325, 645
Wastewater 3, 815, 313 3, 646, 165 3,572, 534 3, 378, 346 3,036, 567
Solid waste 3,329, 276 3,363, 894 2,708, 803 3, 510, 389 2, 958, 287

Operating grants and contributions 700 172,469 650
Capital grants and contributions j

Total business - type activities program revenues 12, 209, 575 11, 526, 440 10, 051, 521 11, 869, 918 10, 321, 149
Total primary government program revenues 15, 3666, 760 15, 506, 690 13, 678, 455 16, 082, 508 14, 307, 020
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SCHEDULE 2

Fiscal Year

2007 2006 2005 2004 2063

2, 673, 3872, 569, 502 $ 2, 303, 626 2,238, 161 $ 2,813, 029

7,266, 533 6,787,270 6,787, 640 6,432,401 6,748, 452

2, 340, 083 2, 576, 604 2,474, 543 2, 371, 205 2, 286,788

688, 378 645,270 673,849 6$ 2, 565 621, 925

312, 153 290, 697 288,215 2641132 265, 401

300,810 300, 163 328; 631 357, 424 483,697

13,477,459 12, 906, 630 12, 791, 039 12, 920, 756 13,079,650

2,454,389 3,495, 064 3,542, 762 3, 341, 572 3, 270, 337

2,043,922 1, 931, 459 2, 007, 918 1, 931, 493 1, 644,626

2, 031, 746 1, 334, 749 1, 372, 391 1, 367,139 1, 074, 319

6,520, 057 6, 761, 272 6,923, 071 6,640, 204 5,989, 282

20. 007, 516 $ 19,667,902 19, 714, 110 $ 19, 560,960 $ 19, 068, 932

250, 769 $ 254,972 282, 481 $ 874,749 $ 612,004

2,637, 213 2, 191, 585 1, 452, 667 1, 097, 017 1, 493, 803

240 3,029 40„500

5,871 6,776 3, 525 4, 183 2, 4883

312, 153 290,697 288, 215 264, 132 265,145

168, 700 177,828 473, 600 885,712 997, 389

55,609 600,341 1, 131, 399

3, 430; 315 3,522, 199 3, 632, 127 3, 128, 822 3,411, 324

3, 834, 915 4,026, 953 3,676, 035 3,296, 486 3, 337, 331

2,772,879 2,825,020 2, 799, 958 2,747, 268 2, 470, 948

2, 519, 463 2, 578,493 2, 070, 306 1, 872,741 1, 663, 558

21, 031 28, 441 24, 230 299, 718

86, 251

9, 148, 288 9, 458, 907 8, 656, 780 8,216, 213 7, 471; 837

12, 578, 603 $ 12,981, 106 12, 288, 907 $ 11, 345, 035 $ 10, 883, 161

L
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CITY OF KINGSVILLE
CHANGES IN NETASSETS, 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

i
1

Fiscal Year
2412 2011 2010 2009 2008

Net ( Expense) iRevenue) 
Governmental activities 13, 963, 946) $ 12, 265,048) 11, 909, 923) 10, 679,969) 10,479,836) 
Business -type activities 2,770,328 2,616, 858 1, 102, 942 3,288,471 2, 631; 392

Total primary government net expenses 11. 193, 618) $ 9,648, 190) 1068013, 981) 

General Revenues and Other Changes in Net Assets
Governmental activities

Taxes

Property taxes
r Franchise taxes

5,89,1, 693 $ 5,898,032 5„467,439 $ 5,251, 584 4, 835, 723

977,459 981, 170 976, 187 989,368 996, 518
Sales taxes 4,204,521 4,582,312 3,699,421 3,872, 834 3, 891; 958

1 Other taxes 45, 703 46, 381 49, 591 50, 319 49676
Payment in lieu of taxes 100,000 100, 000 1011, 000 100, 000 100,000
Investment earnings 83„886 87,229 147,868 239, 018 506, 573
Miscellaneous ( loss) 295,794 220 36, 672 23, 926) 5, 311
Transfers 2,662,842 2,439,847 1, 002,840 1. 972;734 1, 599, 969

Total governmental activities 14, 261, 898 14, 135, 191 11, 480, 018 12, 451, 931 12, 085, 728

Business -type activities

Investment earnings 137, 410 129,857 78,863 29, 285 249, 258
Other 5,130) 
Transfers 2,6652, 842) 47) 2, 439,88381, 972, 7341, 002,) 1, 699,968) 

Total business - type activities 2,525, 432) 12, 309,990} 923, 975) 1, 943, 44.9) 1, 455,840,_ 

Total primary government 11, 736, 466 $ 11, 825,201 10,556, 043 $ 10, 508, 482 10, 62908

Changes in Net Assets

Governmental activities ( loss) 297,952 $ 1, 870, 143 429, 905) $ t,771, 962 1,& 05, 892
Business - type activities 244, 896 306,863 178, 967 1, 345,022 1, 175, 552

Total primary government ( loss) 542,848 $ 2, 177,011 S ( 250,938) $ 3, 116, 984 2; 781, 444- 

Notes: The city began to report accrual information when it implemented GAS6 Statement 34 in fiscal year 2003. 
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SCHEDULE 2

Fiscal Year

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

10,047,144) $ 9, 384, 431) $ 9, 158, 912) 9`,791, 934} 9,668, 326) 

2, 618, 231 2, 697, 636 1, 733, 709 1, 576, 009 1, 482, 555

7,428, 913) $( 6. 686, 796} 7,425, 203) 8,215,925 8,t85,771) 

4,147, 121 $ 4, 012, 188 $ 3,733,214 3, 536, 180 3,732, 215

985, 016 1, 012,220 1, 026,424 1, 038,640 980, 307

3, 784,310 3,795,341 3, 390, 122 3,032,676 2,899,006

44, 886

100, 000

39, 183

100,000

39, 132
100,000

27, 952

100,000

30, 606

100, 000

391, 675 170, 314 130, 266 90, 738 84, 724

693 30, 052) 119 41, 966) 26,204

2, 293, 521

11, 747, 222

1, 961, 699

11, 060, 893

1, 936, 252 1, 371, 639

9, 155,859

1, 000, 000

8,853, 06210, 355, 529

559,280 603, 158 353,232 26, 406 35, 104

30, 775 5, 161 18, 433

2,293,522) 1, 961, 699) 1, 936,252) 1, 371, 639) x(1, 000,000) 
1, 734,242) 1, 327, 766) 1, 577,859) 1, 326, 800) 964, 896) 

10, 012, 980 $ 9, 733, 127 "$ 8,777,670 7, 829, 059 7, 888, 166

L$ 1, 700, 078 $ 1, 676,642 $ 1, 196, 617 636,075) 815, 264) 

883,989 1, 369, 869 155, 850 249, 209 517, 659

21584, 067 $ 3,0&6, 511 $ 1, 352,467 386,866} $ ( 297,605) 

N

L
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CITY OF KINGSV' ILLE
FUND BALANCES, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS, 
LAST TEV FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal Year

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

General Fund
Reserved 3, 380, 142 $ 2, 226, 519 1, 589,496 $ 1, 035, 938 2, 167,647
Unreserved 2, 324, 845 2, 972, 504 4, 032, 056 5, 936; 909 6, 635, 729

idonspendable

Restricted
Committed

Unassigned

Total general fund
i

5, 704, 987 $ 5, 199, 023 5, 621, 552 $ 6972, 847 8, 863, 376

All tither Governmental Funds
Reserved 48, 188 7, 844 8, 699 9,331 66, 454
Unreserved, reported in: 

Special revenue funds 651, 579 33, 559 41, 016 332, 879 793, 897
g 

Capital projects funds 487,513 626, 779 379, 116 343, 697 363, 062
Debt service funds 364, 499 69, 062 108, 402 274, 014 311, 414

Restricted

Debt service funds

Special revenue funds
Capital projects funds

Unassigned, reported in: 
Special revenue funds

Total all other governmental funds 1, 551, 784 $ 737, 244 537, 233 $ 959, 921 1, 534, 827

Mote: In prior years, landfill was accounted for as a reserve. However, since it is not legally restricted it has
been restated in 2006 as unreserved and designated, and 1997 through 2005 have also been restated to
reflect this change in reporting. 
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L
SCHEDULE 3 . 

L

Fiscal Maar

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

1, 553, 672 $ 445, 405 $ 279, 242 $ 

7, 643, 773 8, 209, 389 8, 441, 728

186, 270 208, 104

124, 067 124, 837

4, 191, 118 4, 264, 674

5, 917, 128 6, 146, 712

9, 197, 445 $ 8, 654, 794 8, 720, 970 $ 10,418, 583 $ 10, 734; 327

28, 418 $ 8, 301 $ 483 $ 

1, 521, 263 2, 187, 562 2, 434, 595

353, 284 3, 064, 926 702, 976

355, 415 397, 850: 431, 185

654, 684 733, 821

10, 303 451, 571

4, 349, 466 3, 068, 934

2, 509, 776 1, 681, 034

2, 258, 378 $ 5, 658, 639 $ 3, 569, 239 $ 7, 524, 209 $ 5, 933; 360

L

L

L

L
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CITY OF KINGSVILLE
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS, i
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal Year
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

Revenues

I
I Property Taxes 3, 816, 412 3, 569, 222 3, 804, 469 $ 4, 141, 313 4, 266, 405

Taxes - other 4, 175, 064 4,463, 397 4, 743, 894 5, 137, 441 5, 126, 365
Licenses, flees, and permits 592, 442 803, 815 226, 716 172, 814 189, 269
Fines and penalties 1, 187, 684 803, 192 1, 163, 398 1, 844, 000 2, 230, 194
Charges for services 2840, 098 3,080, 519 3, 128, 451 3, 211, 482 3, 225, 782
Special assessment 40, 500 3,029 240 3, 966
Intergovernmental 968, 461 709, 566 455, 182 174, 136 211, 535
investment earnings/ other 118, 869 127,;253 202, 335 282, 200 511, 883
Donations 176, 146 3, 299 2, 800 1, 842

Total revenues 13, 719, 530 13, 736, 139 13,727,984 14,966, 276 15, 767, 241

Expenditures

General government 2,410, 041 2, 947, 294 2, 357, 112 2, 398, 046 2, 673, 852

Public safety 7, 409, 439 6,265,404 6, 644, 5003 6, 703, 918 7, 411, 077
Public works 4, 738, 879 4,113, 344 3,472,610 3, 561, 348 3, 291, 447
Ciitylcounty 687, 404 674, 392 672, 019 655, 411 686, 184
Tourism 265, 401 264, 132 288, 215. 290, 697 312; 153
Other 71, 161 248, 936 60, 258 2, 532

Capital Outlay
Debt Service

Interest 316, 527 462, 722 411, 195 378, 281 362, 456
Principal 925, 000 1, 045, 000 885,000 914, 000 975, 000

Total expenditures 16, 823, 852 16, 021, 224 14, 790, 912 14, 900, 233 15, 712, 169

Excess of revenues over

under) expenditures 3, 1 . 04 322) 2, 285, 085) 1, 062, 928) 66, 043 55, 072

Other Financing
Sources (uses) 

Gain on Sale of Assets
Lease Proceeds

Bonds issued 5, 223, 000 450, 000 1, 200, 000
Brand Issuance Costs

Bond Issuance Premium

Refunding bonds issued
Transfers in 1, 107,971 1, 131, 652 1, 3440, 861 1; 338, 441 1, 250, 000
Transfers out 107, 971) 134, 786) 56, 280) 88, 041) 

Total other financing
sources ( uses) 6, 223, 000 996, 866 1, 284, 581 1, 700, 000 2, 450, 000

Diet change in

fund balances 3, 118, 678 1, 288, 219) 221, 653 $ 1, 766, 043 2,505,072

Debt services as a percentage
of noncapital expenditures 7, 38% 9. 41% 8. 76% 8. 65% 8. 51% 
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SCHEDULE 4

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

4, 940, 897 $ 5, 303, 987 $ 5,268,890 $ 5, 998, 518 6, 019, 795

5, 359, 785 5, 354, 064 5, 448, 277 6, 093, 287 5, 769, 313

210, 267 217,657 194, 004 175, 386 185, 708

2, 519, 475 2, 521, 442 1, 990, 136 1, 975, 760 1, 367, 469

3,585, 591 4, 017, 155 4, 106, 546 4,245, 457 4,453, 626

19, 910; 45, 1.92 15, 725

240, 829 463, 770 544, 351 548, 805 326; 628

628, 723 314, 091 209,382 273, 989 178, 110

1, 890 2, 007 220 295, 794

17, 485, 567 18, 194, 056 17, 783, 503 19, 356: 614 18. 612, 168

2, 461, 771 2,6+75, 542 2, 998, 296 3, 519, 126 3, 406, 264

8, 848, 662 8, 176, 498 8, 251, 125 9,470, 845 9, 221, 523

3, 772, 521 6, 377, 218 6, 440, 127 4, 360, 930 5, 447, 175

710, 931 859, 333 750, 783 813, 991 773, 413

421, 633 440, 694 420, 379 484,470 369, 081

53, 376 37, 237 37, 053 17, 187

374,201 1, 760, 008 1, 590, 000 291, 020 536, 062

1, 270, 000 2, 156,860 428, 796 1, 453, 000 1, 266, 933

17, 859, 719 22, 499, 521 20, 916, 743 20, 430, 435 21, 057, 638

374, 152) 4, 305,465) 3, 133, 240) 1, 073, 821) 2, 445, 470) 

11, 000, 58, 500

181, 772

4, 270, 000 5, 385, 040

175, 273) 

128, 181 80, 361

1, 890, 000

1, 250, 000 2, 211, 690 1, 68012 1, 682, 936 1, 677,920

957,037) 574, 890) 432,936) 427,920) 

1, 431, 772 7, 367, 561 1, 110, 022 6, 726, 401 1, 308, 500

1, 057, 620 $ 3, 062, 096 2 $ 5, 652, 580 $ 1

9.21% 17. 41% 9. 65% 8. 54°!a 8. 56%a
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CITY OF KINGSVILLE SCHEDULE 5

ASSESSED VALUE AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL [ VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY; 1

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS) 

Total Estimated
Less:. Total' Taxable Direct Actual

Fiscal Real Mineral Personal Ta x. -Exempt Assessed Tax Taxable
Year Property Property Property - Praperty Value Rate Value

2003 473, 289, 371 19, 935, 752 60, 834, 420 62, 24$, 898 491, 810, 645 0.70527 554, 059, 543
2004 483, 9988, 442 21. 427, 249 58, 866, 750 61, 340, 271 502, 952, 170 0. 68510 564, 292, 441
2005 494, 578, 206 21, 411, 787 70, 088, 910 67, 093, 679 518,985,224 0.70196 586,078,903
2006 518, 890, 658 24, 066, 086 70, 375, 100 65, 848, 903 547, 382, 940 0. 71000 613, 331, 843

l
2007 560, 137, 513 29, 501, 037 79, 767, 230 70, 371, 329 599, 034, 451 0.685444 669, 405, 780
2008 575. 350, 800 31, 069, 213 78, 941, 550 63, 941, 277 616, 420, 286 0. 76780 685, 361, 553
2009 600, 156, 971 28, 662, 138 76, 930, 250 66, 981, 930 638, 767, 459 0.80187 705, 749, 389
2010 629, 910, 921 31, 453, 548 76, 203, 240 66,282, 243 671, 285, 466 0. 80187 737, 567, 709
2011 649, 713, 780 31, 463, 010 70, 658, 350 69, 436, 322 682, 398, 818 0. 84220 751, 335, 140
2012 660, 216, 670 24, 266, 424 72, 655, 450 73, 884, 909 683, 253, 635 0. 84220 757, 138, 544

Source: Kleberg County Tax Assessor C771' fice

Notes: The Kleberg County Appraisal District assesses properties every three years. Property is assessed at
fair market value. 
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CITY OF KINGSVILLE SCHEDULE 6

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

RATE PER $ 100 OF ASSESSED VALUE) 

City Direct Rates Overlapping Rates
General

Obligation Total

Fiscal Basic Debt Direct School

Year Rate Service Rate District County STWA

2003 0.44399 0. 26128 0. 74527 1. 62000 0.69074 0. 11504

2004 0.42980 0. 25530 0.68510 1. 62637 0.63192 0. 05543

2005 0.44924 0. 25272 0. 74196 1. 59449 0. 60779 0. 05543

2006 0.45633 0. 25367 0. 71000 1. 60032 0. 60779 0. 05516

2007 0.46453 0. 22091 0. 68544 1. 45303 0. 57100 0. 05471

2008 0. 50040 4. 26740 0. 76780 1. 40529 0. 64640 0. 05688

2009 0.54154 0. 26033 4. 80187 1. 33925 4. 67530 4. 45590

2010 0.56672 0. 23515 0.80187 1. 32165 0. 67546 0.05731

2011 0. 62543 0. 21677 4. 84220 1. 35520 0. 69546 0. 06189

2012 0.63752 0. 20468 0. 84220 1. 46380 0. 75100 0. 06189

Source: Kleberg CountyCoun Tax Assessor Office
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i CITY OF KINGSVILLE SCHEDULE 7
PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAX PAYER'S, 

l
CURRENT YEAR AND IMINE YEARS AGO

2012 2003
Percentage Percentage

of Total City of Total City
Taxable Taxable Taxable Taxable

Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed
Taxpayer Value Rank Value Value Rank Value

AEP Texas Central Company 10, 269, 870 1 1. 50°A

Wal- Mart Stores East LP 7, 790, 360 2 1. 140/6 6, 959, 410 1 1. 42% 
Kingsville Two 6, 876, 800 3 1. 01% 3, 506, 650 7 0.71% 
Eddie Yakl n Ford Lincoln Mercury Ltd. 6, 836, 240 4 1. 00% 3, 376. 060 8 0.69% 
HBC Holding LTD. 6,829, 380 5 1. 00% 
Collegiate Kingsville Partners L. P. 6,387, 370 6 0.93% 
Wal- Mart Stores Inc. 5, 555, 450 7 0. 81% 5, 636, 860 4 1. 15% 
HEB Grocery Inc 4,698,090 8 0.69% 5, 196; 090 5 1. 06% 
Lowes Home Center, Inc. 4,296, 710 9 0.633% 
Yaklin Eddie L 4,312, 500 10 0.60% 

Southwestern Bell Telephone Co. 6, 666, 760 3 1. 36°6% 
Alpha Lake Ltd 2, 933, 370 9 0.60% 
Central Pourer & Light 6,879, 080 2 1. 40% 
Kingsville Bordeaux, Ltd. 2, 406, 600 10 0.49% 
Christus Spohn Hospital 3, 962, 410 6 0. 81% 

Total $ 63, 652, 770 9. 32% 47,523, 290 9.66% 

Ij
Source: Kleberg County Appraisal District
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CITY OF KINGS- VILLE
SCHEDULES

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECUONS, 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

L_ 
Fiscal Collected within the

Year Taxes Fiscai Year of the Levy Coitections in Total Collections to Hate

Ended Levied for Percent Subsequent Percent

r

September 30, the Year Amount of Levy Years Amount of Levy

2003 3,429,931 3, 237, 999 94.4% 174, 080 3,412,079 99. 48% 

2004 " 3, 447, 050 3,250, 187 94. 3% 173,927 3, 424, 114 99, 33% 

2005 3,653,715 3, 455, 881 94. 6% 158, 536 3,614, 419 98. 92% 

2006 3,886, 219 3, 726,279 95. 9% 139,111 3,865,390 99. 46% 

2007 4,136,029 3, 911, 104 94. 6% 179, 197 4, 090, 301 98.89°la

2008 4, 734, 428 4, 530,260 95. 7% 145, 866 4,676, 126 98. 77°l0

2009 5,207, 851 4,990,889 95. 8% 146,321 5, 137,210 98.64% 

2010 5,385,014 5, 174,338 96. 1% 136, 711 5,311, 049 98.63% 

2011 5,759,638 5, 557, 746 96. 5% 82, 532 5,640, 278 97. 930!0

2012 5,751, 687 5,564, 076 96. 7% 5,564,076 96. 74% 

Source: Kieberg County Tax Assessor Office

Notes: These aocaunts represent cash collections and any adjustments to the tax roll per the Kleberg County
Appraisal District. 

L_ 
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CITY OF KINGSVILLE

TAXABLE SALES BY CATEGORY, 
LAST TEN CALENDAR YEARS

DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS) 

Fiscal Year
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

Building materials, hardware, etc. $ 0, 891 $ 10, 611 18, 040 $ 19,277 $ 20, 422
General merchandise 46, 093 45, 251 45, 847 48, 006 48, 275
Food stores 11, 039 11, 874 11, 832 12, 052 13, 915

Automotive dealers and gasoline 15,866 16, 005 - 16, 104 18, 875 18, 190

Apparel and accessory stores 3, 738 3,698 4,388 4, 597 4, 207

Home furniture, furnishing, and equipment 3, 944 3, 982 3,993 3,223 4, 252

Eating and drinking places 24, 131 27, 694 28, 526 30,359 32, 427

All other outlets 12, 783 12, 931 13, 934 16, 028 17, 996

Total $ 127, 485 $ 140, 246 142, 664 $ 152, 417 $ 159, 684

City direct sales tax rate 1. 5% 1. 5% 1. 5% 1. 5% 1. 5% 

Source: Texas Comptroller of public Accounts

Motes: Retail sales information is not available on a fiscal- year basis, the above information is is presented on a
calendar year basis. 

Estimate, due to the timing of the Comptrollers reports, actual third and fourth quarter amounts are not available. 

i
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SCHEDULE 9

Fiscal Year

2008 2009 2010 2011 2092

22, 705 $ 21, 737 22, 382 $ 12, 245 $ 18, 895

50,453 47, 022 45, 818 21, 717 33, 299

15,702 16, 550 15, 567 8,408 13, 121

19, 162 20, 223 20, 450 10, 622 17, 690

3,775 4,570 4, 620 2, 547 4,082

860 2,647 1, 590

36, 009 35,430 37, 059 19, 921 32, 605

18. 062 15, 014 15, 472 7, 344 11, 342

166, 739 $ 163, 203 162, 378 $ 82, 804 $ 132, 624

1. 5% 1. 5°i° 1. 5°l0 1. 5°I° 1. 5% 

L
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CITY OF KINGSVILLE SCHEDULE 10

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING SALES TAX RATES, 
LAST TEN FISCAL PEARS

Fiscal City city Kleberg county State
Years Property Tac ReW Sales Tax Property Tax relief Sales Tax

2003 1. W% 0.50% 0:500 6.25% 
2004 1. 001.0 U0% 

2005 1. 00% 0. 50% 

0.50% 

0. 50% 

6. 25% 

6.25% 
2006 1. 00% 0. 500/0 0.50% 6. 26% 
2007 1. 00% 0.50% 0.50% 6. 25°!0
2008 1. 00% 0. 50014 0.50% 6.25% 

2005 1. 000/0 0. 50% 0. 50% 6.25°l0
2010 1. 00% 0.50% 0.50010 6.25% 

2011 1. 00% 0.50% 0. 5011/0 6. 25010

2012 1. 00% 0. 50"}0 0. 50% 6.25% 

Source: Texas comptroller of Public Accounts

Notes: The city sales tax rate may be changes only with the approval of state legislature. 
The Direct Rate is allocated to the General Fund, 

1
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CITY OF KINGSVILLE
RATIOS OF OUTSTANDIIVG DEBT BY TYPE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Governmental Activities Business - type Activities

General Water Certificates

Fiscal Obligation Tarr Capital Revenue of

Year Bonds ( dote Leases Bonds Obligation

2003 10, 903,000 590, 000 76, 177 1, 370, 000 1, 222, 000

2004 7, 683, 000 300, 000 45, 852 1, 250, 000 3,637, 000

2005 7,408, 000 - 13, 970 1, 125, 000 15,042,000
2006 7, 273, 000 - 990, 006 13, 897, 000
2007 7, 463, 000 - 845, 000 13, 612, 000

2008 6,524,208 - 181, 772 695, 000 12, 935, 792

2009 6,293,192 - 159, 036 540, 004 15, 421, 808

2010 5, 335, 990 - 135,299 370, 000 14, 484, 007

2011 9, 556, 200 - 110, 518 190, 000 18, 503, 710

2012 8,899,248 - 84, 647 17, 460, 752

Notes: Details regarding the city"s outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial
statements. See Schedule 16 for personal income. 
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SCHEDULE 11

Total Percentage

Primary of Personal Per

Government Income Capital

14, 161, 177 2. 59% 537. 81

12, 965, 852 2. 34% 490.91
23, 588, 970 4. 12% 890. 86

22, 160, 000 3. 83% 835. 22

21, 860, 000 3. 53% 817. 10

20, 336, 772 3.05% 760. 54

22, 414, 036 2. 79% 797. 79

20, 325, 296 3. 08% 723. 29

28, 360, 518 3. 53% 861. 08

26, 384, 647 3. 79% 779. 04
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CITY OF KINGSVILLE SCHEOULE 12

RATIOS OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING, 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

General Banded Debt Outstanding
Percentage of

General Actual Taxable
Fiscal Obligation Value of Per
Year Bonds Property Capita

2003 10, 903, 000 1. 9700% 414. 07
2004 7, 683 000 1. 3600% 290. 89

2005 7, 408, 000 1. 2600% 279. 77
2006 7, 273, 000 1. 1900% 274. 12
2007 7, 403, 000 1. 1100% 276. 72

2008 6„524, 208 0. 9500010 243. 60
2009 6,293,.192
2010 5, 335, 990

0. 8900% 

0. 7200% 

234. 72

203. 56
2011 9, 556, 290 1. 3980% 362.90
2012 8, 899, 248 1. 3045% 327. 24

Motes: Details regarding the city's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements. 



CITY OF, KINGSVILLE SCHEDULE13

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

t

Estimated , 

Share of

Estimated Direct and

Net Debt Percentage Overlapping

Outstanding Applicable Debt

LGovernmental Unit

Debt repaid with property taxes

LKingsville ISD $ 68, 064, 993 100% $ 68,064, 993

Kleberg County 55, 425, 000 50% 2, 712, 500

South Texas Water Authority - 0% - 

Subtotal, overlapping debt 70, 777, 493

City direct debt, Bonds 8, 901, 626

Capital leases 84, 647

Total direct and overlapping debt $ 79,763, 766

Sources: Taxable value data used to estimated applicable percentages ponrided by. the County Property Appraiser. 
Debt outstanding data provided by each governmental unit. 

L Notes: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries of the city. 
This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping governments that is borne by the
residents and businesses of Kingsville. The percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated by the percent of
area of each government that is within the boundaries of the City. This process recognizes that, when considering the
city' s ability to issue and repay long-term debt, the entire debt burden borne by the residents and businesses should
be taken into account. However, this does not imply that every taxpayer is a resident -anti therefore responsible for
repaying the debt -of each overiapping government. 

L
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CITY OF KINGSVILLE
LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION, 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS) 

t

Fiscal Year

1

2003 2004 2045 2006 2067

Debt limit $ 123, 762, 082 $ 125, 781, 620 $ 129, 498, 770 $ 136, 836, 546 $ 1501, 649,270

Total net debtapplicable to limit 11, 11, 8, 807 10, 378, 938 9,454, 598 9,315, 986 7, 091, 586

Legal debt margin $ 112, 663, 275 $ 115, 402,682 $ 120, 044, 172 $ 127, 520, 560 $ 143, 557, 684

Total net debt applicable to the limit
as a percentage of debt limit 8.980/0 8. 25% 7. 30`10 6.81% 4.71% 

Nate: tinder state finance law, the city' s outstanding general obligation debt should not exceed 25 percent of total
assessed property value. By law, the general obligation dent subject to the limitation may be offset by amounts set
aside for repaying general obligation bands. 

E
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Fiscal Year

2008 2009 2010 2011 2412

163, 120, 473 162, 365, 819 $ 184, 391, 927. 187, 958, 785 189, 284, 636

6, 168, 793 5,895, 349 4, 904, 805 8, 901, 626 8, 165, 426

156, 951, 88O $ 156, 470, 470 $ 79, 487, 122 179, 057, 159 $ 181, 119, 210

3.780% 3. 63% 2. 66% 4. 74% 4. 31% 

Legal Debt Margin Calculation for Fiscal Year 2012

Assessed Value 757, 138, 544

Debt limit ( 25% of assessed value) 189, 284, 636

Debt applicable to limit: 
General obligation bonds $ 8, 839, 248

Less: Amount set aside for
repayment of general

LTotal
obligation debt 733, 822

net debt applicable to limit 8, 165, 426

Legal debt margin 181, 119, 210
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CITY OF KINGSVILLE SCHEDULE r5

PLEDGED - REVENUE COVERAGE, 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS) 

Waste "dater Revenue Bonds and Certificates of Obligation Bonds ( a) 
utility Less: Net

Fiscal Service Operating Available . Debt Service
Year Charges Expenses Revenue Principal Interest Coverage

2903 5, 035, 993 3, 477, 154 1, 558, 339 115, 000 119, 047 6. 66
2004 5, 195, 633 3, 842, 774 1, 352, 859 120, 000 121, 562 5. 60
2905 6, 086, 253 3, 634, 213 2, 452, 040 240, 000 324, 670 4.34

2006 6, 605, 466

2007 6, 375, 409

3, 482, 212 3, 123,24 505, 000 683, 460
3, 329, 444 3, 045, 965, 525, 000 556, 922

2. 87
2. 82

2008 7,285,503 3, 820, 260 3, 465, 243 435; 000 480,813 3. 78
2009 8, 193, 448 4, 253, 942 3, 939, 506_ 455, 000 521,. 378 4. 03
2010 6, 500, 945 4,012, 820 2,488, 125 475, 000 503, 192 2. 54

2011 7, 880, 275 4,458, 425- 3, 421, 850 437, 000 601, 778 3. 14

2012 8, 394,262 7, 021, 804 1, 372, 458 643, 067 620, 735 1. 05

Sanitation C. 0. Bonds Series 2001 ( b), 2007, and 2009
Utility Less: Net

Fiscal Service Operating : available Debt Service

Year Charges Expenses Revenue Princw' pa! Interest Coverage

2043
2004 3, 202, 724 1, 592, 760 1, 609,964 310, 000 97, 392 3. 95

2005 2, 892, 724 1, 642,222 1, 250, 502 325, 000 85, 065 3. 05
2006 2, 799, 958 1, 7$ 4,379 1, 015, 079 325, 000 87, 048 2. 46
2007 2, 351, 654 1, 487, 099 1, 364, 555 335, 000 75, 023 3. 33
2908 3,036, 568 1, 936,988 1, 099,530 391, 209 30, 436 2. 33

2009 3, 510, 389 1, 4413, 539 1, 669, 850 808, 000 62, 241 1. 92
2010 3, 572, 534 2, 408, 876 1, 163, 658 632, 801 163, 422 1. 46
2011 3, 642, 049 2, 669, 749 972, 3+00 288, 256 144, 941 2. 24

2012 3, 315, 313 2, 417, 443 1, 397, 870 609, 892 101, 135 1. 97

Notes: Details regarding the city's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements. Operating
expenses do not include interest, depreciation, amortization expenses or transfers. 

a) These bonds are secured by ad valorem taxes and further secured by the net revenues of the wastewater and sanitary
sewer system. it is the City' s intent that these bonds will be pair( from net revenue of the Utility System. The revenue
and expenses represented are those of the water and waste water department. 

b) These bands are secured by ad valorem taxes and are further secured by the net revenue of the waste water and
sanitation sewer system. It is the city's intent to pay these bonds from the net revenue of the sanitation department since
this this was the purpose for the bands. In the year 2004 for government -wide financial statement presentation, these
bonds were reclassified as Utility Funds bond and therefore were restated in the Utility Fund. 
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CITY OF KINGSVILLE SCHEDULE 16

DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS
LAST TEN CALENDAR YEARS

L
Personal Per Education

Income Capita Level in

Calendar ( thousands Personal Median Years of School Unemployment

Year Population of dollars) Income Age Schooling Enrollment Rate

2003 26, 331 546, 289 20, 747 26. 3 N/ A

2004 26, 412 554, 705 21, 002 28. 3 NIA

4, 620

4,541

6. 2% 

6. 0% 

2005 26, 479 572. 794 21, 632 28.3 N/ A 4, 339 5. 01/6

2006 26, 532 578, 6361 21, 809 28. 4 N/ A 4,246 4.2% 

2007 26, 753 619, 025 24, 761 27. 9 N/ A 4, 156 4. 4% 

2008 26, 782 619,952 26, 740 27. 8 N/ A 4, 026 4.5% 

2009 26, 812 625, 487 28, 095 29. 2 N/ A 3, 999 6. 4% 

2010 26, 213 626, 305 28, 101 27. 9 N/ A 3, 729 6. 7% 

2011 26, 333 1, 000,382 32, 936 27. 6 N/ A 3, 533 6. 5% 

2012 26, 417 1, 001, 268 33, 868 27. 4 N/ A 3, 821 "* 4. 8% 

Provided by Coastal Send Council of Governments from U. S. Bureau of Statistics

Number does not include Santa Gertrudis ISIS

Sources: City of Kingsville
Kingsville Independent School district
Chamber of Commerce

Notes: Population, median age, and educational level infornnation are based on surveys conducted during tete last
quarter of the calendar year. Personal income information is a total for the year. Unemployment rate information is

an adjuster{ yearly average. School enrollment is based on the census at the start of the school year. 

U. S. Census Bureau for population 25 years or hider, some years not available. 
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CITY OF KINGS' VILLE SCHEDULE 17
TOP TEN EMPLOYERS, 

CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO

2012 2003

Percentage Percentage

of Total City of Total City
Employer Employees Rank EmployMent Employees Rank Employment

Naval Air Station ( Military) 1, WA 1 13. 77% 1, 782 1 6. 81010
Texas A& M - Kingsville 1, 500 2 11. 27% 1, 118 2 4. 25% 
Kingsville I. S.D 651 3 4. 89% 763 3 2. 90% 

King Ranch 376 4 2. 82% 325 8 1. 23% 
Wal- Mart 307 5 2. 3010 373 7 1. 42% 

Spohn Kleberg Memorial Hospital 300 2. 25% 391 6 1. 48% 
Border Patrol 300 7 2. 254% 123 10 0.47% 
Hoechst Celanese 290 8 2. 18% 511 4 1. 94% 

Kleberg County 275 9 2.9%a
City of Kingsville 260 10 1. 95% 

HEB Grocery 160 9 0.61% 

Mundy Corporation
Calling Solutions 470 5 1. 78% 

Total_ 6, 093 45. 75`"1 6, 026 22. 89% 

Source: Chamber of Commerce

Reference the denominator for the % amount
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CITY OF KINGSVILLE SC14EDULE 18

i r-ULL- TIME-EQUIVALENT CITY GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTIONIFROGRAM, 
I LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Full -Time Equivalent Employees
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

5 5 5 5 5
City Commission 5 5 5 5 5

General Government 36 37 37 37 33 33 27 33 29 33

Fire. 33 33 33 30 33 33 33 31 32 31

Health 12 12 12 12 11 12 12 12 12 12

Library 10 10 10 10 8 8 8 8 9 9

Police 67 67 67 67 63 60 63 62 64 64

Public Works 97 99 98 99 97 96 97 94 95 94

Task f= orce 12 13 13 12 11 12 10 10 12 12

Total 272 276 275 272 261 279 275 255 258 260

Source: City of Kingsville

Notes: A full- time employee is scheduled to work 2480 hours per year ( ncluding vacation and sick leave). 
Full- time equivalent employment is calculated by dividing total labor hours by 2080. 

L.. 
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CITY OF KINGSAMLI= 
OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTIO PROGRAlt1, 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal Year

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

FunctioniProcram

General government

Building permits issued 2, 063 2, 186 2, 821 2, 523 2;355

Building inspections conducted 1, 337 1, 477
Police

Physical arrest 2,433 1, 338 1, 902 1, 791 2,208

Parking violations 37 29 16 70 158

Traffic violations 3, 947 2, 829 2,449 4,334 5, 561

Fire

Emergency responses 2, 113 1, 980 1, 883 1, 973 2, 108

Fre extinguishers 359 338 363 424 438

Inspections 189 374 376 234 300

Refuse Collections

Refuse collected ( tons per day; 365) 68 80 97 76 76

Recyclables collected ( tons per day; 365) 1 0 1 i

Other public works

Street resurfacing ( miles) 4 4 3 6

Potholes repaired

Parks and recreation

2, 100 2, 200 2, 000 1, 900

Athletic field permits issued

Community center admissions

Library
Volumes in collection 58. 300 59, 973 61, 648 653, 086 65, 306

Total volumes borrowed 48, 306 51, 784 51, 791 53, 209 56, 446

Health

Environmental Health 16, 861 16, 298 17, 670 17, 153

Consumer Health 2, 329 1, 984 1, 854 2, 222

Weed Control 2, 964 2, 533 3, 224 2, 575
Animal Control 6,516 7, 406 7, 925 7, 484

Water

New connections 38 80 45 45 99
Water main breaks 377 334 415 537 780

Average daily consumption 3,412 3, 184 3, 184 3, 579 3, 059
thousands of gallons) 

Peak daily consumption 4, 615 4;420 4,987 4, 955 4,462

thousands of gallons} 

Wastewater

Average daily serer treatment
thousands of gallons) 2, 000 2; 000 2,000 2, 004 2, 004

Sources- Various City Departments
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SCHEDULE 19

Fiscal Year
llsss

2048 2009 2710 2011 2012

2, 341 2, 349 1, 997 1, 964 2, 392

1, 934 1, 575 1, 324 1, 654 2, 267

1, 829 1. 955 1, 999 2, 590 1, 619

ill 78 39 47 243

3, 796 3, 666 3, 416 4,611 3, 240

2, 159 2, 831 2, 994 2, 214 2, 787

521 546 607 398 467

479 412 487 383 462

82 82 127 74 74

i 1 1 1 1

4 3 3 3 2

2, 974 4, 944 4, 970 5, 770 2, 400

65, 715 64,749 65, 713 59, 245 58, 503

57, 526 48, 643 49,712 45, 420 47, 997

5, 028 1, 777 1, 742 1, 763 1, 846

2, 447 2, 519 2,464 2, 348 1, 633

2, 527 2, 471 2, 569 2,915 2,827

10, 956 8, 535 6, 748 8,681 9,227

50 31 25 26 48

445 608 556 339 244

3, 447 3, 836 3, 776 3, 818 4,036

L4,778 5, 340 5, 451 5, 633 5, 554

1, 777 2, 100 2, 277 1, 800 2, 200

L
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CITY OF KINWVILLE
CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY' Fi. NCTlOWROGRAA9
LAST TEN FISCAL ` FEARS

Fiscal Year
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

Function/ Program

Police

Stations 1 1 1 1 1
Patrol units 63 63 54 53 45

Fire stations 2 2 2 2 2
Refuse collections

Collection trucks 15 18 18 18 18
Other public works

Street ( miles) 104 104 106 106 106
Highway ( miles) 
Streetlights 546 554 554
Trak signals 4 4 4 4 4

Parks and recreation

Acreage 195 195 195 195 195
Playgrounds 9 9 9 g g
Baseball/ Softball diamonds 12 12 12 12 12
Soccerffoothali fields 12 12 12 12 12
Community centers 2 2 2 2 2

Water

Water mains ( miles) 113 113 115 116 116
Fire hydrants 634 681 686 692 692

Storage capacity ( thousands sof gallons) 9, 594 9,594 9,594 9,679 9,679
Wastewater

Sanitary sewers ( miles) 91 91 92 95 95
Storm sewers ( miles) 16 16 16 16 16
Treatment capacity (thousand of gallons) 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000



SCHEDULE 20

Fiscal Year

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

1 1 1 1 1

43 47 48 55 64

2 2 2 2 2

18 20 16 13 13

106 113 121 121 121

554 569 569 584 584

4 4 4 4 4 - 

195 195 195 195 195

9 9 9 9 9

12 - 12 12 12 12

12 12 12 12 12

2 2 2 2 2

116 116 117 123 124

696 705 801 812 808

9,764 9, 764 9,764 9,764 9, 764

96 96 97 97 98

16 16 16 16 16

4,000 4,000 4, 000 4,000 6,000
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Independent Auditor' s Report
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Board of Trustees

City of Kingsville
P. O. Box 1458

Kingsville, Texas 78364

Members of the Board of Trustees: 

I We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business -type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Kingsville as of and for the year ended

1 September 30, 2012, which collectively comprise the City of Kingsville' s basic financial statements and have
j issued our report thereon dated April 26, 2013. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing

standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 

t

L Internal Control Over Financial Reonrting

Management of City of Kingsville is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
financial reporting. In planning and performing our audit, we considered City of Kingsville' s internal control
over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our

6- opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the City of Kingsville' s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on
the effectiveness of the City of Kingsville' s internal control over financial reporting. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct

I misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
Linternal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity' s financial

statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. 

i Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first
im— paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial

reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not identify any

L deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as
defined above. However, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting, 
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item(s) 2012- 1 to 2012-3, that

L
we consider to be significant deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting. A significant
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

i

L

0 PRIVATE COMPANIES PRACTICE SECTION. AICPA DIVISION FOR CPA FIRMS
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether City of Kingsville' s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported
under Government Auditing Standards and which are described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs as item( s) 2012- 4. 

City of Kingsville' s response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule . 
of findings and questioned costs. We did not audit City of Kingsville' s response and, accordingly, we
express no opinion on it. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, others within the entity and the
Board of Trustees and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified
parties. 

Respec y submitted, 

John Womack & Company, P. C. 
April 26, 2013
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L
CITY OF KINGSVILLE
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

L
A. Summary of Auditor's Results

1. Financial Statements

Type of auditor' s report issued: Unqualified

LInternal control over financial reporting: 

j One or more material weaknesses identified? Yes X No

L
One or more significant deficiencies identified that
are not considered to be material weaknesses? Yes X None Reported

Noncompliance material to financial

statements noted? Yes X No

L2. Federal Awards

A Single Audit was not required in the current year. 

B. Financial Statement Findings
L

2012- 1 Internal Control - Reconciliaiton of Asset and Liability Accounts

L Condition: 

The City has not reconciled certain asset and liability accounts on a timely basis during the year or at
year- end. 

l
L Criteria: 

Asset and liability accounts should be reconciled timely and all related journal entries made on a timely
Lbasis. 

Cause: 

Over the past several years, there have been continual changes and turnover in the accounting
i department which has resulted in continual training in personnel. This trend continued with the turnover in
L the.Accounting Manager and Accountant II position in Fiscal Year 2012. 

L
Effect: 

The effect is the possibility of inaccuracy in monthly reporting, and, potentially, an inability to recognize
fraud or other inaccuracies in a timely manner. 

L Recommendation: 

We recommend that the City implement procedures to ensure that personnel are provided proper training, 
asset and liability accounts are reconciled, and all related journal entries posted on a timely basis. 

LClient Response/ Corrective Action: 

The City concurs with this finding, and has made improvements in this area. In Fiscal Year 2013, the City
has taken an aggressive strategy in attracting and retaining the financial personnel necessary. An

L assertive effort is being made to realign the Finance Office staff salaries with the marketplace. The

Accountant II position will be replaced with an Accounting Supervisor and an Assistant Finance Director
position has been added. This additional staff should assist in continuing to improve this aspect of our

Lbusiness
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CITY OF KINGSVILLE
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

2012- 2 Internal Control - Reporting

Condition: 

Two awards, for $ 78, 537 and $ 44, 151, were erroneously recorded as revenue in prior years, but were
not actually awarded by the court until the current fiscal year. 

Criteria: 

Seized funds are recorded as liabilities until the related court case is settled, and the funds released to
the Task Force by the Court. 

Cause: 

Inaccurate Listing of Pending Cases and related seized funds. 

Effect: 

Revenue was overstated in prior year, and the related liability was understated. 

Recomendation: 

We recommend more accurate tracking of all pending cases, with a higher level of review of the detailed
listing. 

Client Response/Corrective Action: 
In the latter part of Fiscal Year 2012, the City has implemented a new system of tracking all pending cases
which provides much more detailed information on each case and is submitted to the Finance Director by
the Task Force Commander on a regular basis. It was this improved listing which enabled the proir error
to be discovered and corrected. 

2012- 3 Internal Control - New Employees Incorporated into Payroll

Condition: 

Payroll clerk currently has the ability to enter new employees into the payroll database. 

Criteria: 

Proper internal control measures would not allow the payroll clerk to enter new employees into the payroll
database. This responsibiltiy would be placed in the Human Resources Department. 

Cause: 

Lack of segregation of duties in this area. 

Effect/ Potential Effect: 

Those who prepare payroll have a greater ability to manipulate the payroll system, and the possibility of
incorrect or erroneous paychecks increases. 

Recommendation: 

We recommend the Human Resources Department assume the responsibiltiy of entering new employees
into the payroll system. The Human Resources Department should key in new employees and then those
individuals who prepare payroll can review the input to verify the information, as well as ensure that
timesheets are filled out correctly and entered correctly. 
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j CITY OF KINGSVILLE
L SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

LClient Response/ Corrective Action: 

The City is implementing a new bio -metric payroll/ human resources system in Fiscal Year 2013. As an
additional internal control, Human Resources Department will eventually be responsible for entering new
employees, changes in employee hourly rates, and terminations into the payroll system. 

Currently, the Finance Director reviews/ approves all employee change authorizations by Human
Resources as well as reviews the Payroll Direct Deposit and Payroll hand- written check supporting
documentation for each payroll. In addition, payroll check stock is physically stored and controlled
separate and apart from the payroll clerk. 

L
2012- 4 State Compliance - Public Funds Investment Act

L Condition: 

The City Manager and Accounting Manager, as Investment Officers, do not have the education/ training
hours required by the City' s Investment Policy and the Public Funds Investment Act. 

LCriteria: 
The Public Funds Investment Officers, as named in the City' s Investment Policy, are required by the Public
Funds Investment Act to obtain ten hours of education/training hours not less than once every two-year

Lperiod. Proof of this education/ training is to be kept on file. 

Cause: 

The Public Funds Investment Act had been misinterpreted, and only the Finance Director had been
L receiving this education/ training. 

Effect: 

The Finance Director is the only employee that has received this training. In his absence, no other

employee would have the proper education/ training to cover the investment activities of the City. In

addition, this is a violation of the State law. 

Perspective Information: 

The City only invests in Certificates of Deposit and Money Market accounts. There are no complex

investment strategies. 

Recommendation: 

We recommend the City Manager and Accounting Manager begin immediately to acquire their education/ 
Ltraining requirements. 

Client Response/ Corrective Action: 

The City Manager and Accounting Manager will acquire and maintain the Public Funds Investment Act
Leducation/ training as required. 

LC. Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

NONE

L
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CITY OF KINGSVILLE
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Finding/ Recommendation

2011- 1 Internal Control - Reconciliation of Asset

and Liability Accounts

Condition: 

The City has not reconciled certain asset and
liability accounts on a timely basis during the year
or at year- end. 

Criteria: 

Asset and liability accounts should be reconciled
timely and all related journal entries made on a
timely basis. 

Cause: 
The City experienced staffing changes and

turnover in the accounting department in 2009 and
2010, and are continuing to train new personnel. 

Effect: 

The effect is the possibility of inaccuracy in
monthly reporting, and, potentially, an inability to
recognize fraud or other inaccuracies in a timely
manner. 

Recommendation: 

We recommend that the City implement procedures
to ensure that personnel are provided proper

training, asset and liability accounts are reconciled, 
and all related journal entries posted on a timely
basis. 

Current Status

134

Not
Implemented

Management' s Explanation

If Not Implemented

The City has had personnel
turnover in key positions, 
and has hired a new

Accounting Manager. In

addition, the City plans to
hire an Assistant Finance
Director to enable the

timely completion of these
key tasks. 
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CITY OF KINGSVILLE
CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

2012- 1 Internal Control - Reconciliation of Assets and Liability Accounts

The City concurs with this finding, and has made improvements in this area. In Fiscal Year 2013, the City has
taken an aggressive strategy in attracting and retaining the financial personnel necessary. An assertive

effort is being made to realign the Finance Office staff salaries with the marketplace. The Accountant II

position will be replaced with an Accounting Supervisor and an Assistant Finance Director position has been
added. This additional staff should assist in continuing to improve this aspect of our business. 

2012- 2 Internal Control - Reporting

In the latter part of Fiscal Year 2012, the City has implemented a new system of tracking all pending cases
which provides much more detailed information on each case and is submitted to the Finance Director by the
Task Force Commander on a regular basis. It was this improved listing which enabled the proir error to be
discovered and corrected. 

2012- 3 Internal Control - New Employees Incorporated into Payroll

The City is implementing a new bio -metric payrolVhuman resources system in Fiscal Year 2013. As an

L
additional internal control, Human Resources Department will eventually be responsible for entering new
employees, changes in employee hourly rates, and terminations into the payroll system. 

Currently, the Finance Director reviews/approves all employee change authorizations by Human Resources

L as well as reviews the Payroll Direct Deposit and Payroll hand- written check supporting documentation for
each payroll. In addition, payroll check stock is physically stored and controlled separate and apart from the
payroll clerk. 

I
fw

2012- 4 State Compliance - Public Funds Investment Act

L The City Manager and Accounting Manager will acquire and maintain the Public Funds Investment Act
education/ training as required. 

L

L

L

L

L
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